AGENDA

CORPORATE COMMITTEE

DUBBO REGIONAL

COUNCIL

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND

MEMBERSHIP: Councillors J Diffey, V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A

Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker, J Ryan and B Shields.

The meeting is scheduled to commence at .

EDBC19/36

EDBC19/37

EDBC19/38

REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
CORPORATE COMMITTEE - MEETING 12 AUGUST 2019
(1D19/1200)
The Committee had before it the report of the Economic
Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting held 12
August 2019.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
MEETING 2 SEPTEMBER 2019 (ID19/1261)

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting held 2 September 2019.

Please note in regards to AUD19/23 - In accordance with the
provisions of Section 9 (2A) of the Local Government Act 1993 the
Chief Executive Officer is of the opinion that consideration of this
item is likely to take place when the meeting is closed to the public
for the following reason: matters affecting the security of the
Council, Councillors, Council Staff or Council Property (Section

10A(2)(f)).

INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
ACT - AUGUST 2019 (1D19/1204)

The Committee had before it the report dated 2 September 2019
from the Director Organisational Performance regarding
Investments Under Section 625 of the Local Government Act -
August 2019.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 1

Page

168



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE - 9 SEPTEMBER 2019
AGENDA

EDBC19/39 2018/2019 BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS REPORT (1D19/1187) 172
The Committee had before it the report dated 29 August 2019 from
the Chief Financial Officer regarding 2018/2019 Budget Highlights
Report.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/36

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

Report of the Economic Development,
Business and Corporate Committee -
meeting 12 August 2019

gggﬁg{EGIONAL AUTHOR: Governance Team Leader

REPORT DATE: 28 August 2019

The Committee had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and
Corporate Committee meeting held 12 August 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting
held on 12 August 2019, be adopted.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/36

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

REPORT

PREF cconomic DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND
CORPORATE COMMITTEE

counoit O 12 AUGUST 2019

PRESENT: Councillors V Etheridge, D Grant, D Gumley, A Jones, S Lawrence, G Mohr, K Parker,
J Ryan and B Shields.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control, the
Internal Ombudsman, the Community Support Officer, the Manager Governance Operations,
the Communications Coordinator, the Director Organisational Performance, the Director
Culture and Economy, the Manager Economic Development and Marketing, the Destination
Marketing Officer, the Manager Regional Experiences, the Director Infrastructure, the
Manager Water Supply and Sewerage, the Director Development and Environment, the
Manager Growth Planning, the Manager Building and Development Services, the Senior
Planner and the Director Liveability.

Councillor G Mohr assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 6.04pm.

EDBC19/28 REPORT OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE - MEETING 8 JULY 2019 (ID19/1073)

The Committee had before it the report of the Economic Development, Business and

Corporate Committee meeting held 8 July 2019.

Moved by Councillor D Gumley and seconded by Councillor K Parker

MOTION

That the report of the Economic Development, Business and Corporate Committee meeting

held on 8 July 2019, be noted.
CARRIED

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 4



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/36

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

EDBC19/29 UPDATES TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT (ID19/1062)
The Committee had before it the report dated 25 July 2019 from the Executive Manager
Governance and Internal Control regarding Updates to the Local Government Act.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION

1. That Council note that it resolved at its Ordinary meeting held 25 February 2019 that
subject to Council’s approval of the estimate provided by the State Electoral
Commissioner, Dubbo Regional Council (“the Council”) resolves that:

i. Pursuant to sections 296(2) and (3) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW)
(“the Act”) and subject to confirmation of estimates as provided by the Electoral
Commissioner that an election arrangement be entered into by contract for the
Electoral Commissioner to administer all elections of the Council.

ii. Pursuant to sections 296(2) and (3) of the Act, as applied and modified by
section 18, that a council poll arrangement be entered into by contract for the
Electoral Commissioner to administer all council polls of the Council.

iii. Pursuant to sections 296(2) and (3) of the Act, as applied and modified by
section 18, that a constitutional referendum arrangement be entered into by
contract for the Electoral Commissioner to administer all constitutional
referenda of the Council, if required.

2. That Council note that Dubbo Regional Council, as a Council formed in 2016, will have
its rate path freeze extended until 1 July 2021, unless it resolves to apply to the
Minister to vary the existing rates path freeze determination and the determination is
varied.

3. That Council not apply to the Minister for a variation in the rate path freeze away
from 1 July 2021.

CARRIED

EDBC19/30 DRAFT - INTERNAL OMBUDSMAN POLICY (1D19/740)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 August 2019 from the Internal Ombudsman
regarding Draft - Internal Ombudsman Policy.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor K Parker

MOTION

That the draft Internal Ombudsman Policy and Fact Sheet, as attached to the report of the
Internal Ombudsman dated 12 June 2019, be adopted.
CARRIED
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/36

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

EDBC19/31 INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 625 OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT - JULY
2019 (ID19/1060)

The Committee had before it the report dated 1 August 2019 from the Director

Organisational Performance regarding Investments Under Section 625 of the Local

Government Act - July 2019.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor D Grant
MOTION

That the report from the Director Organisational Performance dated 1 August 2019 be
noted.
CARRIED

Councillor K Parker declared a pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor K Parker an employee of the Dubbo
Branch of the Bank of Queensland, a bank that Council has funds invested with.

At this Juncture, the Manager Economic Development and Marketing, the Manager Regional
Experience and the Destination Marketing Officer presented the Mayor and Chief Executive
Officer with the two Gold Awards from the Regional Tourism Awards.

EDBC19/32 RECOGNITION OF REGIONAL TOURISM AWARDS TO DUBBO REGIONAL
COUNCIL (ID19/1094)

The Committee had before it the report dated 6 August 2019 from the Director Culture and

Economy regarding Recognition of Regional Tourism Awards to Dubbo Regional Council.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor J Ryan
MOTION

1. That the report from the Director Culture and Economy dated 6 August 2019 be
noted.
2.  That Council Staff be congratulated on the awarding of the two Gold Awards at the
Regional Tourism Awards.
CARRIED
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/36

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

EDBC19/33 DUBBO SHOWGROUND MASTER PLAN (ID19/1075)
The Committee had before it the report dated 29 July 2019 from the Director Culture and
Economy regarding Dubbo Showground Master Plan.

Moved by Councillor B Shields and seconded by Councillor D Grant

MOTION

1. That the report from the Director Culture and Economy dated 29 July 2019 be noted.
2. That the Dubbo Showground Master Plan be adopted.

3. That stakeholders and community members be thanked for their contribution.

4. That the Master Plan activities be implemented in accordance with budget

allocations, grant opportunities and partnerships with community groups.
CARRIED

EDBC19/34 DUBBO CITY CAR CLUB SURRENDER OF DEVELOPMENT CONSENT FOR DRAG
STRIP (ID19/1067)

The Committee had before it the report dated 26 July 2019 from the Manager Property

Assets regarding Dubbo City Car Club surrender of Development Consent for Drag Strip.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Councillor V Etheridge
MOTION

That the report from the Manager Property Assets dated 12 August 2019 be noted.
CARRIED

Councillor J Ryan declared a non-pecuniary, significant interest in the matter now before the
Committee and left the room and was out of sight during the Committee’s consideration of
this matter. The reason for such interest is that Councillor ] Ryan campaigned for the dragstrip
to move ahead and have been assisting Dubbo City Car Club.

EDBC19/35 LEAVE OF ABSENCE
A request for leave of absence was received from Councillor J Diffey who was absent from the
meeting due to the personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor V Etheridge and seconded by Councillor A Jones
MOTION
That such request for leave of absence be accepted and Councillor J Diffey be granted leave

of absence from this meeting.
CARRIED

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
EDBC19/36

COMMITTEE
9 SEPTEMBER 2019

The meeting closed at 6.14pm.

CHAIRMAN
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/37

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

Report of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee - meeting 2
September 2019

gggﬁg{EG'ONAL AUTHOR: Administration Officer - Governance

REPORT DATE: 2 September 2019

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 2 September 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 2
September 2019, be adopted.

Appendices:

10 Audit and Risk Management Committee - 02/09/2019 - Reports

2 Confidential Audit and Risk Management Committee - 02/09/2019 - Report -
Confidential due to matters affecting the security of the Council, Councillors, Council
Staff or Council Property (Section 10A(2)(f)).
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/37

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

REPORT
PR7 AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE
counoit " 2 SEPTEMBER 2019

PRESENT:

Core Members (Voting):

Councillor A Jones, Mr J Walkom (Independent Member) and Mr R Gillard (Independent
Member).

Attendees (Non-Voting):

The Director Organisational Performance (M Green), the Executive Manager Governance and
Internal Control, the Internal Auditor, the Chief Financial Officer, the Statutory Accountant Mr
Johnathon Lam (Audit Office of NSW — by telephone) and Ms R Antolin (Audit Office of NSW —
by telephone).

Mr J Walkom assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 9.00am.

WELCOME

AUD19/15 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (ID19/1207)

Requests for leave of absence were received from Councillor B Shields and the Chief
Executive Officer who were absent from the meeting due to the business matters. Mr A
Green (Audit Officer of NSW) was also absent from the meeting due to personal reasons.
Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by R Gillard

RECOMMENDATION

That such request for leave of absence be accepted and Councillor Shields, the Chief
Executive Officer and Mr A Green (Audit Office of NSW) be granted leave of absence from
this meeting.

CARRIED

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/37

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

AUD19/16 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (ID19/1208)
No conflicts of interest were declared.

AUD19/17 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - MEETING 14
JUNE 2019 (1D19/1206)

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 14 June 2019.
Moved by R Gillard and seconded by Councillor A Jones
RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommends that the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held on 14 June 2019, be adopted.

CARRIED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT
Update on Financial Statements
AUD19/18 REFERRAL OF THE 2018/2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO AUDIT (1D19/1147)
The Committee had before it the report dated 15 August 2019 from the Chief Financial
Officer regarding Referral of the 2018/2019 Financial Statements to Audit.
Moved by R Gillard and seconded by Councillor A Jones
RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommends:
1. That the draft 2018/2019 Financial Statements be noted.
2. That the draft 2018/2019 Financial Statements be referred to audit.

CARRIED
External Auditor’s Management Letters
The Audit Interim Management Letter 2019 is considered confidentially in clause AUD19/23

Significant Developments in Financial Reporting Framework

No matters to report at this time.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/37

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT

AUD19/19 INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT ON RMS DRIVES (1D19/949)
The Committee had before it the report dated 2 July 2019 from the Internal Auditor regarding
Internal Audit Report on RMS Drives.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by R Gillard
RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommends that the information in the report of the Internal Auditor
dated 2 July 2019 be noted.
CARRIED

ACTION LIST

AUD19/20 AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ACTION LIST AS AT AUGUST
2019 (1D19/1065)

The Committee had before it the report dated 26 July 2019 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Audit and Risk Management Committee Action List as at August 2019.

Moved by R Gillard and seconded by Councillor A Jones
RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommends that the information in the report of the Internal Auditor
dated 26 July 2019, be noted.

CARRIED
GENERAL BUSINESS
AUD19/21 DEVELOPMENT OF THREE YEAR AUDIT PROGRAM (1D19/1092)
The Committee had before it the report dated 6 August 2019 from the Internal Auditor
regarding Development of three year audit program.
Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by R Gillard
RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommends that a three year audit program be developed in accordance
with the decisions made by the Audit and Risk Management Committee workshop and

reported back to the next Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting.
CARRIED

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/37

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

AUD19/22 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION POLICY (ID19/1142)
The Committee had before it the report dated 14 August 2019 from the Internal Auditor
regarding Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy.

Moved by R Gillard and seconded by Councillor A Jones
RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommends that the Fraud and Corruption Prevention policy be endorsed.
CARRIED

AUD19/23 AUDIT INTERIM MANAGEMENT LETTER - 2019 (ID19/1148)
The Committee had before it the report dated 16 August 2019 from the Chief Financial
Officer regarding Audit Interim Management Letter - 2019.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by R Gillard
RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommends:

1. That the 2019 Interim Audit Management Letter as attached to this report of the
Chief Financial Officer dated 16 August 2019 be noted.

2.  That actions identified in Audit Office Management Letters be included as confidential
items in future action items listings reported to the Committee.

3. That instances of material non-compliance with legislation be reported to the Audit
and Risk Management Committee as required.

4. That the documents and considerations in regard to this matter remain confidential
to the Council.

CARRIED

The meeting closed at 9.49am.

CHAIRMAN

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37
- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
AUD19/17

2 SEPTEMBER 2019

Report of the Audit and Risk Management
o, Committee - meeting 14 June 2019

e
% AUTHOR: Executive Manager Governance and Internal
DUBBO REGIONAL
COUNCIL Control
REPORT DATE: 29 August 2019

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 14 June 2019.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting held on 14 June
2019, be adopted.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 3
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

:g?;::;gE?SZI;EANAG EMENT COMMITTEE AU D 19/17
Y REPORT
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT
DUBED REGIONAL COMM"TEE
COUNCIL 14 JUNE 2019

PRESENT: Councillors A Jones, Mr J Walkom (Independent Chair) and Mr R Gillard
(Independent Member).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

The Chief Executive Officer, the Executive Manager Governance and Internal Control, the
Internal Auditor, the Director Corporate Services, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Audit/Statutory Reporting Accountant.

Mr J Walkom assumed chairmanship of the meeting.

The proceedings of the meeting commenced at 11.00am.

The Committee discussed the need to formally elect a chairperson of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee in accordance with the Audit and Risk Management Committee
Charter. The Chief Executive Officer advised the Committee that Council had delegated the
appointment of the independent chairperson and independent member to the Mayor and
Chief Executive Officer at its meeting held 24 September 2018 following interviews with each

of the independent nominees. As a result it was not necessary to elect a chairperson in this
instance.

WELCOME

AUD19/10 LEAVE OF ABSENCE (ID19/689)

A request for leave of absence was received from Councillor B Shields who was absent from
the meeting due to personal reasons.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by R Gillard

RECOMMENDATION

That such request for leave of absence be accepted and Councillor B Shields be granted
leave of absence from this meeting.

AUD19/11 DECLARATION OF INTEREST (1D19/690)
No conflicts of interest were declared.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 4
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/17

AUD19/12 REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - MEETING 11
MARCH 2019 (ID19/691)

The Committee had before it the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held 11 March 2019.
Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Mr R Gillard
RECOMMENDATION
The Committee recommends that the report of the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting held on 11 March 2019, be adopted.

CARRIED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS/EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT

Update on Financial Statements

It was verbally reported that the Interim Audit commenced early June 2019.

The Audit Office of NSW has assigned a new Audit Manager to Council’s Auditor
being Ms Rochele Antolin of the Audit Office of NSW.

External Auditor’s Management Letters

Council has been advised that the Interim Management Letter will be provided to
Council on 15 July 2019. A copy of this letter will be circulated to Committee
members once received.

Significant Developments in Financial Reporting Framework

No matters to report at this time.

INTERNAL AUDIT

No matters to report at this time

COMMITTEE MEMBERS REPORTS

No matters to report at this time
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/17

ACTION LIST

AUD19/13  AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE ACTION LIST AS AT MAY 2019
(1D19/604)

The Committee had before it the report dated 17 May 2019 from the Internal Auditor

regarding Audit and Risk Management Committee Action List as at May 2019.

Moved by Councillor A Jones and seconded by Mr R Gillard
RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommends:
1. That the information in the report of the Internal Auditor dated 17 May 2019, be
noted.
2. That the Action List is to include the percentage complete value against each action.
3.  That contracts over $150,000 without a tender process are reported to the Committee
as required by exception.
CARRIED

GENERAL BUSINESS

AUD19/14 DEVELOPMENT OF THREE YEAR AUDIT PROGRAM (1D19/707)
The Committee had before it the report dated 3 June 2019 from the Internal Auditor
regarding Development of three year audit program.

Moved by Mr R Gillard and seconded by Councillor A Jones
RECOMMENDATION

The Committee recommends:

1. That a multi-year audit program be developed in accordance with the process
described in this report.

2.  That a workshop be held with Committee members following the September 2019
meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee to determine items for
inclusion in the three year audit program.

CARRIED

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 6
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37
- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/17

OTHER GENERAL BUSINESS

1. That Mr R Gillard prepare a checklist including all deliverables and associated
timeframes of items requiring action from the Committee from the Audit and Risk
Management Charter.

2. That a draft annual report be prepared for the chairperson to present at the next
Committee meeting and September 2019 Council meeting.

The meeting closed at 1.0Spm.

CHAIRMAN

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 7
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/18

REPORT: Referral of the 2018/2019
' Financial Statements to Audit
PUBEO REGIoNAL AUTHOR: Chief Financial Officer

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 15 August 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/1147

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Local Government Act 1993 requires that Council, by resolution, provide statements that
the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant Acts,
Standards and Codes of Accounting Practice, and that they present fairly the Council's
financial position.

Statements are required to be made by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Chief Executive Officer
and Responsible Accounting Officer to enable the current draft Financial Statements and
Special Purpose Financial Statements to be submitted for Audit. The audit is scheduled to be
completed in the ensuing three weeks. Following completion of the audit Council’s auditors,
Audit Office, will provide a presentation on the final audited 2018/2019 Financial Statements
to the October 2019 Ordinary meeting of Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
The financial statements show an operating loss of $67.635m due to a direct impact of

$122.459m resulting from the 2019 road infrastructure revaluation. Otherwise Council is in a
sound financial position as at 30 June 2019.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the statement in accordance with Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act

1993, and Clause 215 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005, for the
General Purpose Financial Statements for the year ending 30 June 2019 be made.

2, That the statement in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Accounting

Practice in relation to the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the year ending
30 June 2019 be made.

3. That the statements be signed by the Mayor, Deputy Mayor, Chief Executive Officer

and Responsible Accounting Officer.

Jane Bassingthwaighte
Chief Financial Officer

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 8
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/18

REPORT

Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993 requires that:

1. A Council must prepare financial reports for each year, and must refer them for audit as
soon as practicable (having regard to the requirements of Section 416 (1)) after the end of
that year.

2. A Council's financial reports must include:

a)  ageneral purpose financial report; and

b)  any other matters prescribed by the regulations, and

c) a statement in the approved form by the Council as to its opinion on the general
purpose financial report.

3. The general purpose financial report must be prepared in accordance with this Act and
the regulations and the requirement of:

a)  The publications issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board, as in force for
the time being, subject to the regulations, and
b)  Such other standards as may be prescribed by the regulations.

The statement required by Section 413 (2) (c) and the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005, clause 215 requires the following:

215(1) That the statement required by Section 413 (2) (c) of the Act must:

a)  be made by resolution of the Council, and
b)  besigned by:
i) the Mayor; and
i) atleast one other member of the Council; and
iii)  the Responsible Accounting Officer; and
iv)  the Chief Executive Officer (if not the responsible accounting officer)

215(2) The statement must indicate:

a)  whether or not the Council's annual financial reports have been drawn up in
accordance with:

i) The Act and this Regulation; and
ii)  The Code and the Manual; and
iii)  The Australian Accounting Standards issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, and

b)  whether or not those reports present fairly the Council's financial position and
operating result for the year; and

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 9
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/18

c) whether or not those reports accord with the council's accounting and other
records; and

d) whether or not the signatories know of anything that would make those reports
false or misleading in any way,

and include such information and explanations as will prevent those reports from being
misleading because of any qualification thatis included in the statement.

215(3) The council must ensure that the statement is attached to the relevant annual
financial reports.

The Financial Statements of Council have been prepared to comply with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, the Australian Accounting Standards, the Local Government
Code and Manual. Copies of the Financial Statements have been provided as an attachment
to this report (Appendix 1 and 2).

A statement must also be made in relation to the Special Purpose Financial Statements. The
statement must be made by resolution of Council, signed by the Mayor, at least one other
member of the Council, the Responsible Accounting Officer, and the Chief Executive Officer.

The statement by Council must indicate whether or not the Council's Special Purpose
Financial Reports have been drawn up in accordance with the Code and Manual.

The Special Purpose Financial Statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting and the Department of
Local Government guidelines "Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses: A Guide to
Competitive Neutrality."

As indicated above, the statements are required to be made to enable the Financial
Statements and the Special Purpose Financial Statements to be submitted for audit. The
statements are included within Appendix 1 and Appendix 2. The audit is scheduled to be
completed in the ensuing five weeks. Following completion of the audit, Council’s Auditors,
Audit Office, will provide a presentation on the Annual Financial Reports to the October 2019
Ordinary meeting of Council.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2019, Dubbo Regional Council undertook a
comprehensive revaluation of its roads and bulk earthwork infrastructure using an external
consultant. The written down value of the road infrastructure decreased by $122.459m and
the written down value of the bulk earthwork infrastructure increased by $83.150m. Under
normal circumstances, the decrease in the value of the roads infrastructure would reduce the
balance of the roads revaluation reserves in equity, however, upon amalgamation of Dubbo
City Council and Wellington Council all revaluation reserves were transferred to the
accumulated surplus balance. The balance of the roads infrastructure revaluation at this time
was $287.977m. If Dubbo Regional Council were to be able to account for the roads
infrastructure value decrease as if the revaluation reserve was available, the financial
statements would show the following results:

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 10

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 21




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37
- REPORTS

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2 SEPTEMBER 2019 AU D 19/18

Total income from continuing operations $181.133m

Total expenses from continuing operations $130.309m

Operating result from continuing operations $50.824m

Net operating result before capital grants and contributions $6.652m

Appendices:

11 Annual Financial Statements - General Purpose Financial Statements - 2018-2019 -
Refer to Audit

2l Annual Financial Statements - Special Purpose Financial Statements - 2018-2019 -
Refer to Audit
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Dubbo Regional Council

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2019

P DUBBO
d REGIONAL
"Great communlty, great councit” ‘1 COUNCIL.
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Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Contents

1. Statement by Councillors & Management

2. Frimary Financial Stalements:
Income Statement

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Statament of Financial Pasition
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

3. Notes to the Financial Statements

4. Independent Auditor's Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])
On the Finandal Statements (Sect417 [3])

Qvervlew

| mancial Statements 2019

Page

o o~N;aL P

a5
36

Dubtio Regronal Council 5 consituted under the | ocal Govemment Act 1993 [HSW) and has ifs pnopal place of business at

Church Shreet
Dubba NSW 2830

Council's guding pnnciples are detalled m Chapter 3 of the LGA and ndudas.

= principles applying io the exerdse of functions generally by coundil
= prnciples to be applied when making decisions,

= pmcples of community paricipation,

«  pmncples of sound finanaal management, and

principles for strategic planriing rafaling to the development of an infegrated pianning and reporing framewark.

A description of the nature of Council's aperations and ifs principal adivities are provided in Naole 2(b)

Ihrough the use of the mtemet, we have ensured that cur reporbing s fenely, complete and svailable at minmum cast. All
press releases, financial statements and cther informaticn are pubhicly avaitable on our website: www dubbo nsw.gov.au
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I'mancial Siatements 2013

Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

tatement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Secfion 413{2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended)

The atlached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordamce withc
the Loca Government Ad 1983 (NSW) (as amended] and the regulafions made thereundar,
lhe Auslralian Accounbing Stendands and olher ponouncements of he Auslraian Accounbng Standa s Bosd

«  the Local Government Code of Accounting Fraclice and Fmancial Reporiing.

Ta the best of our knowledge and belief, these stalerments:
present fairly the Council's operating result and financial positicn far the year
« gorond wilh Councils accounbng and olber reconds.

We are not aware of any matier thal would render these faise of mi ing in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 28 October 2013,

Hen Shiekds Anna Jonas DA
Mayor Deputy Mayor
28 Oclober 7019 28 Oclober 2019
Michae! Mchlahon Jene Besssmglinasaighle
Chief Executive Dfficer Responsible Accounting Officer
28 Ocinber 2015 2B Oclober 2019
Page 3l &
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Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Original
unaudited
budgel Actual
2013 $°000 Molos 2013
I fram continuing op
Revenus:
61782 Rates and annual charges cl 2 438
42300 User charges and fees * 46563
5155 Inloresl and wvesimenl ievenue & 6834
223  Other revenues 7] 1954
744 Granls and conliibulions provided for operaling purposes. 3 18610
24203  Granls and conlnbibons provided for capilsl purroses ¥ 48172
Other income:
241 Net gains from the disposal of assets 5 a3
Met share of interests in pint ventures and associates using “ 23
. theequiymethod T
157.647  Total incoms from conlinuing operations 185,133
Expenses from continuing operations
47011 Cmployee benefits and on-cosis 4 A1.423
4037 DBorewing costs ] 4430
278> Materials and contracts 1 38 (%
31523 Depreciation and amorisation ad 28406
14,/63  Other expenses & 16,800
- Revaluaticn decrement / imparment of IFF&C u ) 177,458
125691 Total from inuing cperations 252,068
31,953 Operating result from continuing operations (67,635)
31,953 Net operating result for the year (67,635)
314953 Netoperating result attributable to counci (67 B3n)
7744 Net operaling result for the year before grants and contributions (115,807)

provided for capital purposes

I mancial Siatements 2019

30542

0 Ihe Counce has nol restated comparatives when intial'y 200l ing AASH 9. |he camparative nlormation has been preparec under

AASB 124 Finanvial instuments. Recognilion and Measurement

The above Income Slalemen shauld be read in conpuncion wilh the accompanying nales.
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| mancia Sietements 2013

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2019

5°000 Ml 2019 2018 *
Met operating result for the year (as per Income Statement} (67,836 94 348
COther comprehensive income:

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequenty ko the operating result

Cain {loss) an revaluation of IPPAE W a1 162 47062
Toll}{'rllmi which will not be reclazsifisd subssquently to tha operafing
resu

91,182 47062
Total other comprehensive Income for the period ) 5_}:-‘_132: ) 4._7-‘.'}9‘_2;
Total comprehensive income for the year 23,547 133408
Total cer income e Coundl 2E54T 136,408

0! The Counzil has nol estated comparatives when mibally applying AASE 9 The comparafive infarmation has been prepared under
AASA 139 Fnaneka! insinments nrrmgnrum ard Mrazurement

The sharve Statement of Comprehiersive Inomme should be mad in corfunchon with the accompanying noies

Page Sol B8
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| mancial Stetements 2013

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Position
gs at30.Juns 2019

5°000 Hales 2019 s
ASSETS

Current assats

Cash and cash equivalen assaks &Gl 47179 36,755
Investments ) 81,530 89 NBE
Recoivables 7 23570 243m
Inventones & 2844 1873
Olher b 464 B63
Total current assets 155387 149738
Non-cumrent assels

Invesiments e 104,001 108 664
Receivables. £ 287 628
Inventones % 4,076 3075
Infrastructure, propery, plant and equipment %aj 2004, 1453 23|I
Invesiments sccounted for using the eguity method u 14993 1484
Ciher & _ - B~ 3
Tatal non-current assats 2 515,155 2500074
TOTAL ASSETS __2ET0.542 2650712
LIABILITIES

Current liabilites

Payables w 12630 12,038
Income received in advance w 414 328
Borrowings 2 PRE 977
Provisiens i 13,198 13,465
Total current iabilties 31,881 31053
Mon-current liabilities

Payables L 1 1
Rormwings £ 57,228 6243
Provisions L . 5327 1546
Tatal non-current liabiliies 62,556 56,0881
TOTAL LIABILITIES 0 M7 97 934
Net assats 2576326 2562778
EQUITY

Accumulated sumplus t2a 2315245 2 383 280
Revalualion reserves 21 81089 1BIRAR
Council equity interest _ 2576325 _ 2552778
Total equity 2576325 2552778

0 The Cowici has nel reskled omparalives when inbally applying AASE 3 The comparalive nformation has been prepared under
AAER 120 Finanels! instments” ROcaarition ard Moasurement

The aharee Statement of Financd Festtion shauld be e i con unchion with the soonmpamying nates

Pge ol &

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE Page 17

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 28




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 - REPORTS | | ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

APPENDIX NO: 1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFERTO ITEM NO: AUD19/18
AUDIT

Nnancral Statements 701

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
far tho year cnded 30 June 2019

2013 zas ¢
IPPEE IPPEE

Accurmilated revaluation Tatal Accumulated revaluation Tatal

&'o00 Metes Surplus reserve equity surplus reserve equity

Opening talance 2,302 a0 169,636 2552778 225153 12 8% 2414370

Restaled apening balance _ 2352080 169898 ZSb2//B _2FMEM 12EE 2414370

Nel operaling resull lor Ihe year . (E7 635} — (67T535) . 91,346 — 91,346

Restated net operating resuft for the period (BT 635} — (67 635) 81,346 - 41 316
Other comprehensive income

—Gam [oss) on fevakiaton of 117°&E o= - 91,182 91182 . - LI 4062

Other comprehensive incoms 91,182 92 q0s2 £7.002

Total comprehenalve income T (GEm) 91187 PEnAF 9136 AL 13408

Equity — balance at end of the reparling period _ 23545 61080 2576395 2387680 186368 253773

111 The Councll has not restated comparabives when Inftaly applying AASE 9. The comparabve Iiormalion has besn prepared under AASE 138 Fnance’ simerds. Recogrion and
MeasLEment

The abcve Statement of Changes in Equity should be read In corjunchion with the accompanying notes.

Page Tl 36
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Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Original
unaudited
budgsl
2013 $°000 pioh
Cash flows from aperating activilies
Recaipts
61683 Rates and annual charges
42790 User charges and fees
5605 Investment aid milemsl ievenue recoved
43483  Grants and contnubons
Bonds, deposits and relenlion amounts roceived
203 COlher
Payments
(47,086) LEmployee benehis and on cosls
{30,810)  Malenals and contracts
(4,002) Bormowng costs
_(14763) Cther
58,850 Netcash provided [or used in) operating activities i
Cash flows from Investing activities
Roceipls
41646  Sale ol inveslmenl securilies
260  Sele of real estate assets
2480  Sale ofinfrasirudure, property, plant and equipment
-  Deferred deblors receipts
Paymoenls
- DPurchase of investment securities
{99,814) DPurchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
- Purchase of real estate assets
- Deferred deblors and advarices made
(55428) Netcash provided {or used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments
(4,927) Repayment of borrowings and advances
(1,92 Netcash flow provided (used in} financing activities
‘1x53c¢) Netincrease/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
3000 Plus: cashand cash equivaients — beginning of year ==
1,500 Cash and cash equivalents — end of the year iz
Additional Information
143288  plus: Investments on hand —end of year &b}
144,788 Tolal cash, cash equivalents and investments

The ahave Salemen| of Cash Flows shouiel be read i conpancion with lhe axrampaaying noes

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Finane

Actual
2013

#1777
47063
B85/
51515
7

71

41 887)
(37 414)
(2,809)
(16,678)

68,312

103,568
2678
2645

461

(1,167)
(67,503}

(3.515)
86)

(52,919)  _

{4 969
[ uoaj

10,424

36,755
47,179

185 351

232510

ial Swtements 2019

Actuai
2ma

56 724
58031
6404
69301
palil
5329

(38,645)
(8,109)
(3,885)
(785
99,750

220 516
4460
1572

BG4

(256.275)

(54,312)

1,210
@19}

(64,095

4 652
4 7]

11,003
25752
36,755

197732
233,487

Page Bul 56
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Cantents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Stalemenis

MNote

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23(a)
2:4(b)

23{c)
24

Details

RBasis of preparaban

Council functionsiactivities — financial information

Council functionsiactivities — component descriptions

Income from conlinuing oporalions

Expensas from cantinuing cperations

Gamns or lesses fram the disposal, replacement and de-recognifion of assets
Cash and cash equivalent asseis

Investments

Reslneled cash, cash cquivalenls and nvesiments  delabs
Recaivables

Inventories end ather assets

Infmslruclure, properly, planl and couiprment

Externally resirncled infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Payables and bamowings

Provisions

Aceumulbsled surplus, reva luslion reserves, changes naccounling polioes, changes in
accaunling eshimales and ermors.

Statement of cash flows — acditienal infarmation
Interests in other entides

Commilrmenls

Contingencies and other assatsMiabilihios not recognised
I inancial sk management

Matearial budget variatinns

Far Value Measuremenl

Relatad Farty | ransactions

Statement of developer contributions.

[inancial result and financial posifion by fund

Slalemenl of performance messures  comsolidaled resulls
Statamant of performance measures — by fund

Additional Councll Disclosures {unaudited)

Statement of performance meesures — consolidated resufts (graphs)
Gouncil informalion and conlaclt delails

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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I'mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 1. Basis of preparation

These: linancial slelements were sulhorsed lor ssue by Council on 28 Gdober 2019, Gounal has The poser lo amend and
renssue thesa hinanaal statements.

Ihe prmapal accounting poiocs adopiod n the pr 1 of hase O ud finanaal am sei oul below
I hese polices have been consistently appied io all the years presented, unless alhenvise stated

Ihese general purpose: financial stabements hawe been prepared in accordance vaih-
« Australian Accounting Standards and Ausirafian Accounting [nterpretalions ssued by the Australian Accounting
Slandards Board
= lhe i omd Goverument Ad 1993 (NSW) and Regulslions and
«  lhe loml Governmend Codae of Accouning Frachce and Rinsnoal Repoitng

Council is deemed to be a not for-prafit entity for the pupcse of preparing these financial statements.

The inancial slalemenls are presenled inAuslmalion dolars and e oonded lo e neares! Boausand dollacs:

{a) Mew and Jed standards adopted by Council
Dunng the year, Counal adopted &l standards which were mandalorly effectra for the frst fme at 20 June Z018.

Those newly adopled stendards which had an impact on repored position, periommance endor dsciosures have been
descussod nMole 12

ib} Historlcal cost conventlon
Tnese financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost mnvention except far:

= colain Tmancial assels and labiilics al lair value throogh profil or loss and availsbleloesalke Tronecsl assds, which
are al valued al & valoe,
= lhewrile down ol any asszl on Lhe bess of impanmenl (i wananted ), and
= cerzin classes of non-current assets (eg infrastruchire, propery, plant and equipmentand invesiment property) that are
accourted for at fair wvalualion.
The aconel bass of acoounling hes &l been applied in their preparalion
{c) SkgnHicant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparalion of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounling estimatas. | also requires maragamant
o exerdse its judgement in the process of applying the Council’s accounling pofices.

Eslimales and judgemenls sme conlinsly evelusled and are based an hislodcal experence and dber luclors, including
expectabeons of fulure events thal may have a fmancal mpad on e Councl and that are baleved o be easonsble under
he arcumstances.

Critical accounling estimates and assumptions

Counci makes cshimales and assumplions coreming the fulure.

Ihe resulbng accounting eshmates will, by defintion, seidom equal tha relsted acius! mesulls.

The estimales snd assumplions that have & significant risk of causing a material adjpstment to the camying 2moanis of assets
and liabiiiies within the next financial year include:

(i) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

{ii] csbimaled remedialion pravisions

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies

{i) Impaimen] of recoivablos

wonlnued on neal page . Page 10l 8
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I mancial Statements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Council has made a significant prdgement about the impaimient of 8 number of &5 recevabies  wlier Nale 7
Monles and other assets received by Councll
(a) The Consolidaled Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Sechon 10%1) of the Local Govemment A 1983 (NSW), all money and properly recaved
by Council 1s held in the Counal's Consolidated Fund unless i 1s required 1o ba hekd m the Covecls [rust Fund.

The consolidated fund and other entities through wich the Council controls rescurces fo camy en s fundions have been
included in the finsncial statements forming part of this reporl

The feliowing entities have been induded as part of the fund:

»  Generd purposc operalions
»  \Vaterservice
= Sewerage service

(b) The Trust Fund
In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Govermnmment Ad 1883 [NSWV) (25 amended), a separate and
dishinct trust fund is mainianed ko account for all money and property recaned by the Counal m trust whch mast ba appliad
only for the purpuses of, o iIn accordance with the trusts refating o those monies.

Trust monies and property subject to Councit's control have been included in these repotts.
Irust momes and progerty hekd by Counal but not subgect fo the controf of Councl have been excluded from these reports.

A separale dalemoril of monies held in the sl und is available lor mspedion al lhe Caunol oflice by any posson free of
chamge

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, exponses and assefs are recognised net of the amcunt of asscciated GST, unless the GST mcurred is not
recoverable from the taxation autherity. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisiion of the assel or as part
cf the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated indusive of the amountof GS | recenable or payabie. [he netamount of GS | emvarable
from, cr payable to the taxation autherity is induded with cther receivables or payabies in the Statement of Financia Position.

Cash flows are presented on & qross basis. The CST components of cash flows ansing from invesling or financing aclivibes
Lhal are recoverable from, or payable Lo, lhe laxalion authoily are presented as opemling cush lows.

New accounting standards and interpretstions issued not yet effective

New ting and interpr i issued but not yet effective

Cetlain now accounling slandards and inlerprelalions have boen publ
penods {and which have nol been carly adopled by Gounail}

o thal me ml mandalaey lar 30 June 219 ngording

Council's 1t of these new and inter fons (where they have been deemed as having 2 meleal impact
en Council's future financial performance, financial positon and cash flows) are set out below

AASE 16 Leases

AASB 16 will result {for YE 19/20 and beyond) in almost all operating leases being recognised on the bafance sheet by Coundil
(alnngisde existing finance leases) with the distindion between nperaling and fnance eases removed.

Under the new standard, a financial labidy {le. a lease kabidy) and an asset (8. a nghi to use the leased dem) will be
recognised for nearly all armangements where Cound! commits itself {0 paying a rental fee for the use of 3 specific assel.

conlnued on nexl page
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I'mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)
Ihe only excepbons are shot-torm and low-valuc: Ieases whoch are exemipt from the acoounting (but net disclosam)
maquiremants of AASE 16 Leases.

Council staff have reviewed all of Council's leasing amangements over the last 12 months teking info considerafion he new
Irase srocounling rules in AASE 16 (applicable fmom 1/7/13%

AASDE 16 will {on Lthe whole) affect Council's acmounting for existing operating lease agreements thal are in place asat 30/6/13.

As d Lhe dale of sulhorisalion of lhese irencial slale ments, Council does nol consider el his slandards is ke o have g
malonial impad on lhe Council's fulume lnancial slalements, linancal pesilon, rencs porfarmanoe or cash Rowes

Counci's adivities as a lessor are not material and hence Coundil doss not axpect any sigrificant impact on the financial
statements. |lowever, seme additonal disciosures will be required from rexd year

AASB 15 Revenue from G with Ci and iated

AASD15 introduces a five-step process for revenue recognition, wilh the core pancile of the new stardard being for enliies
In recoqnise revenue to depict the transfer of good s or services In cusiomers in amounts thal reflect the ronsiderstion (that
B, payment) to which the ertity expeds to be: ertitied in exchange: Tor those ooods or services.

Accounbing policy changes will anse in the tmng of revenre recogmilion, realment of confracts costs and contracts wisch
contain & financing element.

Councils should assess cach revenue sleam bul padiadar impact s expeced for grant monme and sales which ane pad
belon: e commencement of lhe rling period

The changes in revenue recogrilicn requirements in AASB15 may cause changes te the timing and amount of nevenue
recorded in the financia slatements a5 wel &s additional disclesures

Council does nol consider thal il 1his slandand s ikely b have a malensl mmpeact on e Counels ol Tnancsal stafemenls,
financial pesition, inancal performance or cash Tows.

AASB 1058 income of NFP Entities
AASEH 1058 supersedss all the income recognhion requrements relatng ko councils, previoushy n AASH 100 Coninbubons.
Under AASB 1058 the fulure timing of income recogniion vl depend an whether the transadion gives rise fo a labilty o

other performance obligetion {a promise to transler a good er service) relafed to an esset {such as cash or another assef)
mceved by an cnlily

AASD 1058 also applies when & coundl receives volunleer services orenfers into olher trar ions in which the consk
Io acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the council's objecive is prindpally io enadle
the asset o further the council's objactives.

Upon inikal recognion of he assal, this standand requires counal ta consider whether any ather hinanoal statement elements
tcalied related ) should be n w2 wilh the 19 standard, such as

{a) conlnbulions by ownors

(b revenue, ar a monlacl liabilily arsmg fom a conlract with a custome:s
{) a1 beaasee Dbkl

{d)a financial instument, or

{e)a provision

Io be conlrolled y o E "Hmssl‘l} Uu.-:run:il m.:ummu = H Iahlll}. ﬂl llw
excess of lhe lar value of e ranstor over any ekled amounts ecngmsed Courcll will Lhen recognse wecome & i1 salshes
its cbligations under the transfer similarty 1o income recogniticn in refation Lo performance cbligations under AASE 15

N lhe lransadion does nol enable counci o acguire or construd a reosgrisatrle non-finencial assel o be omibrofied by cound,
thin any cxress of the inilial carying amounl of Lhe moognsed assel over the rodsled amounls & ooogresod &5 momme

wonlnued on neal page . Page 120186
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

I mancial Sietements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Basis of preparation (continued)

Council does not consder that that this standard s likely ba have a maicnal impact on the Counal's future financial statements,
hnaricial pestion, inancial performance or cash flows.

AASE 2013-8 A dments to A A ting ~ Right-of-Use Assets of Not-for-Profit Enfities

This Standand provides alemparary opbion lor nol-lar-profit erliies lo nol apply e Fair value weial imcaseement requiements
fer nght-of-use assets arsing under leases with significantly below markef lerms and corditicns, prindpally 1o enable the enfity
le further its objectives {for example, concessionary Cr peppercom leases).

The Slandard requires an enlily [hal dlecls lo apply Ihe ophon fi e measmes & dass or dessses of such ighloluse sels al
rosl ratheyr bhan Fair vabe) b nclude sddibonsl disdosures inthe fmsncisl stalermiils 1o amsume osers undecsland e effosdts
on the inanaal poshon, financal pedormance and cash flows of the entfy ansing fram these kases

As per & NSW Office of Locsl Govemment recommendation, Councit has elecled o messure right-ofuse asseds (under 8
concessionary of pepporcom lease) d cosl The slandard requires addiional disclosunes be proveded in refalion lo below
markel-valin leases messured al cod

Council has not applied any pronouncements before its operative date in the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2018
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for tho year cnded 30 June 2019

Note 2(a). Council functions/activiies — financial information

Mnancial Statements 7015

Note 2{p).
Grants mcluded Total assels beld
Imcoma from Expenses from Operating result from n incoms from {cuwrment and
continuing operations continuing operations continuing opsrations coninuing operations non-currenty
$'000 2019 208 2019 2018 2019 0 2018 W1e 2078 2018 2018
Functlons or activities
Govermance - - 614 303 E11) {303} - - - -
Administration 1,665 1,715 1776 1784 (57) 431 - - 187 EAT rdt
Public erder and safety 1470 277 4,051 4021 {2.681) {1264} 521 1.074 .30 10.551
Health A6 13 9 353 {53) (340} - - - -
Enviranment 25,435 18,507 15545 11,023 T 796 &284 1044 104 240,200 02,579
Communiy services and education 3,759 3519 4944 4751 {1.185) {1222} 2736 2241 147 -
Housing and community amenities 1,333 1,445 5400 4157 f1,067) grzy 192 - 2713 3358
Water supplies. 26,585 530,563 19,533 18,850 9,450 12,003 .74 121 30 5316 B0 £S5
Sewcrage services 2947 21.5372 14 575 125TE 6204 8356 227 21 342 434 234015
Recreation and culturs 5,893 18,172 23325 21,527 {17.432) 3.359) 27254 12,9593 140419 26,499
Mining, manufacturing and constuchan 1,067 1,184 1,687 2,034 E20) (8BS} - — 1,957 1,012
Transport and communication 38630 51.575 148877 31158 {110.238) 20417 24272 2067 13873 1030728
Econamic arairs 5,710 15,001 11,424 5,744 {1784) 5237 STE 2,783 3,782 45,581
Share of gainsf{losses) in assocaes and 49 151 - - 49 51 - - 1553 1,484
Joinl ventures (using the equity method)
Generl purpose income e 46453 . . - ... .- S o - 1 om0 - =
Total functions and activities 185133 382 NP e 17281 (B ER) 91,46 i Slhih PEMAHMY 7B AP
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I'mancial Stetements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descripltions

Details relating lo the Councils funcli fwities as ried in Note 2{a) are as fallows:

Governance

Includes costs relating to Ceundil’s role s a compenent of democratic govemment, induding elections, members” fees and
expenses, subscriplions to local authority sssodalions, meetings of Council snd policymaking commilees, public disclosure
{e.g. GIMA}, and legislative complianoe.

Administration
Includes corporate support and other suppart senvices, engineearing works, and any Council poiicy compliance.

Public order and safety
Includes Coundfs fire and emergency services levy, fire prolection, emergency sewvices, enforcement of requiations and
anima conlml

Health
Includes immunisation, food contrel, health centres etc

Envirenment

Includes noxiots plants Bnd nsectvermin control; other envimnmental pmoledion; sclid waste manecement, moiuding
domaslic waste, olher wesle mansgement; other sanistion; and gahage, shest clesning, drainege and Slommwater
managemenl

Community services and education

Includes administration and education; social prolection (weffare), migrant, Aboriginal and other community services and
admini ion ing accr fon — as il is covered under "housing and community amenities”), youth services, agad
and disabled persens services: childrer's’ services, including famity day care; child care; and other family and children services.

Housing and community amenities
Includes public cemetenes; puble romecmcnoes; sircet ighiing: lown plannmg; other community amenibes, ncluding housing
development and accommodation for familwes and children, aged persons, disabled parsons, migrants and Indigenous persons

Water supplies
Provide safe refable and cost effeclive water supply that calers for the susianable growih.

Sewerage services
Provision of an cmvironmen lally responsible sowmage sondoe thal manksins e heailh of e ommonily ost eflfedvely. sod
calers for Lhe suslainable growlh

Recreation and culture
Includes public libraries; museums; art gallenes; community centres and hals, including public halls and parforming ards
venues; sporting grounds and venues; swimming peols, parks; gardens; [akes; end ofher sporfing, recreaticnel and cuffursl

Mining, man ufacturing and construction
Includes bulding control, quames and pits, mineral resources, and abatins.

Transport and communication
Urban local, wrban regional. indudes ssaled and unsesled roads, bridges, foofpaths, parking areas, and semdromes

Economic effairs
Includess camping amas and caravan parks, louism and area. promobon, mdusinal dewelopment prendion, sale yads and
markels; real cstate development; commercial ; and other 13 =3
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I'mancial Statements 2013

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 3. Income from continuing operalions
5000 2013 2018

(a) Rates and annual charges

Ordinary rates

Reselenbal 19,981 17818
Fammland 11 86 Li/8
Mining ? 7
Rusincss L. rie T o84
Less: pensioner rebates (mandalory) D251 (036)
Rates levied to ratepayers ) T <

Pensmoner rale subsdies receved paiil ikl
Total ordinary rates . wers st
Annual charges

toursuant o 5453, = A4, s 4HB, 501 B 5 61}

Domeshic wasle management serices 7308 6,009
Waker supply services [k i €285
Sowerage sovees 17 GE1 1708
Drainage 1460 1,383
Wasle management services (non-domestic) 603 539
Less: pensioner rebales {mandalory) {Gok ) E#)
Less: pensioner rebates (Council pelicy) {105y -
Annual charges levied 20104 260683
Pensioner subsidies received:

Wailor 175 i
- Sewerage 119 21
- Domestic weste management 117 104
Total annuasl charges - ﬁﬂﬁ? } 2_0111__2?
TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES . 62,438 57,550

Council has used 2016 year valustions provided by the NSV Valuer General in calculating its rates

Accounting policy for rates and charges

Rales, annual charges, granis and contribulions fincluding developer contnbulions) are recognised as revenue when the
Council chtains control over the assels comprising these receipts. Developer confributions may only be expended for the
purpeses for which lhe conlnbulions were reguired, bt te Counol may apply contnbubons soording o e poonbes
eslablished in work schedules

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual chamges is obtained at the commancement of the rafing yearas f s an
enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the mtes.

nlnued on neal page . Page 16l 88
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Stalements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 3. Income from continuing operalions (continued)
5000

(b) User charges and fees

Specific user charges

toar 5502 - spwdi (G abval us’ cha vea)

Waler supply services

Sewerage sevices

Wesle gement se vices (o !}
Tatal specific user chargas

Qther user charges and fees

(i) Fees amd charges — statutory and regulatory Funclions (per = 608}
Kegulalory! slalutory fees.

Talal fees and charges - statulory/regu lalory

conlnued on neal page .
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2013

17757
4627
3,008

26257 _

2113
2113

2018

18515
1542
3279

26,338
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APPENDIX NO:1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 3. Income from continuing operalions (cantinued)

I mancial Stetements 2012

5000 2013 2078
(i} Fees and charges — other {incl. general user charges (per 5.608))

Aercdroms 3671 3513
Caravan park 2081 251
Cemateries 45T T
Leaseback fees — Cauncil vehicles 333 334
RMS (lormerdy RTA) dames (slale mads nol conlmlled by Counci) 191 7360
Tourism 1350 96
Waler service tonnechions 52 48
Caves oniry fees 4 AT
Weslern Plains Cultural Centre 13 107
Aquelic leisure tonln 515 475
Family day care 406 1
Iodder sales ‘greengrove’ effiuent reuse propery ¥ 450
Od dubbo gadl i /8
Privale works 418 n
Public halis 1462 15872
Rambow cotlage long day care centre 2R G40
Reainnal Ivesioci markets 33539 4097
Sewer plan dralling lees a5 8
Shewground 261 2
Sparling lacililins Ak 254
Cther BB/ 1,588
Total fees and charges - other . 1805 ou 13
TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 46 383 54,445
Accounting policy for usar charges and laes

User charges and lees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.

conlnued on neal page .. Page 180l 86
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 3. Income from continuing operalions (continued)
5000
(c) Interest and invesiment revenue (induding losses)

Interest on financial azsets measured at amortised cost
— Ovardua rates and annual charges [incl speoal purpose mtes)
- Cash and investmenls
Delered deblors
— Qther
Amortisation of premiums and discounts
— Interest free (and interest reduced) loans provided
TOTAL INTEREST AND INVESTMENT REVENUE

Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue reies and annual rlemes (geneml fund)
General Counci cash and investmenis
Restricted imvestmenis/funds — external:
Development contributions

- Section 7.11

- Soction 64

Water flund operations

Sewenge und operalions

Total interest and investmenl revenue

Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
Interest income s recogresed using the effechive interest rate at the date that mlerest = e=mad

conlnued on neal page ..

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 41
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2013

243

1,163

1ARS

6,824

2018

714
€147
14
44

o

6434

113
3,808

243
41

4343
6494
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

I'mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 3. Income from continuing operalions (continued)

5000 2013 2018

(d) Gther revenues

Rental incorme — other council properiies G50 4T3
Fines 278 182
Commissions and agency fess T g
Insurance claims recoveries 98 110
Caves | caravan park kosk sales 120 148
StateCover WHE Incentive 215 215
Clher 8t s
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 1,834 1,359

Accounting polley for other revenue

Counci recognises revenue wien the amount of revenus can be relably measured, 1 5 prabable that flure sconamic benefits
will ficw to the Council and speclfic criteria have been met for each of the Coundi's aciivities as described below. Council
bases ts estimates on hislorical results, baking into ideration Me type af , the type of icn snd the i

of each amangement.

Parking fees and fnes are mmgnsad as revanue when the serace has been provded, or whan the pansly s bean spplisd,
whichever ccours first

Ferial income is accounled for on & stright-ine basis over the lease ferm.

Cther noema s recomed when the payment 1s due, the value of ihe paymant is notified, or fre payment 1S recenved, wiichever
eceurs first

conlnued on neal page .. Pange 20 of B8
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 3. Income from continuing operalions (continued)

Operating Operaling

I'mancial Stetements 2012

Capital Capital

5'000 ap18 s a1 2018
(e) Grants
General purpose {unbied)
Current year allocation
Hnancel assstance — gensral component 8824 89736 - -
Financial assistance — local roads component . 1659 1685 - -
Total general purpose 11 408 1,421 — —
Specific purpoze
Waker supplies - - 5 -
SowrEge sevioes 37
Bushfire and emergency serqoes o3 16 1200 1,833
Cmplcyment and traning programs: 13 - - -
StomMood damage - 39 - -
leritage and cultural 120 "4 - -
Library 142 164 - -
Moz werls sl Tha
Street lighting 19 136 — —
Transpor {roads ko recovery) £ 2855
Iransport {pther reads and bndges funding) 8 B B8589 10,865
Local infrast. renews| scheme interest subsidy - - 335 o7
lounsm ] - FA0 78
Community sefvices 194 52 — 216
Family day cac: 1444 132
Pard parertal leave 110 iz - -
Rainbow cotiage long day care cenine 631 515 - -
Sporling lacililies 50 1347 12715
Stomweter 2 - - -
Other 250 2813
Total epecific purposs ~ 415?? o 3,47_52-37
Total grants 16,384 3,528
Grant revenue is atiributable to:
- Commonwsalh funding 11,94 13,/M 21816 o
- State lunding 4399 4,355 6252 23854
Clher lunding ~ 61 . i .
T 16384 A0S vRpeA _ masoa
cwnlnued on neal page . Page 210l 86
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Naote 3. Income from continuing operalions (continued)

5'000 Ntes
(f) Contnbutions

Developer contributions:

{s7.4 & s7.11 -EP&A Act, 564 of the LGA):
Cash eontributians.

5 64 — water supply contribulions.

5 64 — sewemoe senvice contributions

S711 openspac:

5711 —drainage

S 711 —roadwarks

Voluntary planning agreements

Total developer contributions — cash

Tatal developer contributions a1

Gther contributions:

Cash contributians.

RM3S contnbubons {regonal roads, block grant)
Cther

Sporling lacililes

Infrastrudure cortributions (non-cash) — waler
Infrastnudure contributions (non-cesh) — sewerage
Infrastudure conlibulions {non-cash)  drainage
Infrastruciure cortributions (non-cesh) — madworks
Infiastudum conlibulions (non-cash) — foolpaths
Infrastructure contnbutions (non casn) — land under

mads

Total ether contributions — cash
Tatal other contributins

Total confributions

TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

Accounting policy for grants and contributions

Operating
iyl ]

2,228
18,610

Operating
28

2005
12005

12005 20,104

30,082

I'mancial Stetements 2012

Capital
xn1

14,707

_ 48,172

14,707

Capital
2018

2957
1575
8RS
166
1476
136

6A7S

6475

25
1011
1851
2484
2541
1090

1801
19,801
26,276

60,804

Control over grants and contributions is nermally obtained upon their receipt {or acquitial) and is valued at the fair walue of

the granted or conlributed asset at the date of transfer.

Whene granls or mnlnbuions emgnised as ownues duning The frencal yesr were oblsived on condifon thal They be
expended in a particular manner, or used over a particular period, and thosa condfions were un discharged at reporting date,

the unused grant or contribution & disclosed above.

M liabiily k= recognised in resped of revonue Lhal s redprocal in nalwe ko the exdonl that Tho oguisie sevice hes not been

pravided al reporing dale

o lnued on neal page ..
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 3. Income from continuing operalions (continued)
5000
(g) Unspent grants and contributions

Certain granis and contributions are obtained by Council en condition
that they be spent in a spacifiad manner:

Grants

Unexpanded at the clese of the previous reporting period

Add  captal grants ecognised n the curment penod but nat yelt sponk
Less; capial grants recognised m 3 previols reparing pencd now spent
Unsxpended and held as reslricled assels

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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I'mancial Stetements 2073

2013 2018

5240%
B.848

{19,785}

41,162
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

I mancial Siatements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 4. Expenses from continuing operations

$7000 2013 2018

{8} Employee benefits and on-costs

Salaries and wages 35,560 33630
Travel cxpenscs 310 300
Cmplcyee leave entitlements (CLC) 4357 3830
Superanriualion 39w a7
Workers' compersslon insiranke 1,286 937
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 169 167
Paymoll lax 233 0
Iraning costs {other than salanes and wages) 37 16
Cther 316 237
Total employee costs . 46,505 43 607
Less: captalised cosls 2.082) ©A2)
TOTAL EMPLCYEE COSTS EXPENSED 41,423 37,187
MNumber of ‘Tull-lime equivalen!” employees (FTF) al year end 458 453

Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-cosfs
Cmplicyee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by [he empioyee.

Relirmen! bonoli ohigarhons

All amployees of the Council ane ertitied to benefits cn retirement, disability or death. Council contritutes to vancus defnad
benefit pians and defined contribution plans en behalf of its employees.

Superanntmbon plans

Contributions to defined contributicn pians are recognised as a1 expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recagnised as an asset o the extent that a cash refund or 8 reduction in the fulure payments is avalable

Council pattipates n a defined benefit plan under the | ocal Government Supemannuabon Scheme, however, sufficent
infermation to account for the plan as a defined benefit is nct availabie and therefore Counci accounts for fis ocbigelions fo
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its oblgations to defined confribulion pians, e as an expense when it becomes
payebie — refer to Note 16 for more information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)
5000 Hetes
(b} Borowing costs

{1} Interest bearing liability costs

Inlereslon loans

Total interest bearing liability cosis axpansad

(i) Other berrewing cosls

Iair value adjusiments on recognition of advences ard deferred debitors

- Remediaton kabiihes R
Total ether borowing costs

TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

Aceounting polley for borrowing costs
Bomuwying cosls meunred lor e constrochon of any gualibeing escl ane capials

I'mancial Stetements 2013

2013

3945

3948

46/
487

4,435

Ip complelz and pricparc the sssel lor s inlended use or sale Qlher bomowing oosts ame exponsed
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 4. Expenses from conlinuing operafions (continued)
5°000
(c) Materials and contracts

Raw materials and consumables

Conlraclor and onsullancy cosls

— confractor and consulancy costs (intemal audit BDO aliance)
Audiors remuneration *

Legal expenses:

- Legal expenses: planning and development

- Legal expanses: debt recovery

- Legal expenses. other

Operating keases:

— Operating kease rentals: minimum lease payments *
Total materals and contracts

TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS

Accounting policy for operating leazes

I'mancial Statements 2013

2013

22780
14764

134
&

118

195
38,010

2018

18 860
13,485
65
105

Leases in which a significant pertion of the risks and rewands of cwnership are not rensferred o Counal as lesseaara classifiad
operaling leases. Payments made under operating leases (nei of eny incentives received from e [essory are charged {o

Ihe income statement on a straight-line basis cver the period of the [ease.

1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:
Compulers

2. Auditer remunaration
During the year, the follswing fees were incurmed for senices provided by the eudilor
of Coundl, mdaled pradices and non-rels lod auddl fimes

Auditors of the Counell - NSW Auditer-General:

(i} Audil and other assurance services

Audil and review of finencial sialemenls

Remuneration for audit and other assurance services
Total Auditor-General remuneration

Non HEW Auditor-General audit firms

Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

Total Auditer remuneration

196 31

- 1896 _ Mt
134 105

134 105

134 105

R . SR
Page: 26 ol B
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 4. Expenses from conlinuing operations (continued)
57000 Mates 2013 2078
(d) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of intangibie assets and IPP&E

Depreciaticn and amortisation

Planl and equipment 4104 3787
Uifice equipment 430 286
Fumiture and filings 247 a
Land improvements {depreciable) i ans
Infrastructure:

Ruldings  non-specalised 1,167 479
— Buiidings - specalised Hr 2,00
— Other structures Feaz 3434
— Hoads w1 © 361
— Airporl rurways 430 429
- Stormwater drainage 1,046 an?
—Water supply network 5,123 5,067
- Sewerage networi 4 804 4502

Swimming pools iy 100
Other assels:

Clher 41 44
Relnstatement, rehabllitation and restoration asaets-

Tipasscls L CAL 01 156
— Quarmy assets St L2\ 13
Total gross depreclaion and amortisation costs 35,071 51./88
less capilalsed asls (3.585) [1581)
Total depreciatian and amortisatian costs 29,506 0407
Impairment / revaluation decrement of IFFEE
Infrastructure:

— Hoads i 177 4 sQ'_ - -
Total groas IPP&E impairment ! revaluation decrement costs 7
{reversals) : 122,455

Tetal IPP&E impairment / revaluation decrement costs /
{reversals) charged lo Income Statement 122,458

TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT / REVALUATION DECREMENT FOR
INTANGIBLES AND IPP&E 151,965 30,407

Acesunting poliey for depreclation, amertisation and impairment expenses of Infangibles and [PP&E

Depreclation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated wsing the siraight line methed to ellocete their cost, net of their residual values,
over lheir estimated useful lives. Usahul lives are induded in Nole 3 for [PPE essets.

Impalrment of non-financial assets

Council assals held al fair value thal are not held primarity for their abilily b genersle net cosh flow,_ and thet sre deemed io be
spercalsed, are no longer required to be tosbed for imparmicnt under AMSE 136 This s because these asscls sre assossed
on an annual basis to ensure that the camying amount 5 not matenally diferent from = value and themelore an mpamment
loss would be captured dunng ths assessment.

Intangible assels thathave an indefinite uselul lile, or are not vet availsb e for use, are fested annuelly far mpairment. or more

Irequently if events or chenges in circumstances indicate that they might be impeired. Other ssssis that do not meet the oriteds
above ara lestad forimpanmment whenaver avents or changes n crcsmstances indicste thal the cempng amount may not be
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I'mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 4. Expenses from continuing operations (continued)

recoverable An impaiment (oss s remgnised for the amount by which the assef's cemang amount cxceeds s mooverable
amount |he recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset's farr valuae less costs to sell and value m usa

lor the purposes of assessing impaimment, assels ere grouped af the fowest levels far which there are seperately idenfifiable
cash inflows thet are |amely independest of the cash inflows from olher assels of gmups of sssels {mash-generdling units)

Hon-hinanoal assels lhal sulfered an mpainmenl am revewed Tor possibic reversal of e mparment &l cach eeporling dele

Impaimment |osses for revalued assels are firsty offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the dass of asset,
with only the excess fo be recognised in the Income Staterent
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 4. Expenses from conlinuing operafions (continued)
5000
(e} Other expensas

Advertising

Had and doubfful debts

Contributionsdevies to olher levels of governmeant
Courncilor cxperses  omncills’ leesfommilles foes
Councillers’ and committee expenses {incl. mayor) — other {excluding fees above)
Donations, conlributions and assistance to clher orpanisatians {Section 356)
Fleclion expenses

Clectricity and healing

Insurance

Postage

Printing and stationery

Sirool lighling

lelephone and communicahons

Valuation fees

Vehle regslaton

Water resource charge

Contributions ko emergency sevices

Credit card merchant fees

ramily day care —lee relief

Properly renlal

Subscripion shires associalion

Other

Total other expenses

TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

Accounting policy for other expenses

I mancial Stetements 2013

2013

GOf
296

261
251

4 452
1661

1457

1,756
203
166
145
362

1,021

71

[
%
T
16,900
16,800

Qlher expenscs are recorded onan accruaks basis as he Coundl receves he goods or seivices
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e
1,156
18
1228
48
45
_ga3
16,069
16,069

Page 2901 88

Page 40




APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019 ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

- REPORTS

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 52

APPENDIX NO:1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

| mancial Statements 2013

Nate 8. Gains or losses from the dispasal, replacement and de-recognition of asseis

5000

Plant and aquipmsnt
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment

Less: camying Emount of piant and equipment assets soldiwrittan off

Het galni{loss) on dispozal

Infrastruciure
Less: camying emount of infrestrudture assels soldwritten off
Met galnf{loaa) on disposal

Real estale assets held for seie

Proceeds from cisposal - redl estale assels

less camying smounl ol izal cslale assels soldRnllen off
Met gainf{ioss) on disposal

Invasiments

Proceeds Irom disposabredemplonsmalunbes  inveslments
Less: camying amount of investments scidiredeemed' matured
HNet gainf{ios =) on disposal

MNET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Accounting policy for disposal of azzet=

Motes

W)

2019 2018
IB4 157
26012) (M7

A3 299
1,333) (838)
33 (&38)
2675 4460
sy [y
1,893 3345
103 566 20,316
(103,581 (220.918)
703 2,752

Gansamnd nsses on dsposals arc dotomincd by companng proceeds with camying amaunt. [hes: are moluded inthe Income

Stetement

The gain or loss on sake of an assel is delermined when conbrol of the gssd has nevocsbly pessed o e buyer and e

asselis de-mangnese
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Naote 6(a). Cash and cash equivalent assets
$°000

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and at bank

Cashequivalend assols

- Deposts at call

Total cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents

I mancial Satements 2019

2013 2018
i 216
RIALI 6538
47176 36,755

lNor Stalement of Cash Mow presentalion purposes, cash and cash equivalents indude. cish on hand. deposits held o calt
with financal nsttubions, other short tem, highly ligud nvestments with aonginal matunties of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known arnounts of cash and which are subject to en msignificant risk of dhanges in vakue: and bank
cverdrafis. Bank overdrafts are shown within barmowings in current liabiities on the Statement of Financial Fosition

Nate 6(b). Investrments

2019 2019
§°000 Current  Non-current
Investments
a. ‘Financial assets at fair value threugh profit and loss'
b. 'Finandal asscls al amolised cosl’ / held ko /1,330 104 001
malily’ {(2018)

Total Investments _ 81330 104,001

TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

128,508 104,001
Financial aszets st amortised cozt/ heid to maturity [2018)

long lerm depresils 77,830 83 500
HNCD's, FRN's (with maturities > 3 months) 3,900 10,501
Total 81,330 104,001

Accounting pelicy for investments

Accounting policy under AASE 9 — applicable from 1 July 2018

2018 2018
Current  Non-current
29 MR8 108 564

_ 89,068 106,664

125,823 108,664
85818 84 563
3,250 14,001
89,068 108 64

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Councdil becomes party ko the confraciual provisions of the
nstrurmnent.

On wilial recognilion, al firsmndal irslruments are measured al fair value plus Fanssdion cosls (euept lor iestuments
measurcd at fair value through profit or loss where Imnsachon cosls are expensed as nousmed)

Financial assels
Al recognised hinanoal assets are subsequently measured in thar ertrety at erther amodised cost or tar ualue, depending

on the dassification of the financial assets

Classification

On initial recogniticn. Council dassifies ils linancial assels inic the folowing categories — those measured at:

= amcrtised cost
= [airvalue through profiland bss (FVTPL)
= [air value lhrough olher comprehensive inoe: — equily inslument (FYOCEequity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 1o their initial recognition.

rilnued on nex! page
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I mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 6(b). Investmentls {continued)

Amortised cost
Assals measured at amorhsed cod are inanaal assets where:
« the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
« the contrectual terms give rise on specilied detes to cash flows thal are solely paymends of principe! end interest on
the principal amount nuislanding.

Councl's finanris| assals mascured at amorsed oost compnee trada and alhar mcersabies and cash and cash aquivalenis
m the Statlement of Fnancial Posion.

Subsequenl o nilial mwoognilion, lhese assols ame camied al amodised ard wsing the dfedive inlores] el metod les
priwision lor impairmend

Interest income, impaiment and gains of less on de-recoanition are recogised in profit or lss.

Accounting policy under AASE 139 —appli for 2ZME T2 i only

Classification

Councl classhes s financal asscls i the following calogones- inancal asscts al kar walue thriough protd or s loans and
receivables; held to matunty investmerts; and availabie for sale Inancial assefs. [ha classficabon depends on the purpose
for which the inrvestments were acquired. Management determines the classificafion of its imvestments al inifial recognifion
and, in the mse of assets dassified as held-fo-maturity, re-evaluates this designation 5l each reporting date.

{a) Financial assats al far value through profit or ioss

INnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss are Ainancial assels held for imding. A Ainandal assel is classTed n this
caleqory If ecquired prncipally for the: purpese of s2/ing in the short-lerm. Assets (n s cafegory are hedd at lar value with
charges in velue taken threugh profitor Inss at esch reparting periad.

(B} Held o maturity investmants

Held-i-malurity investments are non-derivative inancial assets with fued or deferminable poyments and fed matulies
thal Council's managemenl has the posilive inbenbon and ability o bold bo malunly. Assots in s calegory are measued al
amortised cost

{c) Loan=z and receivables

Loans and recervables are nen demvabive financal assefs with feced or delenminable payments that anre not queted n an achve
markel. They are induded in current assels, except for hose with maturties grester than 12 months after the reporting dale
which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and recefvables are induded in other receivables (Nofe 6) and recefvables
Nete 7]in the Stalement of Financial Position. Receivables are recognised initizlly af fair value and subsequently measured at
amodised cosl using lhe elfedive nleresl melhod, less provision o impaiment. Recetvables are genemily dus lor sellfement
wilhm 30 days

Cash fiows relating o short berm receivables are not discountad if tha effect of discounting is immateral

(d} Available far zale financial sszei=

Awailsble forsale financial assels are non-derivatives thal are cither i in this celegorny or nof dessified in any af
Ihe olher calegonies Invesimenls am: designaled as availabie- forssale if they do nol bave fowed msbuibies snd feed or
detemminable payments and management intends to hold them for the medium o long term. Assets in this calegory ane held
at fair value watih changes in farr value taken to other comprehensrie moome.

Recognitian and de-recognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognisad on trade date: the date on which Councl commis io purchase
or sl the asset. Investments are inibally recognised at far valus pius transachion costs for all inancal asseis not camed al
lair value through profit or less. Ainancial assets camied at fair valus thmegh profit or [oss am inifially recognised &t far value
and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement: [nvestments are derecognised when the rights o receive cash
Rows from the financial assets have expired or have been anstered and Councl has franstened subsiantially all the risks
and rewards of owmeship

When secuntes dasahed as avalable for sale are sokl, the accumulated far value adusiments recogmsed m equiy are
T in the Income as gains and losses flom imesiman secirities.
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Staterments
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 6(b). Investmenls {cantinued)

Impairment of financial assets

Councl assesses at the end of each reporting penod whether there & objpdve ewdence that a fmancial asset or group of
hnanoal assets s impaired. A finanoal asset or a group of inancial assets s impamred and mparment losses ae nowmed
only if there is objective evidence of impaiment as a resull of ome or moms events that ccoumed after the initial recognition
of the asset (a loss event) and that bbss event {or avenis) has an impact on the estimated future cash fiows of the financial
assetor group of financiel assels that can be reliably estimaled.

Impairment of available for salei tment:

In the case of equity investments dessified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decling in the fair velue of the

secuiily bodow ils cod is considered anindicalor al The assels ae impaed.

Note 6(c). Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details

2018 2013 “201e 2018
5°000 . Current  Non-current Current _Non-current
Total cash, cash equivalents and invesiments 128,509 __ 104,001 _ 125,823 . _ 108,664
attribulable to:

Exlemalresliclions 58519 104,001 56,282 108,564
Intemal restrchons 66, B0 - 86,511 -
Unrestricied _ w0 0 - 3000 -
138,508 104001 125,023 106,664
5000 018 IUE
Details of restrictions
External restrictions — other
Developer contributions — generzl 14 237 13622
Unexpended aranis 41,162 3e4dal
Watcr supplos 1 8958 36 8
Sawerage sevices 51849 48 036
Domeslic wirsk: managemenl 1347 2429
Stommwaler management 2uer 2830
External restrictions — other 167 500 144 548
Tatal external restrictions 162550 144,546
Internal restrictions
Employees leave entitiemert 2397 3
Govemsance 7300
Federal financial assistance grant (advance receipt) - 5,769
Dubbo ity holiday park 748 /73
Properly development 6,600 5,384
Dubbo city regional airport 10 20
Liveslock markeks 4210 3973
Other waste managemert services 8,686 37y
Road network — state mads 2,145 2756
Hiel mamgemenl seruoes 7519 08
Iuture Asset Renewsl H.235 47,207
Total Internal restrictons GG 960 BG.511
wonlmued on neal page . Page 33u0{ 86

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 55

Page 44



APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019
- REPORTS

ITEM NO

: EDBC19/37

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

APPENDIX NO:1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GENERAL PURPOSE ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Stalements
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I mancial Sisfements 2079

Note 6(c). Resliricted cash, cash equivalents and investments — details (wontinued)

5000 2019

TOTAL REETRICTIGNS 23510

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 7. Receivables

2018
Hon-current

R

2019 2019 2018
5000 Current Hon-current Currant
Purpose
Rales and anmual chamges 3197 2536
Interest and extra chamges 360 - 300
User charges and lees 954 — 9,833
Accrued revenues
— Interest on investments 2,007 — 2026
Delemed debloes a7 7B 454
Covemment grarts and subsidies 4932 — 3m4s
Meel GET reccivable 2787 912
Due from other levels of government = - el
Ciher deblars . 1036 - 1,737
Total : 24,268 207 21,872
Less: provision of Impalrment
Usar charges and fees . £aa) - {33}
Total provision for impairment—
recsivables o (728) T . = )
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES . 23570 287 21,378
Externally restrictad receivables
Waler supply
— Hatas and avallahity cramges 3 — 304
- Cther 6336 - 6,7F
SewWerage services
- Rates and availability chames 2168 - 1,926
Olher - 78 . 54
Total external restrictions : 0,706 — 9,547
Unrestricted receivables _ 13BB4 87 11,832
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES B 17 () B 287 21378
$'000 2019
Maovement in provision for impairment of receivables
Halance & the boginning of he year [malailated in accordance with AASH 138) 433
1 new provisions recognised duning the year 295
amounls akcady provided or and wiillen off This yoar . —
Balance at the end of the period i T8

Accounting policy for receivables

Recognition and messurement

48
413
37
433

PReccivables are included in cumenl assels, excepl lor those with matunlies gredor lhan 12 mooths afler the reporing dale

which are classfied as non curent assels.

Receivables are recognised intialy at fair value and subsequently measured at amarfised oost using the effeclive inlerest

method, less provision for impaiment Receivables are generally due for seffiement within 30 days.
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I'mancial Stetements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7. Receivables (continued)

Cash fiows relabng o shortberm recoivables anc not discounted f the effect of discoontng & mmatcral
Impairment

Accounting policy under AASB 9 applicable from 1 July 2018
Impairment of finandal assets messured at amortised cost is recognised on an expedad oedi loss (ECL) basis.

When determining whether the credil nsk of a financial assel has inceased signibcantly since mibal recognibon, ard whan
estimabng ECL, lhe Councll considers reascnable and supportable mfomaton that rs relevant and avaidable wilout undue
cestor effort. This indudes both quanttative and gualitative infonmation and analysis basad on Councils historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and induding forward-icoking information

whan considerng the HCI far rates dabtors, Counol takes inin account that onpad mfes mpresant a chamge against the
rateable property that wil be recovered when the property is next sold. Fer nen rates debiars, Councll uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit fsk

Tra Council uses the presentalion that a firsndal asset is in defaultwhen
= the other party 15 unlikely to pay its credit obbgabons o the Counal in full, wihout recourse by e Dooncl o achors
such as realising security fif any is held) or
« the finandial assets (for non-rates debiars) are more than 90 days past due_

Credil losses are messarcd as lhe presenl valoe of lhe diffierence behween the cash lows doe o e enbly in sooodanoe wilh
lhe cnbrad, and lhe mash lows expecled o be reaived This is appicd using a probahilly wesghled apprady

On initial recognition of the assel, an eslimate of the expected oradil losses for the naxt 12 menihs s reomgnised. Where the
nssel has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the |fetime losses are estimaled and eognised

Ihere has been ne change in the estmaticn techniques of significant assampbons made dunng the cument reporiing pened.

The Coundl writes off a trade mceivable when there is information ndicating that the deblor s in severa financisl SiMiculy
and thare is no realistc prospect of recovery, eq when |he debtor hes bean placed under liqudatien ar has enfered inio
bankruploy proceedings, or when the recevables ae over 12 months past duc, whichoeor ooours Tisl

Horne of the receivables that have been wrtten off are subject o enforcement actiy.

Whem lhe Gourcil menegolaies he lenns of eocivables due fom oedan oslomers, e oew expecied oesh lows ae
discounied al the: ongnal effed v inkemest rale and any esuibng dilfeenoe: la e camying valoe s recogmsad in poll or los

Aceounting polley under AASB 139 —a for 2018 ves only

Hor loans and moorabies, e ameunt ol 1he oss s measued s he difcrenre bolween he sscl’s caryng amount snd
the present value of estrrated future cash flows {exciuding fulure credil losses that have not been ncumed) dscounted at
the hnanoal asset's ongimal effedve interest rate  1he carrying amoun of the asset 1s reducad and the amount of the loss
s recognised in profit or lhss.

Caolleclabilly of recmivables & roviewed on an omoing hasis Duebks hal aie koown o b oneolledable are writess off by
mducng the camying amount diredly An aliowance account {proveson for impamment of recenabies] = ssed when thee s
pbjective evidence that the Counal will not be able o colledt all amounts due accordng bethe onginal tams of the recenvables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probabiity that the deblor wiil enfer bankrupicy or finandal reorgenisstion, and
defaull or delinquency in paymenis (more then 30 deys overdue} are considered indicalers thal the receiveble is mpaired.
When a receivable for which an impaimment allowsnee hae been recognised beremes uncollectable in a subsequent period,
it is written aff against the allowance scoount. Subsequent recovenes of amounts previously written off are credied aganst
othar in the Incoma 5

Rates ard annual eharges cutstanding are secured against the property.
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Naote 8. Inventories and other assets

5000
(a) Invantories

{i) Inventories at cost

Stores and materials 1,195 -
Trading slock 118

Real estaie for resale 1,531 4076
Total inventories at cost 7544 ) a0

TOTAL INVENTORIES

2019 019
Curreni  Non-current

2844 4076

I mancial Statements 2073

2018 018
Current  Non-curment

1079 -
7

73 2025

183 Pl v

1873 2025

(b) Other assets
Prepaymentis 464 - G683 -
Shares in unilisted companies — StateCover - 435 - 495
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 464 455 6653 435
Externally restricted assets
o 2019 2019 2018 2018
5008 Current  Non-current Current  Non-currenf
Water
Stores and materalks i6r - 168 -
Prepayments & 4 | M
Total water 1M 41 206 a4
Srwerage
Prepayments — — 12 —
Total sewerage 12

2019 2019 018 2018
§'000 Current  Non-current Current  Non-carrent
Totsl externally restricted assets 175 44 218 2 s
Total unrestricted assets 31W A5FT 2318 ZAT6
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 3,308 4571 538 2570
(i} Other disclosures

2019 2019 2018 2018
5'000 Current  Nom-current Current  Non-current
(&) Details for real estate development
Residential 512 1,081 630 1247
Indisinalmmmeral 1,[!15_ 2.98h :[i_ f/B
Total real estate for resale 1,531 4,076 773 2025
conlinued on neal page . Page 3T ol 86
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Fmancial Statements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 8. Inventories and ather assets (continued)

2019 2019 2018 2018
$°000 Notes Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
(vaved al lhe kower of cosl and nel redlisable vaue)

Represented by:

Acquiskion costs 1019 2,181 - 18

Development costs 512 1,805 773 1.906

Tatal cosis B 11253 T 7, S ¢ N2 V-3

Total real estate for resale 1,531 4,076 773 2025

Movements:

Resl oslale asseds al boginning of the ywear 773 2025 719 1903

- Purchases and other costs 1,33 213 1210 -

— Transfers in from (out o) Nole 9 - 21 - ™
WITV of saies (expense) : (68s) (1,114)

- Transfer between cument/non-current . 109 (108} 1) 41

Total real estate for resale 1531 406 if3 2025

Accounting pollcy for Inventories and other assets

Raw maleriais and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Rawmaterials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lowser of cosl and et realisable value. Costs are
assigred io individusl lems of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are defermined
giter deducting rebates and disoounts. Net realisable value s the estimaled selling price i the ordinery course of business
lass the estimated costs of complebon and the estmatad cosis necassary ta maka tha sala

Inventory held for distribution
Inventory held tor dstnbution = held at cost, adjustad where applcabie for any loss of sennos potental

Land held for resale/capitalisation of borrowing costs

Land held for nesale is slaled al the lowor of cosl and nel realisable valuwe Codd s sssigned by specic idenlification and
mcludss the cost of acquisibon, and development and borewing costs dunng pment When gpmant s o
borowing costs and other hoiding charges are expensed as incumed.

Borowing costs included in the mst of Iand held for resale are those costs thet woukd have been avoided if the expendtture
on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while aclive development is
niermupted for extended penods are recognised as expenses.
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Mnancial Sftat=ments 7013

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for tho year cnded 30 Junc 2019

Note 9(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

o edwess bbbt eswems
gL
ol
v Berrouwn  Tis Susila)
B ™ Caniwg [oe— il mdolde Revcados Brea ot
maTping  Acrumubted g it e FurE S walieol Mepecinm  mesgrsed Adjusteets afrimen s (o (eewmeets o exwying  Acnurmlaed carymg
S0m WAk deprecistin e e W It il e MPT) A e and lanedees [WtaFd B gy Gy amenl e precanan ==y
Capital worlcin orogress 12,587 - 15,587 - iC.3€1 - - - [4.925) 1.645 - - - 23163 - 23165
Plant and equipment sad (W7 TP - ooen 2607 ALY - - ] - - - SIETR (47 796TR
OMmece squipmen: 3@ 2129) 1,801 " W iy 430y - - =] - - — IESF (a2} 27133
Tumiwre end fifings 4320 12.735) 1.643 17 i 20 227 = - &1 - - = 4373 (2853} 1510
| and:
— Opedational land B/HS - IS5 - 1,1c4 - - - - - - - - I6E40 - 36548
Cemmurity land &6 3EEN Tk I5ERL 35884
— 1 and under reads {post IEO8) 10955 - 10855 Fr =71 fe - - - - - 1 - 12 e84 P e |
Land improvenents — 1801 - 1,901 - - - - - - - - - - 1307 - 1307
non-degnedable
Land improvernonts  depreaable ES0s  1403/) 2,454 = ) F =21 1 612 (433 238
Infrstructure:
— Ainport unways 42580 (17.783) 4 T87 383 1.57% - “in = - - = - = iTE0S (13723 79582
— BUICINGE — NON-EpaciJEsd AEE (22 m3) M B 1,662 - - Te - - [958} - - - 6US0  QIEM) 31E
— Buildings — specalsed 191224 58,2000 93,024 19,367 1207 @95 D724 = - 950 - - = 3735 @3z 10438
— Other siuctures 11897  ({60.537) 71,435 ?3E 437 @15 S80) - - HI5) - - - 15466 {RF 050 73ME
— Roads 1301250 (283 718) 1017 531 o 12,4¢1 - B4} (122458 2302 @s1} - - — 131459 (IOEH) 00EIS
Bulk carthweorks (non deprociable) 308,302 308,302 au 417 23150 2783 =28
— Slormwalar drainage A5 (3574) 195411 - 5aM (ie6p  (1.045) - 708 - - - - MEEIT  (AZAFD} 03857
— Water BUpplY nohwark 3E M3 (109, 184) 247,189 154 1,181 TN - 11 - 19 (1] - - EX: ELHED (TE106 MUEM
— Sewarsge retwork IZTwE  (57.Z7B) 26543 4] M1 - 14,804 = 3 (1838} - = 4 846 ITZ82  ®3OSH =423
— Surimming poats £33 [3879) 3,104 175 - f4any (107} - - - - - - sE31 (7373 760
Quamy assels 1 1.99¢ 1580 99,
Other msets:
— Heqitage collections 33 (] ”a - - - - - - - - - - n & Fi:)
— Ly oks 13 [AFEN - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
—Other 005 i1.201) 1,194 i i - 41 = - - - - = 233 40 73H] 1300
Ranstaterent, rehabifitation ard
Teslorabon ssLols {roter Note 14j:
—Tip B3ses 837 (a3} (2] - 249 - 2013 - - - (13-4 - - 1LH (19363 4
—Quany meals 1056 (240) 815 - 119 - 8a) - - - - - - 1175 [= o] &5
Total Intrastructure, property, - - - o
plant and equipment 3065295 (681,608) 2387877 32Te2 AT (3935 (5071 [122439) - - e A SR 3508 (MEA4S 2404763
{1) Renemsk asthe Foisting sk jus opposed b be noguifion of new e
cortinued on nextpags ... Page 35 of 86
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Moancral Statemends 7019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year cnded 30 June 2019

Note 9(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

= A IEZOT T Axsst movements durng the epaiing peood o = 3t IAETIM
Remucsurem Ths fom Po]  Rawhobion
Grms bt Coryum Adiustments it redebte asnemenis e et
ramymg Amurmiaied eamying Ademars Adehans s ol Depreeaton wn I aemimeet  assess (Hote o sty carrpng Aerwentasd exvyng
130 Srmourt  deprecistion amourt renewals | new assds  dispesals Epense baredees Fanaers tea PAL) ) PRy ameunt  deprecition ameunt
Capital work In pmgress 26917 - 6817 - 134 - -  [13m) (1386} - - - 15587 - 15587
Fantand equipment 2038/ (33962) 6 420 az 6509 1314} 3 /92y a5 52934  (@5BE 25352
Cffice squipment 3004 "7z 1310 - €80 - @955 - . - = - 387€ 2124y 1694
Farriwre and Glings 1868 2A71] 1,305 - 519 - QT - — - - - 4338 2755y 1843
Land:
—GQgpenalional land 32253 N 32258 2 N N . N 148 - . 3437 I554E . 35545
— Comwrwinily land 35840 - 35840 - - - - - 49y - - - asan - 35691
—Land undar rcads (post 9195 - 9,196 80 1182 - - - {n - 2 - 10958 - 10955
2E05)
Land improvements — 1801 - 1501 - - - - - — - - - 1801 - 1307
nm-degedable
Land impgrovenonts 8295 {4 8/5) 3an L 106 [us) {1094 5A02 “p3r) 2388
depreciaria
InfrRswucture:
—Buidings — 47822 (323891 15633 245 . N 423 - (1563 - - 10227 47360 22753 24607
nan specialsed
— Buidings — specalised 132729 (56357) E5792 1473 33%5 - 2202} N 1062 - . £504 51224 (53200) 93023
—Othes ssuchires €A723 (32574} 57049 10,730 1832 - 3434) 3533 2958 — - — 111957 @£53%) 1435
Hoads 1277514 (255U 1 KAES 24982 B8 [ 374 101,250 (EI A9 10 AaN
—Aipat unways 2748 (16804 15539 3314 572 - “423) - Q418 - - - 4253 (17793 27
— BUK earinworks X7 792 - 7792 %3 T4 - — - 391 - - - 208,302 - 38302
inar-depreciable)
— Stormwatar drainaga 219427 (30536}  1ES8e1 a39 6868 - ®E7} - 27 - - ~ 693 (@1529) 195411
—Warer supply netwari 3ep01 (1015671 Z48H =9 4z81 563 (5067} T495 - - - 4E34 53 (0315 4788
— Sewsrage nebwork 47097 (51496} D596 6 < P00 @By 4 807y - mw - - 5360 WITRE  (ETITE)  IBSASD
— Swnmming podls 5964 14077 2887 - 4ag2 - (100} - 2 - - - 5933 3829 3704
—Other open 6174 (3.756) 2418 - . - - - @3} - - - - - -
spacamecraatond assots
—Quany assels 1997 N 1597 - . . . - — - - - 1937 . 1897
Other assets
— Hentage coillectons 33 51 P - - - - - - - - - i3 (8] =
—Linery books 13 {13 - - - - - - - - - - 2 o3 -
—Othes 2395 (1,157} 1238 - - - a) - — - - — 2395 (1201) 1194
Reirs (alement,
rehabildation and
restorabon sexots (refor
145
—Tipassels 1044 (B75) 169 - 438 - (158) - - &R - - 237 @31) s
continued on next page ... Page 43 of 86
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MNoancaal Statements 7015

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year cnded 30 Junc 2019

Note 9(a). Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (confinued)

> A IOEZNT A<<ot mowmments Sring the pociig peoeot a0 0o
Wersasirren IS rom el Wewfuaheon
Gross et Carrying Adjustrmrnts ek realeshle  incommenis Eecsy et
ranyma Accumuand eamymg Agcns  Asehans valos of Degreciaton var and  acnstmen asses flete i oty cnying  Aecsriiaed crmgng
3909 amourt  depreciation amourd renowals | now assels  dispesals expomse  banclees  Wanders foia LY 7 ARR) ameunt e prosition ameat
Quamy sscts 4865 {22} 238 ~ 531 {13} ~ 1056 {243) 816

Tatal Infrastructure,
propedy, plant and
equipment 2967373 (858134} 2,%59239 25,804 49389 (2255 (31788} - - (583 q a7 re2 3069285 (PR POR} 2,WTHTT

1) Kenewals are detned a8 ihe rephicementol cxs ing asscts (a3 opposad to e 20qusbon of Jew assots)

continued on next page ... Page 41:086
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I mancial Statements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 9(a). Inlrastructure, property, plant and equipment (contimued)

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Infrastrudure, property, plant and equiprment are held at far valus Independant comprehansive valuations are pedormmed at
least every five yoars, however the camying amount of assels 1s assessed by Counal at sach reporting date o aonfirm that
i & not materially diferent from cument Fair value.

Waoler and sewerage nefwork assels are indexed at each reporting penicd in aocordance wilh the Rales Reference Menual
Esucd by Depadmend of Industry (Dol)  Walor.

Increases in the canving amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revalustion reserve. To the sxient that the increase
reverses A delrease previously recognising profit or bbss relating o thet osset ciass, the increase is frst recognised as profit
or nss. Decrmases thal mversa previous incregses of essets i ihe same class are Trst chormed against revalustion resenves
direclly in equily o lhe exlenl ol the rermining reserve allnbulable ks the class, all olher decreases are chaged lo lhe Inoome
Statemant

Subsequent costs are induded in the essef's camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 85 appropriafe, only when i
is probabie that future economic benefits associeted with the item will flow fa Coundl end the cost of the tem canbe measured
relisbly. All other repairs and mainlenance are chamed o the [ncome Stalerent during the financial pariod in which ey sre
ncurred

Land is nct deprecisled. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depredialed over the assel’s
useful life or aver the shorer of the assel's useful (e and the lzese term if Lhere is na reasonshie cerainty that the: Council
will chiain ownership at the end of the lease ferm. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-Tne mefhod to
allocate their cost, net of their resid ual values, over their esimated useful ves &5 follows:

Plard and equipmeni Years  Other equipmend Yezrs
Office equipment 128 Flayground aquipment 515
OlMhce Turnilure 113 Benchos, souls elc 10 b 20
Cempuler equipment T8

Vehirles S5inR  Buildings

Heavy plantmoad making equipment 5108 Bukdings: mascmy 50 ta 100
Olher planl and equipmend 515 Ruithigs othor 20 la 100
‘Water and sewer assets Stormwaler assets

Dams and resenvairs 100 Drains B0 ta 200
Roms 30 Cuvorls 5l 120
Retculahon mipes: PVYC 0 Food contro! struciures 80 ta 100
Reticulalion pipes: other 25l7T5

Pumps and telemokry 12k 5hd

Transpariation assels Other infrastructure asssis

Sedled mads. surface 2124 Guk earihworks Infirite
Saaked mads stuctura 1280 Swmmng pooks Sin SHi
Unsealed roads 10k 34  Oiher open speceiectentianal sssels 15 &0
Rridge concele 13

DBridge: other &0

Road pavements. (213530

Kerb, guiter and foolpaths 40 te 200

Ihe assels" imerventon ponts and useful Ives are reviewed, and adjusted if apprepnata, sl each mporbng dale Gamns and
bosses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with camying amount. These arm incuded in the Incomes slatement

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves ncluding land undar foolpaths, nature skips snd median sirps.

Council has elected not to recoqnise land under reads acouired befere 1 July 2008 in eccorence with AASE 1851 Lend

Under Roads.

conlnued on neal page ..
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I mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 9(a). Inlrastructure, property, plant and equipment (contimued)

land under mads acquired afier 1 Juty AHIE s recognised in accordance with AAVSE 116 Property, Plant and Fgopment
Crown reserves

Crown resernves undor Counols care and control ane recognised as assets of the Coincl While ownership of e resenes
remains with the Crown, Counal relans operatonal confrol of the reserves and i resparsible for ther mamtenance and use
n accordancs wilh the speciic purposes 1o which the reserves are dedicabad.

Improvements on Crown reserves are also raeonded as assels, while maintenance oosts incumed by Councl and revenues
malng lo the eserves ame recognsed walhin Council's Income Slatement

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Scchon 118 ol Lhe Awal Rre Serwces Ac! 1990 (WS, "all Ischghlng equipment. purchased o oconsirucied wholly
or from monay o the credt of tha Fund & to be vested in the counal of tha ama lor or on bahall of wiwh the firabghbng
equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

Unitil such time &5 discussions on this malier have conciuded and the legisistion changed, Gounal will recognise rural fre
service gssets including |and bulidings, plart and vshicles

Page 430188
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 9(b). Extemnally restricted infrastruclure, property, plant and equipment

5000

Waler supply

WP

Planl and equinent

Ofice equipmenl

Furriture and fitings

Land

- Operationa’ land
Communily fand

BLlamS

Olner stucures

Infrasiruchre

Roads

Bulk earfiworks.

Olher assels

Tolal wetar supply

Sewerape services
wip
Plant and equipment
Ollice equipmenl
Furnture ana mimgs
Land

Operalonal and
Fuldmeys
Diner studures
Inrasiruciure
Roads
Bulk earlimworks
Tolal sewerage services

Domestic wasle management

Plant and equipment
Land

Uiner structures.
Roads

Bulk earfiworks.
Tolal DWM

Other restricted assets

Wi

Flant and equipment

- Operatonal land
Communily land

Infraskuchee

EUlk earltwarks

Tolal other restrictions

TOTAL RESTRICTED

LPP&E

I mancial Statements 2013

2019 21

Gross  Accumulabed Mt Cross Accumulated (2]
carying depn. and sarTying cATYIng dapn. and cATYing
amoumt  impairment amaumt amaum  imparmens ameunt.
4,681 - AE81 5065 - 5,065
2423 1188 1238 220 1052 1.168

41 41 41 40 1

71 18 i 71 8 El
2908 - 2808 2508 - 2508

B 8 59 33

801 73 ara At 4m 401

Tie 224 497 Ti6 hig 519
364,401 113,525 FLEAIE Th4n0 108,630 246,576
33m 1176 2202 3447 L8 2888
143 1120 T46 748

i 4m 1 424 425 1 424
_ 380EM 118,583 262 F1 371,878 11C.830 50 980
13,064 - 13084 8452 - 8452
20684 853 1071 2ar2 1020 1042
-] 9 30 23 & 32

7] 10 a “a L] [}

TAT AL 6,787 6187
1.3% a51 3as 1066 6 410
(=] 439 16f ECl 48 12
AT 1403 23,504 SUETE] LR ] 263,117
2301 438 1863 L 1412 2683
a9 3a1 =i 830
352,130 A7 26F 657, 32618 S930 263 498
1,964 1o 1254 2.6 1008 1282
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_ R I mancial Sistements 2079
Dubbo Regional Council nena e
Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Nate 10. Payahles and bomowings

2019 2019 2018 207

5000 Current Non-current Currant Non-current
Payablss
Goods and servioes oporaling expendilue 1663 A
Acciued expenses:
- Bormowings 545 - 586 -
— Salanes and wages 8 - oL -
Security bonds, deposils end retentions 1748 - 1,681 -
Clher o 1 N - 1
Total payables o 12830 1 1208 00000 01
Incoma recaived in advance
Paymenls recewed in advance Al ) G
Total income received in advance 414 — 328 _
Borrowings
loans  secumed 1 EA arFE 4877 67 434
Total berrowings 5% SRR 4822  B3434
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS 18,503 57,229 17,288 62435

[ Luans are secuned over The general raling income of Couwncl.
Discicsurss on kabity mieesd rale rsk exposues, fair value dscasures and securily can be found in Hole 20,

2018 2018 2018 2018
5000 Current Non-current Current Non-carrent
(a) Payables and borrowings relating o
restricted asseis

Exlermally resiricled assels
Waler 155 23735 1.713 24 865
Sewer . 2277 15463 2169 17,490
Payables and bormowings relating lo exdemally
mslided assols 183 33,188 1862 432 335
Total payables and horrowings relating - o ) - )
to restricted assets 3,831 29,198 3882 42 355
Tatal pryables and barrowings relating
to unrestricted assets 14,672 18,031 13,406 20,030
TOTAL PAYABLES AND
BORROWINGS . 18503 S5TZ39 17388 62435
(b} Changes in isbilties arzing from Tinancing actvibes

asat Camat

3082018 Mon-cash changes 0/22618
Other
Opening Fair value nan-cash Closing

5000 Batance Cashfiews Acquisition changes movements batance
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| mancial Statements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 10. Payables and borrowings (continued)

asa asat
30672018 Nen-cash ehanges 30662013
Qther
Opaning Fair vaiue nren-cash Clasing
$'000 Balance Cashfows Acquismion changes  movements balance
Loans secured 67.3% {4.969) €2.2387
TOTAL . B735% (4,969} = = I 62387
§°000 2019 2018
(e) Finaneing arrangements
(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following
lines of credit:
Bank overdraft facilties * 200 200
Credil oirds/puniese cards Boa GO0
Bank Guarantes £ 10
Total financing arangements 850 _ 810
Drawn facilities as at balance date:
— Cred# cards/purchase cards WS o8
- Bank Guaranmee 10 12
Total drawn financing arrangements 1% 68
Undrawn fa<ilities as st balance dats:
- Bank overdraft faciities 200 200
- Credd cards/purchase cards 4% 542
- Bank Guaraniee . “a -
Total undrawn financing arrangements 735 747

t1: The bank averdraft facility may be drawn & any tme and may be terminaied by the bank withcut nofice.

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings
Council measures all financid liabiities inkially at fair value less fransaction costs, subsequently rancial lisbilites are
measured at smortised cost using the effective interast rate method.

Ihe hnanaal kabilbes of the Councl compnse tmde payables, bank and ofher Inans and finance easc kabidihes

Payables
Ihese amounts represent liabdrbies for goods and seraces provided o the counad poor fo the end of Inancal yoar that are
unpaxd. 1he amounts are unsecured and are usually pad witin 30 days of recogmibon.

Borrowings

Bomowings are inibalfy recogmised a fair value, net of transachon costs mcumed. Barowangs are subsequently measured at
amorised cost Any difference belween the proceeds (nel of Iransachion cosis) and the redempton amount 15 recognsed m
the Inceme Statement over the period cf the borowings using the effeciiva interest method. Fees paid on the establishmant
of loan facilities are recognised &s transaction costs cf the loan to the extent that £ is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down_ In this case, the fee is deferrad until the drawdowin sccirs. To the extent thal there is no evidence that
i is prebable lhal some or alf of Lhe Tacility will be drawn down, The lee is capilaiised as a prepayiment for louidity seosces:
and amorlised over lhe pesiod o The facilty o which | relales

Borrowings are remcved from the Statement of Financial Position when the oblfigation speafied in the contract s discharged,
cancelied or expired. The difference between the camving amount of a finendel labiity thef has been extinquished or
bansferred lo anclher parly and lhe consderabon paid, including sny non-cesh assels lmnslerred or Labibbes sssumed, s
recognised inolher income or finance cosl

conlnued on nexl page Page 460l 86

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE

Page 68

Page 59



APPENDIX NO: 1 - AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE - 02/09/2019
- REPORTS

ITEM NO: EDBC19/37

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

APPENDIX NO:1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GENERAL PURPOSE ITEM NO: AUD19/18

I mancial Stetements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 10. Payables and bamowings (sontinued)

Homowings are classhied as cumrent labdbes unless Council has an uncond donal nghl fo defor sciiement of the labildy for
at lsast 12 months after the reporting date_

Finance lesses

Leases of property, pant and equipment whers Counal, 8s lassee, has substanbally all the nsks and rewards of owneiship,
are classhed as inance leases. Hnance kases are caplaiised al ihe lvase’s ncaphon &t the f@r value of the leased assals
or, if kower, the present value of the minimum lease payments The comespanding rental abligalicns, net of finance charges,
ara mciuded in ather shortterm and long-t=m peyables. Each lease payment is aliocated bebwesn the liabify and finance
rost The finance cost is charged in the Income Statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
inlereslon the emaining balance of (e Eabilly or each period.
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_ R | nancial St & 2073
Dubbo Regional Council nenas e
Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Nate 11. Provisions
2019 019 2018 018
5'000 Currenl  Non-current Current  Noo-carrent
Pravisions
Employee benefits
Annual ave 3,013 -
Sick leave 837 -
Long service leave 8399 614
Ciher leavs I i .
Sub-iotal — aggregaie employes benefils 13,158 E14
Asset remediation/restoralion:
Assal remediaboniesiorabion {future works) o = Ay - 3873
Sub-total — asset remediation/restoration - 1,113 - 383
TOTAL PROVISIDNS " 13458 5327 13.765 4446
{m) Provisions relating to restricted assets
Externally restricted assels
Waler 122 65 __ 118 0050
Provisions ralating o externally restrched assels 1,212 65 1,180 50
Totel provisions relating to restricted assets 1212 & 1180 50
Tatal provizions relating to unrextricted assels 11,986 52632 12,585 4,396
TOTAL PROVISIONS 13,158 5327 13,765 4 446
57000 2013 2018
{b) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next bwelve
months
Tne folowing provisions, even though classified as cumment, are not expecad to be Setfled
in the next 12 months.
Provsions  employees benclils B 650 s
5630 T2
{c) Description of and movements in provisions
T ELE provisions
Other
Leng servica employes
5000 Annual eave  Sick [eawe leave Benefits Taolal
2019
Al DEgINTNg of year 3028 1.08% 928 w1 Mz
Adgikonal provisions 2301 23 £ ity as6l
Amounts used (paymenis) {2.797) (273} {1753) {238) (spa1}
Remeasuemen| elleds 470 12 524 21 1028
Tatal FI F povisiuns al e of period 3.403 ez TS %1 13072
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I mancial Statements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 11. Provisions (continued)

ELE provisions
Ofher
Lengsevice  mmployes
5000 Arnual eave  Sick lsave [ benetits Total
2018
Al beginning of year 3937 1,303 1oz 58 15,523
addlional provisions 2047 4 T4 a1 ZE13
amounts used (paynenis) {7,R17) [ {1 AT} {597 (4A94]
RemeasUrement eneds _ 304 4 385 20 g
Iotal LLL provisions al 2na of penoa 3729 1.06% 9273 151 1z
h - n atmer previsions

Acset
swoe remediation  TVatal
2019
At boginning of year ki 573
Adoiional provisions = 73
Unwindmg of discourt 554 GEF
| otal cther provissons at end of penad LTS 4712
2018
At beginmeng of year 21 210
- Revised cosls M3 443
Addilional provisions 1.381 1381
Unwirking of disaounl 37 32
Tatal vther pravisuns al end of perdod FAFE AT
Mature and purp of banaiit p
Asset remedlation

Councl has a legalipuble nbhgabon o make, reslone:, whabibble and renslEie e iounol bp and guesmy

Aceounting polley for pravisiens
Provsions arc recogrss:d when Counol has a presenl legal o ensrucive obikgasbon ss a nesull of pest ovenls, (L s pobablc
that an ocutflow of resources will ba required i settle the cbiigahon, and tha amount has been rekably eshmabed

Where there are a number of similar nbligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in seftiement is delermined by
ronsidening e class of oblinations a5 a whole. A provisicn is recognised even if the likelhood of an oulfiow with espact fo
any one ilem included in lhe same class of obligaloms mey be small

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required fo settie the presant
cbligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value refliects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks spedfic fo the liabillly. The incesse in the provision due io he possage of time
mecognised & inlores. expens:

Empleyee benefits

Short-lerm obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries {including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and sccumufating sick lesve expected fo be
whdlly seftled wilhin 12 monihs after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service} are recognised
in respect of employees’ services up ko the end of the reporting perod and are measured at the amounts expecied o be paid
when the lsbilities am setflad. The Bshility for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is mecognised in the provision for
empioyee benefils Al othor shod-lem employen bonodil obligalions am proseniod as peymhlos

Other lang-term employee benefit obligations
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I mancial Stetements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 11. Provisions (continued)

Ihe: kably for inng-service keave and annual icave that s nol expecied to be wholly seified wiin 12 months atier the end of
the pencd inwhich the employees render the relaled samvice 1s recognised i the provision for employee benefits snd measured
as the present value of expecled uture payments to be made in resped of senaces provided by employess up 2 the end of
the reporing period using the projected unit aredit methed.

Considembon s gvoen o expeded Mol wage and salany levels, expenenoe of employee depariures, and pemods of senace
Fxpected futire payments are discounted weng market yneide at tha and of tha reporting penod on nabonal govarnment bonds
wath tems to maturty and cumency that match, as closaly as possible, the estrmaled fulure cash autfaws.

On-eosls

Ihe cmployoe: henchit provisions iInclude the aggregats on-cosl habiliies thal will ansc when paymont of cument eanployce
benefts is made in fulure perfiods.

These amounts nclude superan nualion, payroll Lax and workers compe nsabon expenses wicfowil] be payabie upor L fulure
paymenl of cedain leave labililies which employecs are enliled Io al lhe reporing period

The obligations are presented as cument liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have an
uncondilicnal right to defer settliement for at least 12 months after the reporting dafe, regardiass of when the aclual selilermnsnt
B expected to oocur.

Provisions for clese-down and restoration, and environmental clean-up costs — tips and quarnes

Restoration

Close down and restorahon costs inciude the dismantiing and demolhon ol mfrastucture, and the removal of msidusl matenals
and remediation of disturbed areas Estimaled close down and restoration cosks are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligalion arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this cocurs during the: development or during the
operation phase, based on the net present velue of estimated fuiure costs.

Prowisions For close doawn and reslorabon costs do nol inciude any addilonel obigatons which are expecled ic anse from
Iuture disturbance. |he costs are estmated on the basis of a closure pian. [ he cost eshmales are calculated annualy dunng
thex life of the operation to refiecl known developments, eg updated cosi estimates and revisins o the estimated lves of
cperations, and are subject o formal review at regular intervais.

Rehabililation
Where rehalbilitation s conducted systematcally over the e of the cperabon, riher ihen at the time of closure, provision

B made for the estimated oulstanding continuaus rehabilitation work al each reporting dale, and he cost $ charged o the
Income Statement.

Provision 1s made for the eshmated presentvalue of the costsof o ital dean-up obigatons o q al the reporbing
date. Ihese cosis are charged to the Inceme Stalement. Klovements m the emaronmental Clean up provisons are prasentad
as an operaling cost. except for the unwinding of the discount which is shown as a bomowing cost.

Remedialion procedures gencraly commeno: soon afler lhe ne e domage emedislion process, amd osbraled
moemediEbon msls become kKnown, bul may conlmue for many yeds doypendng on Qe esiuee of He dishotao: aod e
remed ahon fechniques

As noted above, Ihe ulimate cost of emvironmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in respense ko many
Eclors, induding changes o Lhe relevanl legal risuirements, the emenpence of now eestoetion ecdhomigues, or expeienoe st
olhier lecalions The expocled liming of cxpendilure can also change, far ceample in response b denges inquamy resenves
or producton rabes As a result, there could be significant adjustments fo the provision for close down and msiomton and
environmental clean up, which would affect future financial resufs.

Olher movomenls in the provisions for close-down and reslorabon costs, induding those resulling fiom new dishdseos,
updaled mosl eslmales, changes lo Lhe eslimaled lives of oporations, and masioes o disownt sles, are capdsleed wailion
properly, planl and equipmenl These cosls arc then deprecialed over the [es of he assels o which ey rebale

Close-down and resioration costs are a normal consequence ef tip and quany operafions, and the majority of dose-down and
restoration expenditure is incumed at the end of the lif2 of the operations Although the uiimate cost to be incurmed is unceriain,
=dimalos lhe respedive cosls basod on Moasibility and engineerng sludios wsing coment reslarstion s smdards and
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I'nancial Sisfements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 11. Provisions (continued)

Self-inzurance
Counci does not to salt insure.
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I mancial Statements 2013

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revalualion reserves, changes in accouniing palicies,
changes in accounting eslimates and errors

(a) Natura and purpose of reservas

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, Flant and equipment revaluation reserve is used fo record norements/ decrements of nan-curent
asset values due to their revaluation

{b) Changes in accounting policies due o adoption of new accounting standards

During lhe yoar, Counal adopled a number of new accounting skadards Thempad of the adoplion and sssoosbed erstion
disciosunes ane shown below

The Council has adopted AASE 9 Financial [nstruments for the Tirst lime in the cumenl year wilh & date of initial adopfion of 1
July 2017 As part of the edoption of AASE 0. the Council adopted il 1o olher inting
arising from the issue of AASE D as foliows:

—AASH 101 Fresantabon of Finanaal Statements requires the mmpaimant of irencal assets o ha pesantad n a saparate
ina tem in the moome slatement. In pror year, this nformalion was presented as part of othar expenses.

— AASE 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures requires amended discosures due o changes afsing from AASE 8. These
disclosures have hean provided for the cument year

The ki changes o Counrdls acoounling policy and the impad on (hese Gnencel slalomenks rom applying AASR 8 are
doscribed bolow

Changes in accounting palicies resulling frem the adoption of AASE 9 have been appiied relrspedively except Coungl has
nat resialed any amounts relating to classification and measurement requiremenis, including impaimment, wiich have been
applied from 1 July 2018_

Classificalion of financlal assets
Iha financial assets of Councll leve been acEsshiad o one of the blowng celegones. on sdopfon of AASE 8 esad
primanly on the business medel n which a fimanoal asset 1s managad and (s contraciual cash fiow chareclnstcs are:

- measured al amoriised cost
fair value through pofiL or loss
— fair value through olher comprehensive income — equity instruments

Impairment of financial assats
Tnz incurred loss medel from AASE 139 has been replaced with an expected credit l2ss model in AASB 3 lor assels measured
at amortised eost This has resulied in Ihe earlier recognition of credit inss (bad debl provisians)

Transition adjustments
The labie below illustates the clessication and measurement of inancial assels end labililes under AASE O and AASE 139
at 1 July 2018,

Classific-  Classific-  Carrying Carrying
ation ation amount amount
under e under Reclassi- Remeasu- under

§ 000 AASB132 AASBS AASE 123 ficafion rements AASR 8

Fimanclal assets

Trade and olher e ivabies loamsand  Amorlised 22.008 27 M8
recenables cost

Cash and cash equivaients Loars and  Amortised 36,755 - - 36735
mxnivables  osl

lemn deposits. Held o Amorhsed 191,732 - - 187./32

maturity cost
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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I mancial Statements 2013

Note 12. Accumulated surplus, revaluafion reserves, changes in accouniing palicies,
changes in accounting estimales and erors (confinued)

Classific-  Classific-

Carrying Carrying
ation aticn amount amouni
under under under Reclassi- Remeasu- under

$'000 AASB 133 AASBS AASHE 139 ficafion rements AASE S
Taolal financial assets urder
AASE 9at 1July 2018 756 405 756 495
Fimancial iabililies
Sarured bank boens Other COrther &7 356 - - BT 3AGE
tinancial financal
liabiities liabilties
Trede payebles Other Other 12,033 - - 12,038
tinancial financal
liabities liabilties
Tolal financial liabilities.
under AASE 9 at1 July
2018 T2,395 - - 79395
Mates tn the table abave

Red asszification from "held o matrily’ to ‘amorlised cost

Temn deposits hhat would previously have been classified as 'hekd o maturily’ zre now dassified & "amodised cost”. Council
niends {o hold the assels o maturity to ollect contraciual cash llows and [hese cash fiows consisl solely of paymerts of
principal and interest on the principal amount culslanding. There was no diference belween the previous canying amount

and the revised carrying ameunt of thase assats.
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for the year ended 30 June 2019

MNate 13. Stalement of cash flows - additional information

I'mancial Stetements 2019

2078

36,755

000 Mates 2013
(a) Reconciliation of cash assets
Total cash and cash equivalent assets Eia) A7179
Balance as per the Siatement of Cesh Flows AT T8
{b) Reconciliation of net operating result o cash provided from

operating aclivities
Mel operating resull from Income Stalement (B¢ B35)
Ad|ust for non-cash tems:
Deprecialion and amoddisalion 20 506
Het lossesigams) on disposal of assets {03
Mon-cash capital grants and conlributions [14.280)
Lessesi/{gains) recognised on Fair value re-measurements through the P&L:
— Revalumtion decramants / impaimants of IPF&E dired o PAL 122 450
Amortisation of premiums, discounts and prior pericd fair valuations
— Interest on all fair value adjusted interest free advances made by Coundl (16}
Umwanding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions BG7
Share of nel (profitsylosses of associates/joint ventures using the equity mefhed 45}
+= Movement in operating aszets and llabliities and other cash [tema-
Decrmssed(inouase) in roccivables ? 503)
Increase/[decease) in provision for impairment of receivables 285
Decreasci(inoease) in imvenloms [213)
Decreasei{inrease) In other cument assets. 169
Increase/{decrease) in payables B4
Increasef(decrease) in accrued interest payable (41
Increase/{decease) in other accnued expenses payable v
Increasef{deease) in other liabilties 153
Incressef{decoase) in provision Tor cmployee benefils [4aEy
Increase![decrease) in other provisions [x]
Met cash provided fromi{used [n) operating activities
from the Statement of Cash Flows 68,3712
(c) Non-cash investing and finencing activities
Inirastructure cortnbubions 14,260
Total non-cash investing and financing activities 14,280
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1346
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[2.762)
(8T

(73]
1,856
(s1)

[4.021)
387
57
(203)
4753
(33}
(83)
225)
(1.785)

98,750

e
19717
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Note 14. Interests in other entities

I mancial Statements 2073

Coundl’s share of nel income Council's share of net assals

2a 2018
Jaint ventures . LI
Total 48} 151

Joint arrangements

(i} Joint ventures

2018
_ 1AW 1AM
1538 1484

The following information is provided for joint venluras that are mdividually matena fo the Council. Inciuded are the fotal
amounts as per the jeirl venture firancial statements, adjusled for fairvalue afjustments al acquisition date and dferences

in sccounting palides. rathar than tha Gouncil's share.

(a} Net carrying amounis — Council’s ehare

Mature af Measuremern
method

relationship

Macquarie Regiona Library Joink Venture Fquity
Total earrying amounts — material jeint ventures

(b) Details

Principal activity

Maoquerie Regional Library  Public ibrary services.

{c} Relevant interests and fair values

Inlerest in Interest in
outputs cwnarship
2018 18 2019

2048 2018

1,533 1484
1484

|~
Iin I3
)
o

Place of

Brenches in
Dubba,
Hamomine and
Wamumburgle
Councl srea

Fropoition of
veting pawer

2018 3 Fiigt]

Maoquarie Regional Library 56.5% 69.00% T30% Ti0% 33.0% Jaxe

{d) Summarized financial information for joint ventures

Statement of financial position

Current asssts

Cash and cash equivalenls

Cther cument assets

Man-current assets

Current Rabilities

Current financial iabilities (excluding trade and other payabies and provisions)

wonlnued on neal page .
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2013 2018
1505 1930
6e 7
1,202 1389
64 1009
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I mancial Siatements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 14. Interests in other entities (continued)

Macquarie Regional Library

2013 2018
Non-current liabilities
MNor-rurrent finanaal labililics (excdluding lade and other payables and powvisons) 40 37
Net assets 2373 7045
Reconciliation of the carying amount
Opening nel assels (1 July) 2048 1829
Profiti {loss) for the penod “ 2
Closing net assets 2173 2049
Cauncil's share of nel assats (%) T2.2%
Council's share of nel assets (§) 1533
Statement of comprehensive Income
Income

Interest income

Deprecigtion and amaorisation

Qlhor expoenses

Profitfioss) from conlinuing operations

Profit/fioss) far the periad 74 221
Total comprehensive income “% 271
Share of income — Council (%} A6 5% BE.5%
Profit/{loss) — Council ($)} 49 151
Total cemprehensive income — Councll {$) 49 151

Accounting policy for joint arrangements
Ihe couna! has determined that 1t has only jnt ventures

Joint ventures:

Inlerests in joml vienlures ane accounled for usng the equily method in accodance wilh AAS8 722 nvesimonds m Assooales
and Jont Venlures.

Under Lhis melhod, Lhe invesimenl is inibally recognised us & cosl snd [he carrying amount is incressed or decressed o
mecognise the Counals share of lhe profil or loss and other comprehensive inaome: of [he joint venlure sl he dale of
acquEiion

If the Councifs share of lasses of a joinl verture equals or exceeds is interest in the joint venture, the Counci disconiinues
recognising its share of further losses.

Ihe Counci’s share mn the jont venture’s gains or losses ansing from f@nsactions between itseit and s jont venlure are
eliminated

Adjustments are made o the joint venture’s accounting policies where they are diferent from those of the Councd Tor the
purposes of lhe consolideled financial sislemeanls.
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Sitatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 15. Commitments
5000
(a) Capital commitments (exclusive of G5T)

Capital sxpenditure committed for at the reparting date bt it
mecognised in e financial slalemenks s labilles.

Property, plant and equipment
Rosd Inirastnctre

Uther structures

Water inlrasiructure

Sower infrasisclum:

Total commitmenis

Sources for lunding of capital commitmenis:
Unrestnded general funds

Extemally restricted reserves

Total =ources of funding

(b) Operating laase commitmants {non-cancellable)

5. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting
date, but not recegnised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next y=ar
Later than ore year and not |ater than 5 years

I'mancial Statements 2013

Total non-cancellable opersting lesse commitments

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the Tollowing assets:
- Gompuler equipmenl

Conditions relating to finance and operating lesses:
All mance sgeemenls are secun:d only agains! he leased assn]

- Ne lease agreements impose any financial restrictions on Coundl reqarding future debt eic.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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2013 2018
544 2512
2738 4503
217 2259
1 545 233
24687 16617
4561 539
1976 €978
24,687 16,617
o5 132
B 173
170 305
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 16. Contingencies and other assetsfliabilities not recognised

The lollowing assels and liabililies do nol qualilfy Tor recognilion in the Stalemenl of Mosncsl Postion, bol their knouwledge
and dsclosure s considered relevant to the users of Counal's financal repard

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGHNISED

1. Guaraniees
(i} Defined benefil superannuation contribulion plans
Council is party to an Ingdustry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Govemiment Superannustion Scheme, named The Local

GCovemnment Suparannuation Scheme — Mool B {the Scheme) which 5 & defined beneft plan that has been decmed fobe 8
‘mut-employer fund® for purposes of AASB 113 Employee Benefits for the following ressons

- Assets are not segregated within the sub-greup according to the employees of each sponsaring empioyer.

The cenlibulion mles have heen the same Torall sponsoring empoyers Thel s, confribu e gales have nol vared for cach
sponsonng employer acconding fo the expenence relatng to he employees ol thal sponsonng employer.

- Benefils for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined acooming o he same formulse and without eqad (o
the sponsoring employer.

— Ihe same actuanal assumphons are curently used n respect of tha emplayees of each SPONSTOING empioyes.
Given lhe fadors sbove, each sporsoing omplyer & exposod o the sduarnsl rishs ssocsled wilh curont and ooner

omployees ol olhey sponsorng employors, and hence shares in e sssadaked gairs and beses (o he extonl el Uy ae
nol bome by members)

Desaription of the funding arrangements.
Pooled employers are required to pay standard emglover eontribttions and atdtional lump sum contibutions ko the fund.

Ihe standard employer contnbutons wern delerminad using tha now antrant rate mathod under whch a coninbebon rate
suficient to fund the total benefits over the working e ime of a typcal new entranl is caiculated. |he curent standard

em ployer contribution rales are:

Division 3 1.9 limes employee contributions)
Division C 2.5% salarios
Divemon O 1.84 bmes employee co

The addtional lump sum centribution for eech Monled Employer is & share of the iplal additional confibutions of $40.0 mifion
por z&nnum iom 1 July 2018 Lo 30 June 2021, appodioned acending lo cadh employers share of e scoued lebiiies =
at 30 June AME. |hese additlonal lump sum contnbutions are used to fund the defiat o assets o accrued labides as at
30 Jung 2018,

The adoqucy of conbibulions i assessed al esch bicnngal achusrial invosfigation and monifoned znnually bebseen Iiennisks

Descripbon of the extent to which Colinai can be Babie lo Lhe plan for other Cotincil's obiigations Lnder (e terms and condtions
of the multi-employer pian

As slaled above, each sponsonng employer [Counall 15 expesed o iha adusnal nsks assecated with cument and former
empioyees of other sponsonng employers end hence shares in the assocmted gans and losses.

However, here s no meled under Lhe Fund's nesl decd for empioyers o walk sway fom e defined benefil obiligabons
Under miled crcumslances, an employer may wilhdrrw [om e plan when There are o sclive members, on Ll paymend
of outstandng addbonal contributions. [here s no provision for allecabon of any surplus which may be present al the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There an: no spedlic provisions undar lhe Fund's Ius! deed dealing wih deficls or swplus onwand-op
The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benelfit sedlion of the Local Covernment Superannustion Scheme

and recoqnised a5 an expense for the year ending 30 June 2019 wes $525.000.00. The Iast veluation of he Scheme wes
peronned by lhe Aduary, Mr Richard Hoyheld, HIAA on 31 December 28, refaling b Uee penod ended 30 e 2008

wonlnued on neal page .. Page 58 of 86
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I mancial Statements 2012

Note 16. Contingencies and other assetsflizbilities not recognised (amntinued)

Counci's exporled contnbubon bo the pian for the next annusl reporiing penod s 3527 100 00

The estimated employer reserves financial pos tion for the Posied Emplovers &t 30 June 2019 i

|[Employer reserves anly * Smillions. Aszset Coverage
|Assets 1.7987

|Past Senace Labilhes 14847 100 8%
[Vested Benefits 1.7920 100.4%

* excluding member accounts &nd reserves in bolh assels and habilies.

Ihe key economic bong term assumphons used to cakculats the presant value of ecoved benatls are

{Investment retlum 5.75% per annurm
|Salary inflalion * 3 5% per anmm
lincrease in CPI 2 5% per annum

* Plus promotional increases

Ihe confnbirbon requirements mey vary frem the cument rates fihe overall sub group expensnce 1s notin Ine with the acluaral
assumplicns in detsrmining the funding program; however, any adjustiment to e funding program would be the same for ail

SpEnsonng emplovers in the Pooled Empioyers group.

{ii} CivicRisk Mutwual Limilad

Council is a member of CivicRisk Muhml, a mutual pool scheme providing liabilify insurance to bcal govemment.

Membership includes he polential Lo shar in cilher The net assels or Babilibes of e nd depending on ils sl perdomesoco:
Council's share of he net assets or lBbilbes refleds Counal’s connbobors o the pool and the resel of mesurame clames

withmn esch of the fund years.

The lulure realisalion and finalsslion of claims inoumed but nol roported Lo 3006 this year mesy wesull in fulure Rebiiies or

beniclis 55 a rosull of pad ovents [hal Coundl will be roouired fo Rund ar shane in respecialy
(i} SlataCaver Limitad

Councll is a member cf StateCover Mutual Limited and holds & paly paid share in the entiy

SlaeCover is a company previding workers compensalion insumame aner b he NSW bod govemeend indusdry snd

spechically Counol

Council has a conlingenl liability ko contribule further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital base as a

esull of lhe companys past
Irom APRA

perdommance andior daims expenence or ss @ iesull of any inoessed prudenbial eguirements

These fulure equity contributions would be required te maintain the campany’s minimum level of net assals in accordance

with ils licence requirements.

(i) Other guarantees.

Council has provided no olher guaraniees olher [han Those Islod ahove
2. Other liabililres

{0y Third party claims

The Coundl & mvolved [rom lme Lo me in varous dairs incidental o te ordinary course of business. including clains. for

damages relaling o ils seracos

wlnued on neal page .
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 16. Contingencies and other assetsflizbilities not recognised (amntinued)

Councl beheves that #is appropnately covered for all claims through ks insumnoe coverage and does not cxpedt any materal
habilibes to eventuate.

(i) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council

Council hes classified a number of privately owned land parcels as local open spece or bushiand.

As a result, where nolfied n witng by the vanous owners, Counal will ba required o purchase these land parcets.

AL reporting date, refiable estimates a5 to the velue of any potentinl labiy (and subsequent iand assef: from such polential
soguiilions hes nol been possible

ASEETS NOT RECOGNISEND
{i) Larnd under roads

As permitted under AASE 1051, Coundl has slected net to bring 1o account land under rads that i owred or conlolied up
Io and including JVG/0E.

(i) Infringement neticesMnes

Fines and ponally income, Lhe resullof Council ssuing infringement notioes s [olkmed op snd oofiedied by the Infingement
Processing Bursau.

Council's revenue recoanibon policy for such income IS io account for If 85 Evenue on recept
Accordingly, &t year end, there 1s a potenbal assel due 1o Councll epresenting saued bul unpad mirmgemsnt nofoes.

Due to the imied information available on the stahus, velue and durefion of cutstending notices, Councilis unable lo determine
the value of nUtstanding income.

Page 600l B8
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I mancial Stetements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Staterments
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 17. Financial risk management

Risk management

Counci's activities expose it in a variety of financial risks including (1) price fsk, {2} credit risk, (3} lquidity risk and {4) inferest
rale risk

Ine Uounal's overall nsk manage ment program focuses on the ungredwiabiity of fnancal markals and seeks to mnmss
petential sdverse affects en the financial performance of the Courdl

Council does not engsge in fransactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore nof subdert ke fareinn currency sk
Fnanceal nek management s camed out by Council’s finance sechion under policres. spproved by the Councl.

M camparsson by calegory ol lhe carying amounts and fair valies of Souncl’s lrencda aecls and Tnancs Ebilitios
mecognised in lhe inancal slalemenls & posenled belowr

Camyingweiue Carryingvalue  Fairveive Fair value
5000 2ma 2018 2013 2018
Financial assels
Measured at amortised cosl
Cash and cash equivalents 47 179 36,755 AT AT 36755
Reconables 238 2008 I B 27 08
Investments
Financial issels al amorlsed sl held 165331 197,737 185351 197 732
matunty” (2018)
Olher linancial asscls - 45 a5 B 4% B 495
Total financial asset= 256,852 256,990 256,662 256,990
Financial liabikitiss
Payahbles 12,931 12,023 12931 12039
 oansadvanues : 82 W7 67354 fi? 387 67 356
Total financial liabilities o TE M8 79,395 75318 79,395
Fair value is determined as follows
= Cashand cash equivaients, , —are estimaled bo be the camying value hal approximates marke!

value

* Borrawings and held-to-malurity investments —are based upon eshmaled future cash tiows dscounbed by the cument
mid mlerest rates apphicable Lo assels and habilbes wih simdar nsk profiles, unless quuied market prces are availk=bls.

= Tinancial assels dassified {i) “at fair value through prefit and loss' or (i) "svallable-for-sale’ —ame besed upon quotad
market prices (in adive markets for identicel invesiments) at the eporfing date or independent veination.

Council's objective is tn maximise &s relum on cash and invesimenis whils! maintaining an adequete level of iquidity and
presenving capital.

Councl's inanoe arca menages the cash and reeslments portfoio wilh e assslzocoe of ndependend advisors

Council s an invesiment pelicy which compliss with the Local Governmeant Ad 1983 and Minister's investment omder 625
This policy is requlary reviewed by Council and it's stalf and an investment report is abled before Coundl on 2 mont iy besis
satting out the portfalio brealup and its performance es required by Local Govemment regulations.

e nsks assooated with the mstuments held are:

wolmued on neal page . Page 610l 86
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Stalements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

= Price risk the rek that the capdal value of Imestments may flociuate doe ta changes n market poces, whether
thare changes are caused by factors speahc o indvdual inancal mstruments or ther issuers or are caused by factors
afflechng simiar instruments traded n a market

* Interest rate risk — the risi thal movements in interest rates could affect retwms and ncome.
« Liguidity rigk— the nsk that Council will not be able to pay is dabts as and whan thay fall dua
= Credit risk — Lhe risk thal the investment counterparty will nof complete their cbiigations particuar lo & financial
instrument. resulting in a finandel loss to Council — be it of a capital arincome nature.
Council manages lhose risks (amongs! olher moessures) by diversilying i porfola and anly ponchasing mmeesimends wilh high
crixdit ratings or captal guarantces

Counzl alss seeks agvice rom independent advisers bafore plcing any fnds in cash equivalents and nvestments.

(a) Market risk — price risk and interest rate risk

Ihe wnpact on resull lor lhe year and equely of a8 icasonably possiblie movement m the poce of mvestmiends hoeld and oberesd
rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements were determined based an historical movemerts and economic
conditions in place at the reporting date

ol [ af
£'000 Profit Equity Profit Enquity
2019
Possible impacl of a 1% movemenl in inleres] mles 2378 2378 {* 308) [7.578)
2018
Possible impacl of & 1% movementin interest mtes 2345 2345 2345 [2,345)

(b) Credit risk

Council's magor recesvahlas compnse 1) rales and annual chargas and (1) usser Charges and lees

Council manages the credit risk with these r by manitanng culstanding debt and emplioving srngent
debt recovery procedures. Council also encoursges ralepayers to pay their mtes by the due date throwgh incanties.

Ihe credit nsk For kguid funds and other short-lerm financal asscls s conscdemd neghghie, smoe e ounlerpartes are
repulabie banks with high quality sxtermal credit ratmgs.

There ame no signficanl concenlralions of cedl sk, whether heough exposare bo indiadus] ostomer s, specific ndusly
seriors andfor regions

The level of outstanding receivables is reported o Council monthly and benchmarks e set and monitored for scceptable
ecliection perdormance.

Council makes suilsble provision lor doublul receivables os required and corrices ol credil checks on most nonsie deblos

There are no material recevables that have been subjecled 1o a re-negofiation of repayment lerms

Credit riak profile

Receivables — rates and annual charges

Credil risk on sales and anmesl chames is minimesed by e ability of Comel b seomre a chenge over e bnd elaling o e

debts — that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt Council is also able in charge interest on cverdus rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of deb.
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I mancial Statements 2012

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

Mol yel <iyear 1-Jyemsr= 2-Syems > Byears
~ Total
2014
Gross carrying amount 2,547 650 - - - 3187
2018
Grass Carrying amaunt 1,604 iz - - - 2536

Recelvables - non-rates and annual charges

Council applies the simpified approach Tor non-rates and amual chames deblors o provide for expected cedif losses
prescribed by AASB @, which permits the use of the lifetime expecied lbss prvision. Te measure the expecied credit bsses,
non-m@tes &nd annualchages debtors have been grouped based on shamed oedit nsk chamdenshes and fhe deys past due

The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2019 is detenmined as follows. The expeded oredil losses incorporale forward-
loeking information.

Nolyel 0-30days 3 -60days 61-50days =01 days

overdue overdus overdug overdus overdue Total
2018
Gross carrying amount 148.604 827 76 42 9 21,388
2018
Gross canyimy amounl 18 188 531 481 114 W 16 504

{c) Liquidity risk
Payahbles and bormowings ane both subect ko iquiddy nsk — the nsk that nsuficent funds may be on hand fo mest paymant
cbligabions as and when they fall due.

Council marsages lhisrsk by monilonng ilsmsh low reguircments snd bouidily loveds sed msindaning an sdoousle ceh ulfor
Payment lerms can (in extenualing cdrcumstances] akso be extended and overdraft faciifies uliised as raquired.

Bormowings are glso subject to inlarest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could achersaly affect funding
cosks end debl servidng requirements. Councl maneges Lhis risk throogh dversificaiion of bormowing bypes, maluibes end
inleresl mle siroclures. Thee linance: leam rogulardy roviews inferesl sie movements e delermine T i would be sdvanlageous
o refinance or renegotate part or all of the loan porliolo.

The timing o cash flows presented in the table below Io sefile finencial lisbifies reflects the earfiesi conlraciual sefilemant
dates. The timing of expecied outfiows s not sxpected 10 be malerally difierent from contracten cashfiows.

Ihe amounts dsclosed in the Eble are the undiscounted confracted cash fioas and thercfore the balances m the tabls may
nat equal the balances in the statement of finandal positon dus io the effect of dscounting.

Weight=d
average  Subject payable in- Actual
Interesl fono 1-5 Totsl cash carrying

$'000 rmte  maturity <1 Year Years ~ O VREE  tnows values

2019

Tradefother payables - 1,748 11,183 - - 12931 12931

Loans and advances B.10% - BAAT  3u3rs  AbEM 830w 62387

Total financial liabilities 1,748 30064 35575 45814 103001 75318

2018
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I'mancial Sietements 2013

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 17. Financial risk management (continued)

Waighled
average  Subject paynbie in- Actual
Interesl o no 1-5 Taotsl cash earrying
5000 mle  maturty <1V wege TEYRAE ongue values
Trade/other payables - 1,601 10,358 - - 12,009 12,039
Loans and advances BAO% - 8058 35653 5449 99106 G735
Tatal financial linbilities 1681 1936 35653 54495 11945 79395
Page: 640 86
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Note 18. Matenal budget vanations

I mancial Stetements 2012

Council's ongingl linancisl budgel lor 4819 was adopled by the Counal on 250872018 and s mawdied

While the Income Staterment included in this General Furpose Finandial Statements must disdlose the orginel budget adopted
by Council, the Local Covernment Act 1993 requires Counci o review ifs finendal budget on 8 quarferly basis, so hatif is
ahle o marsge the various varigtions between actuals versus budgel that invarisbly oocur throughout the year

Ihis note sets out the delails of malerial variations batween Councils angnal budoel and s achual results for he year as
per the Income Statemen — even though such vanabons may have been adusted for durmng each quarierly budge: review.

Malonial vanalons epresenl Those vadances bolween the original budocl lgueo aod he acest esoll hal smoonl 1o 10%

o mone

Variation Key: F = Favouraklke budget varalion, U = Unfavourable budget varnation.

M9 2019
5 '000 Busigat Actual
REVENUES
Rales and annual chemes B1 767 67438
User charges and loos 42 300 46303

There was inome ecesved (om RMS for Slale Road deirrs thal was nol budgeled

Adddional incame from water, sewer and waste charges was recenved than onginally budgeted for.

Interest and investment revenue 5,155
Counci's imvesiment porticlic has continued o exceed banchmarks sat
Addiicnal unbudgetad grant income was invested until the funds needed Io be remiited

683

Other revenues 2,236 1934
Sundry income itemns budgeted were not received
Operating grants and contributions M7 18610

42.5m of grant money from the Roads 1o Recovery Program was budgeted but nol received.

Capilal granls and conlribulions

Adrdtional grant money was received for the below pmjects:

- $8m melaling lo lhe corslruclion al he Dubbo Azodome
&% 5m relating o Tourism and Sporting Facilities

- $2 5m for mads and dought funding

An additonal §13m from non-cash contributions was recefved then odminally budgeted for

24,208 48172

Het gans from disposal of essets Eod i<
Councl neceivod more mvenue fom Bnd sates Than odginally esiimeslod

Joint venlures and assocates — net profits - a9
EXPENSES

Employee benelds and orcosls 47 511 41423

Tre number of job vacanrizs was higher than antidpated, which resulted in 8 lower smployee cosl

Bormawing costs 4,037 4475
Counci spent mare on quarmy and tip restoralion than orging/ty budgeted.
Malonals and conlracls 27 BS54 38045
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2018

e Variance® ——
678 1% F
400 0% F
1679 W F
(32) (4% U
(3,134) 4% U
23,943 ®|mu T
Lling 1% -
A9 - F
5,088 3% T
(may (m% U
(10,191} @N% U
Py 650 56
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Note 18. Matenal budget vanations (continued)

2019 2019
5°000 Budget Actual

Council engaged addiional contraciers and consultants to finalise many omoing prajeds.

Deprecialion and amedisalian 31,520 20 506
Olhor expensos 14,783 16 200

I mancial Stetements 2012

2019
——Variance”™ ——
2023 6%
(7.137) g4 U

Council had inceased expenses in relalion lo adverlrsing, bad and doublful debts, sbocel Ighling smd donalios end

conlrbulions ke local organisabons than orginally hudgeled

Revaluahon decrement F impament of IPP&E - 122 408

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Mel cassh provided lrom {used in) operating arlivilies 58,850 68,312

(122 459} @« U

9,462 8% T

This varistion hes nccumed due o g significant amount in capital grant funding either being ariginsll budgeled

but was received earfier than anticipated or grant funding that was nof orginally budgeted

Hel cash provided lrom (used in) invesling advilies [Iah A7) [©7919)
Mel cssh prowoed rom (used ) inancng scnhes [4,922) (1,968
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 19. Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures Lhe following assel and liabilily chrsses sl fair value on & recuring basis.
- Infrastructure, property, piant and equipment

The lairvalue of assels and liabililies must be eslimaled in sccordance with vanoons sooouniing slandard's for cd ber recngmifion
and messuremenl requiremenls or lor desdosuie purposes

AASD 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabikties measured at fair vaive to be assigned (o 2 ‘level’” in the
Tair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadusted quoted pices in aciive markets for dentical assels or babitias that the entty can acoess
at the measurement date.

Level 2- inputs ather than quoted prices included within level 1 that are chservabie for the asset or labiity,
cilhor diredlly or indiredly.

Level 3: Inpuls for the asset or labity that are not based on cbservable market dala (uncbservable mputs).

(1) Assetls and ligbilities thet have been measured and recogrised at fair velues

Fair value measurement hisrarehy

Leval 1 Level 2 Levei 3

203 Date of Quoted  Significant  Significant
Recurring fair value messurements "":;5; ﬁ"";“':.": "“"r‘\':"m" _:::’;;', ot
Infrasiructure, property, plant and equipment
Capital works in progress 300618 23,165 23165
Planl and equipment 0614 2678 HET8
Omee cquipment 30014 - 2.1 - 2133
Turriture and rtngs T - 1,510 - 1,510
Operahonal land SO 18 - 36,649 - 36,649
Community lard 120916 - — 35684 55684
Land undes roads {pos! 30/06/2008) 12054 12,054
Land mprovemenls  non deprecibie 300610 1801 101
Land mprovement — dopresanke 300608 - - 236 2376
Awport unwaystaxrvays SYOE 15 - - 29 557 9582
Buldmngs — neh-speaaised 08 1 - - 28449 4109
Bulldings — speciabsed Bl - - 1io438 110439
Ofer sbudures 300613 73416 73418
Raals 00618 N a4s 000 B45
FLK cartrworks 300619 - - Inm 392783
Slermwaler dranage SYDE 15 - — pasi vl 203,952
Waler SUpply nebwork S00E - - 249534 299,834
Sewerage network 3006 1T - - A2 264219
Swimming poois 120516 6.2650 6260
Ofhes opea spaosiecrcalons! ussels 120516 - - - -
Quany assals 300614 - - |7 1957
Heriaqe coechons 00607 - - » 28
Ulner assels 3onear - - a.500 1300
Tip restoration assets SODENS - - 4 4
Quany restordion assels 300618 B75 275
Tolal infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment N 2404763
conlnued on neal page Page 670l 86
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Note 19. Fair Value Measurement (cortinued)

I mancial Stetements 2019

Far valus measuremsnt hisrarchy

Leval 1 Lavel2
20e Dae ot ot Signincant
; f fatest pricesin  observable
.He:urrlrlg fair value measurements valuation  activemids nputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cate of Quoted Significarmt  Significant
latast Pricesin  ocbsenvable  unobsenv-
valuafion  active mits imputs  able inputs Total
Infrasiructure, property, plant and equipment
Akl Warks in Prograss 0017 - -
Flant and equipment SODE 1L — it vl
Dnce equipment SO0 1L — 1,594
Furniture and fitings 300614 — 16143
Operalional land V0618 55
Community and 300611 - -
1 ani unaer raans (posl A062008) A eosi - -
Land mprovements — non-deprecatie VL - -
Land mprovement — degreciabhe 3006@ — —
Alrport runwaysftarways 300615 — —
Bulldngs non speckalised 3oneie
Flilldmgs — peckksed 00618 - -
Oiner stuchures E=al — -
Hoads V0TS - —
Eulk earfiwarks. iy - -
Slomwater dramage 300615
Waler supply relwork, IOTETT
SCWTRRGE nehrrk IET — -
Swimming pooés 1S 1R - -
DINET Open SHaneiTecTeanonal assets 120516 — —
Quarry assats DG - —
Herilzge colledions UGS
Olher assels el
Tip restoration assits 300618 — _
Guany restorahion assets E il — —
Tolal infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment - 66,194

Level 3
signineant
unobsary-
able inguts

15 5T

35 @
085
1,891
2468
24787
24507
ST
71438
9,017 2
06 302
185411
247 188
765 490
3,104
1.987

28

1.193

2
]

2321493

-

Total

15,587
2312
1659
1€43
35,545
36 91
10555
1,801
2466
TET
HECT
SIS
1435
1,617,532
308302
195411
247,188
765,490
3,104
1857
28
1.153
€E

_E‘I.E -

2367577

During the yaar, thers were no transfers batween level 1 and level 2 fair value hiemmchiss far recuming far value

mizsuremenls

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair valuas

Where Cound| is unable ko derive fair valuations using quoled markel prices of identical assels. (ie level 1 inputs) Coundl
instead utiises a spread of both observable inputs {level 2 inputs) and unobserveble inpuls (level 3 npuls’.

The lair valualion lechrgues Councl has employed while lbilising lewsl 2 and level 3 npols ane s olloss

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment {IPP&E}

Level 2 nputs

wonlmued on neal page .
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 19. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

Plant & equipment

It is considered that there is a liquid second hand markel for Councis plant and equipment, however, there is subjectiviy of
prices in this market dependent on the sge and condition of the equipment being soid. Council has determined that the piant
and equipmentis o be clessified as level 2 inputs.

Office equipment and furniture & fittings

There s 4 liquid second hand markel lor Lhese lypes of assels. bul the markel = nol iqud enough o qually The gssels s
valued al lovel 1 Tho reason lor relaming book value in nele 8 is thal hose sssols [ypically have vory shord psofl [kes, ao
held 1o the end of her cconomic life and beve no mesidus| valoe, amd e wiillen down valoe eflods Bwir value in ose ratbo
than thesr market value

Operational land

Ihere 15 an actve hquid market for most of Council's Operahonal Land, howsawer, the subgcivty of pncing has msulted m
this land to ba classified as Lavel 2

Level 3 inputs

- idlised and

Valuations of buildings was caied out by an exiemal valuer, but the valuation was on the wrifen down cument replacemant
cosl of lhe buldings ralher lhan he markel wloe Consequently, all buildings are calogersed as level 3 unobsereaibke npuls,
= |he valuslions do nol refled markd valualions

Quarry assats

The quary assels are valoed on e basis of e price of aoguinng the same guelily male il (mm commencsl gearrics Thal
ppoeale wilhn he Dubbo ocal governmenl ama The eason for level 3 clesificalion s that hee s a degoe of esmalion
required lo determine the amount of material remaining in the quamy, and also the polentisl vanaticn n qualty of the materal
that has yat o ba won frem the quarry.

Capilal works in progress

I he valustion mathod employed 15 the cost of construchon of the asset. As thare s no actve markal for any of the infrastmcture
assets that are parlially constructed, the only valuation available is cost, or inputs o the construction work, which s a level
3 unobservable input

Community land

Community land was valued using urban and rural average municipal sie values. These were determined by snalysing the
Iniz| ratesbie value of urban and rural lands. and then dividing the iolal valustions by the otal srea o delermine sn avercge
rate per hectare or squere metre. This was then applied i ihe areas of community land. This work was camed ouf by CouncTs
mhng staff 1hs method has no market cbseriabic inputs as the mebag value = the valuabon proended by the Waluer General for
ratng purposes, and may or may not align with the market value of the land However, it rs nof & markst waluaton of the land.
Ihegvel 3 unobservable inputs are the valuatons provided by the Valuer General on which the value ot the land is determined

Land under roads

Council has elected to only recognise land under roads that have been acquirad after 30 .June 2008 There are o methods by
which this land is valued, neither of which represent the market value of the land as there is no market for lznd that is cumently
used for road or road reserve purpeses. Land which & ransferred (o Council from privale subdividers is valued using the
municipal site valua as cutlinad in valuation of community land abeve. Lend under roads reialing 1 Council's swn subdivisions
& valued al lhe cosl of Lhal land 8l soquisilion, on & aea bass The keval 3 unotexervabie impuls ae e aeeane monicpal
=io value of subdviders land vestod in Council, and Lhe costol he and scoueed by Counol for subdrasion on an smea bese

Land improvements depre<iable and non-cepreciable

land imprwvernenls - norkdepreciable ame valued al current replscement cesl This is a level 3 onohsorebln nml &8s Lhe
valus ion melhod does nol reflec] 8 marked rale 85 here s no adive merhael for sshe of Ead mmproecmenls - nor-depreciablk:

conlnued on neal page . Payge 690l 86
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Note 19. Fair Value Measurement (cortinued)

ki - T and ialised and ether siructures (including swimming pools and open
spaceirecreational assets)
\aluations of buildings was caried out by an extemal valuer, buf the valuation was on the written down cumrent replacement

cost of the buidings rether than the market velue. Consequently, all buldings are oateqoirised as level 3 unobzervahle inpuls,
s Lhe valualors do nol reflled mako valualons

Infrastructure roads, bridges and foolpaths
Valualion of roads was undes laken by Coundl slall, based en the currenl weillen dosen vale of e osd sw=cols within Cooncls

nolwork As s is besed on Lhe curenl cosls of constuction st lime of valation, snd nol markel wioe, his wialion s a
Ievel 3 unobsendable input valuabon

Bulk earlhwarks [non-de preciable)

Valuahbon of non deprecabie bulk earthworks has bwe diferent waluabons depending on whather the earhworks relata ko oads
or stormwater relarding basins. All earthworks refating 1o ads were valued in conpunchon wth the valuabon of the roads
by Council staff, on a curent replacement cost basis. All slormwater retarding basin earflworks were valued on a cument
replacement cosl basis by Council slaff a5 an intemal valualicn. The basis of defermining the value for infemal valuations
wes 4 combingtion of the cost of similar works camied oul by Counci, recent simiar contract works, and reference rates for
rconslmiclion ol similar earbworks Ralh Lhe nlemal and exiomal vaheslions sre [ovel 3 onohservsbde npubs vahetions doe b
thiz facl Thal marke! valuslion was nol a fador in delermining the value of the asels

Stormwater, waler and sewer infrastructure assats

All three asset networks were valued by Coundil staff using recent Council cost of constucting similar assets, rerent contractor
costs to construct Council assets, and then cross vahdabng the costs o constnuchon costindeses provided by tho HEW Offce
of Water. | he witten down value was then assessed by esimating the lolal and remaming usehul [ves of ihe assel i determune
the wntten down current replacement cost of each asset.

Herllage collection assets

Ihese tems compnse hisloncal artefacts that have been oblained generally by purchase through anbque dealers or through
private sale_ As there & not an active liquid market in the: types of fems acquired, they are valued at cost, and therefore have
been assessed as being Level 3 unobseryable input valuations.

Library books

The library books are reported at fair value in the notes, however, due 1o he nature of these fems they are valued at cost
There are no major varnancse between the fair value and carrying ameoun of ihese assets. The cost of hese assels were
basod on invoices al the Ume of capilalisalion.

Tip and quarry restoralion assets

It hes heen recognised that there will be significant costs associated with the dasure and post closure monagement of the
landill and quanmy assels. Closure ol Lhe lndhil and queny siles will mvolve s wide range of advibes, ncodng foal capping
of lhe andfill wesle and sile revegelalion, moniloring of landfill gees, measion ol e sufsce waler marsgement syshom and
leachate management mitastructure to suit post clesure operabon.

Valuations ame based on actual timing of costs and fubure envimnmental manegement requirements.

Iham were no changes in valushon lkechnques from pnor years

{3) Fair value measuraments using significant unobservabla inputs (level 3}

a. The following labies present Lhe changes in level 3 fair value assel ciasses.
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Note 19. Fair Value Measurement (cortinued)

Capital works Community Land under
5000 In progress Land Roads
Capital works. ~ Communlty  Land under
5000 im prog ress. Land Roads
2018
Opening balance 28017 35,840 0,106
Transfers fromi{to) ancther asset 11,464} 149y 8
class
Purchases (GHV) 134 1.1
Degrecialicn and impaiment - - -
Closing balance 15,567 35,601 10,355
2018
Opening balance 15,567 35,691 10,955
Transfers from/{in} another sssal (3,283} - -
chass
Purchases {G0V) 10,861 - 1,175
Disposals (WDV) - 6] (26}
Deprecialion and impaiment = - =
Closing balance 73,165 35,664 12,054
Bulidings nan Building Othar
§ 000 ali i
2018
Opening balance 15633 5,797 57048
T:nsfers fromi (o) ancther asset (1,069} 1,062 2928
chss
Purchses (GRV) 245 4668 14 863
Depreciation and impaimart 429y (2.202) @AM
FVgains  olhor comprehonsive 10,277 23 504
NYCOSTHE N . . .
Closing balance 24 B0F 93,004 £1,436
2019
Opening balance 4B 93,00 #1498
Trhmsrers fromv(to) ancthor assel (958) = {640}
rlass
Purchasas {GHV) 1542 20,503 GGi7
Disposals WD) — [393) (213}
Depredialion and impsimment : (183 (3,724) (3.547)
Closingbalance 24179 110,439 75 418

Bulik Starmwaler Watsr supgly

5000 sarthweorks drainags nelwork
2018
COpening balance 307, re2 184,601 234 8

conlmued on neal page .
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Land
improvement
E Land
man-deprecia mvenl
ble s depreciable
Land
improvement
E] Land
mon-deprecia  improvement
ble s depeciable
1.801 342
- [1,084)
a47
- (05)
1,801 2469
1.601 2469
- M3
- M
- €29)
1.801 2376
Airports,
Funways,
Foads taxiways
1,004,505 14 835
4208 )
17.710 LR
(9,361) 423)
1017557 74 781
1071432 24 (87
1611 —
13,3903 5374
(131,901) )
00, 845 20 587
Sewerage Swimming
network pools
20,496 587
Fage T1ol 36
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Nate 19. Fair Value Measurement (cortinued)

I nan

1al Sietements 2019

Bulk Starmwaler Water supply Sewerzge Swirmming
5000 rks inag: network pools
Transfers romi{ln) anolhor assol el TA (254) (B5)
class
Purchases (GBV) 537 506 5,145 5217 402
Disposals (WIV) () vy
Depreciation and impairment - i3] (5,067 4.902] o)
NV gains — olher comprehensive - - 4834 5,560 -
ncome . B ~
Closing balance 308,302 135,110 2,188 2,180 3.0
2019
Qpening balance 308,302 180,110 217,188 el 3.9
Transfers fromé{lo} ancther assel 417 T 2,53 (1,635) -
class
Purchasas {GHV] au 8014 107 102 3./53
Disposals (WDV) — [165) — - (@90}
Nepronahon and imparment {1,0448) [5,173) {4 804) {107}
FV gains — other comprehensive 83,150 - 3.006 4,146 —
nceme — - - - - - -
Closing balance 302,783 203,952 240,834 264,213 €260
Other open Tip
SpECcE Haritags restoration
5'000 _recrestional  Quarry assets collections  Otherassefs assets
20118
Opening balance 2418 1,997 28 1,238 365
Transfers from/{in) another ssset (2418} - - - -
class
Purchases {GOV) - - - - 436
Disposals (WD) - - - (553)
Depreciation and impaiment ~ — - — _{45) (156)
Closing balance — 1,997 Pt 1193 66
2019
QOpening balanecs — 1,087 B 1,183 BB
Purchasas {GAV) - - - 148 51
Deprecialion and impainmonl . (A1) (313)
Clcsingbalance 1,9/ o 1,300 L)
Quarry
resforation
§°000 assets Total
2018
Opening balance 238 2237 851
Iranslers romi{lo) ancthor mssel diss 75 ]
Purchases {GOV) 81 68,743
Disposals (WDV) {1,188)
Depreciation and impaimant [3) (27 A30)
FV gains — other comprehensive income - 43925
Closing balance 818 2321434
2018
conlnued on neal page . Poge 720l 86
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Note 19. Fair Value Measurement (cortinued)

5000

Qpening balance

Transfers framy{tn) another asset dass
Purchases (GRV)

Disposals (WDV)

Deprecialion and impairmenl

FV gains — other comprehensve incoma
Closing balance

{4} Highest and best use

I mancial Sisfements 2019

Quarry
restoration
amets

B16
i3
[60)

Bfa

All of Councifs non-finencisl assels sre considered as being uiilised for their highes end best use

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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Total

2,321,484
78 302
[1,306)

(152 282)
51,187

2,534,793
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APPENDIX NO: 1 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFERTO
AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for tho year cnded 30 June 2019

Note 20. Related Party Transactions

(a) Key management personnel

Mnancial Stat=ments 701

Key management personncl (KMP) of the coundl are those persons having (ke authority and responsibiity For planning, direcling and confrolling the activiics of the coundl, direcly or

indrectly.

The aogregate amount of KMP compensalion ncluded in the Income Stafement is:

5'00D =18 2098
Compensalion:

Short-term bepefits 1505 ? 577
Uther lengerm boneits ol 847
Termination benefts . - 608
Tolal 2405 3972

(b) Other transactions with KMP and their related parlies

Council has determined that transactiors at amn's length belween KMP and Counal as part of Counol deivenng 8 pubkic service obecive {2 g access lo [brary or Counnl swenming

pool by KMP) will not be disclosed.

There sre no olher disdosures o be made by KMP.

(c) Other related party transactions
Mil
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements

for tho year cnded 30 Junec 2019

Note 21. Statement of developer coniributions

Mnancial Sftat=ments 7013

Linder the +marnnmenial [annmg and Assessmerd Act 1973, Council has significant abiigatons in pravde Sechon £ 11 (moninbubicns trwards provsion or mmprovement of amenbes or
servioes) infrashuclume in new olease aeas.

[t is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of ths nfrastructure, requiring Coundl fo bomow or use generzl revenue to fund the diference.

$ "uon

Cvain age

Roads

Parking

Cpen space

Vountary planring agreements
5711 cantribufions — under a plan

5712 levies - under aplan
Tofal $7.11 and 57.12 revernue under
plans

57 11 not under pans
I atal contribubaons

continusd on next pags ..

Summary of contributions and levies

s 6t IWHEX18 asef 062013 0
Contribubons Cumulstree
received diming the year Inferest Expenditare Intemnal Heldas mtemal
Opening Cashe [Pa— eamed during borrowing restricled borrawings
Halance - m year year (i )rem assat dueYpayabla}
1.782 Ha — a5 (845 — 1574 —
9,708 1578 170 [1.223) 9,730
95 - — 1 — - 56 —
2.100 1 — 43 (1] - 2104 —
228 198 o o6
12,37 3,182 — 9 2818 - 13,920 -
31 35 - — {31) — 33 —
13,88 kg b — 749 [7 549) - 1553 -
EC - — — — - 74 —
13622 3215 - 248 (2,849) - 14,237 -
Page TS of 36
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year cnded 30 Junc 2019

Note 21. Statement of developer contributions (continued)

at INE2018
S Confridutions
recerved dunng e year
$T00 g‘; ) Cosh B B Nen-cash
S7.11 Contributions — under a
plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN (formar Dubbo)
Orainage 1,785 55 -
Roads 9,908 1.578 -
Parxng 95 - —
Dpen space 2,700 71 -
Voluriary planning agreoments 28 ~ 198 -
Tatal o 13317 3,182 -
S§7.12 Levies — under a plan
CONTRIBUTIGN PLAN NUMBER 2012 {former Wellington)
Publc aider and sakety 5 5 -
Communily seraces and education 5 5
Househald and commurily amenities 5 5 -
Recreaion and culture 3 6 -
Transport and communication 4 5
Econamic affairs B 6 7 -
Total ) 31 33 _

continued on next page ...
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Interest
eamsd

_wn year

35
170

43

248

Ezxpenditurs
g

_—

(845)
(1.223)
(750)

(2,818)

Infema!
borrowmg

_ Qu)fimm

Moancral Statemends 7019

suse0e
Cumulsive
Held as inferal
TeEUiC boroungs
assel cuefpaysble)
1574 -
@730 -
96 -
2,104 -
£6 -
13930 —
5 —
5
5 -
' -
£
7 _
kxd —
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Mnancial Statements 7019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for tho year cnded 30 June 2019

Note 21. Statement of developar contributions (continued)

o Esat WA - E 1 BT _—
Confribafions Cumulsine
recended dumg he year Erterest Expendiurs Infemal Heldas el
‘Openmg Cash " " eamesd during DborFOWIRg mesiricied HOTSEINgE
$ oo . Febme | Heneesh myear year Qujfiom sl duelfpayebls)
S57.11 Contributions — not
under a plan
{lormar Wallingion}
Drainage 75 - - - - - s _
Roads 118 - - - - - 1a -
Open sTEcE 3= - - - — - 55 _
Community faalhes 10 - — — - - 1 -
Emergency services ) 36 : — — — — - 36 —
Tatal FIL — - — — - 274 —
Page TT cl{ 86
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I mancial Statements 2019

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 22. Financial result and financial position by fund

Gerneral * Water Sewer
5000 2018 2013 2018
Income Statement by fund
Incoma from continuing operations
Rales and annual changes 47 B3] 7785 12325
User charges and lecs 23,264 18250 41,580
Interest and investment revenue 4,138 1,183 1483
Cthor ricvenues 1,808 6 63
Granis and contributions provided for operating purposes 18,364 147 119
GCranits and contibutions provided for capitel purposes 43410 2480 2282
Other income
Hel gains Irom disposal of esscls 03
Snare of interests in jaint ventures and assccates using the equity 19 — -
method
Tetal incoms from continuing operaticns 124 580 29 381 21,162

from

Employee benefils and on cosfts a2 M1 5,014 3,988
Bomowing cests 1,085 1534 16
Matenals and conlracts 1,67 4,104 221
Depreciaticn and amotisation 18,673 3,560 5073
Ciher expenses 12,347 1042 1541
Met losses from the disposal of assets 19 {2} (17}
Reveluation decrement impeimment of IPPE ) 120,574 655 1226
Total expenses from continuing operations 217879 18 931 14,858
Operatng result from continuing operations _ (B3289) = 9450 = 65204
Met operating result for the year ~ {B3,289) 9450 6,204
Met aperating result atirbutable to esch council fund (A3 789} a450 £204
Met operating result for the year belore grants and (125,692) 6,970 3522

contributions provided lor capital purposes.
MU Al amounks disclosed above ans grose — that 1s. Iney nchade miernal charges and ecovenes made bebesen he Lnds.

[ Geneya: fund relers fo allof Councibs achiviles =xcept Tor s waler and sewer actvilles which are bsted separaiely.

o lnued on neal page . Poge TE &8
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Dubbo Regional Council e
Notes to the Financial Siatements
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note 22. Financial result and financial position by fund (continued)
General * Viater Sewer
5'000 018 2013 08
Statement of Financial Position by fund
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 26,02 10,128 10,348
Investments 43,000 23330 15.000
Recoables 13,664 &,7/8 7978
Inventories 2607 167 -
Cther 456 & -
Tolal current ssssts B, 60 40411 268.27F
Mon-cumrent assels
Investments 60,001 17.500 26 500
Recsivables. 8r — —
Inventories 4,076 - -
Infrsstudure, popery, planl and equipmenl 1,854,745 2 361 78T 857
Investments sccounted for using the equity method 1,533 - -
Cther ) 51 44 —
Total noncurrent asssts 1,821,063 ZFa.805 314157
TOTAL ASSETS © zowrTeR 320316 342434
LIABILITIES
Current abllities
Payables 12,209 A 296
Income received in advance 414 - -
Barrowings 2,049 1.06G 201
Provisicns 11,946 1212 -
Tolal current Eabilities 26618 P 227
Mancurrent liabilities
Payables 1 - -
Bormwings 16,030 23735 15,463
Provisions B 562 6 —
Total non-curent [[abilities 25,703 23 R00 15485
TOTAL LIAHILITIES T aman1 | 28566 17740
Net assets 1,857,881 293,750 324694
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 1,638,278/ 230 338 MLE18
Revaluation reseryes . 118,584 63411 18075
Council equity intsrest 1,957,681 293,750 2450
Tatal equity 1,857,881 293,750 324,694
NA A amounks dieclossn ahowt are gess — hat 1s, ey mouse micrmal chames ant mOoeenes mace belscen e unds. Asscks ang
Ratibies SNowN 0 e waler and Sewsr COMLMNS are resncied ioruse or Mese adnaes.
0 Geneda! rund relers 1o al ol Councls activiies seept far s water ann sewer actvites wneh ane kslod soparaiely
{n accardance wath s410(3) of the Local Govermment Act 1393
Page TS0l 88
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Naote 23(a). Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts  [Indicator Prior periods
5000 2018 2019 2018 2017

1. Operating performance ratio

Total centinuing operating revenue excluding capital

grants and conlibulions less ing ex; 1z 5,500
Total centinuing operating revenue excluding capital 136,209
granis and conlribulions 1

4.3%% 1843%  1510%

2. Own source operating revenue ratic

lotal conbnung operatng revenue excluding all
grants and conlribubions * 1168 B3I L3% LT A%

Total centinuing operating revenue 184,381

3. Unrestricted current ratic
Currenl assels less al edormal edrndions 28 967

55 =
Current liabiltes less specific purpose liablites 19,988 4382 5 B

4. Debt service cover ratio

Operaling result before capital excluding interest and
depreciationfimpaimment/smortisation ! 33 841
Prindpal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus 9,404
bormowing cosls {Income: Stalement)

4.24x 8% .78

5. Rates, annual charges, Interest and extra
charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 3.567

% ar
Rates, annual and exdra charges collectible 54, 935 5.42% 158% s

6. Cash expense cover ratlo

Guirent yoar's cash and cash equivalents plus all

lermdeposis 218,503 2505 2579 1.6
Monthly payments frem cash flow of operating and 8724 miths mths mihs
financing activities

Benchmark

=0.00%

=4l D%

=Zx

<10.00%

>3
mihs

[ Fxcludes fair value adustments, mversal of revaluation decrements, net gain an saie of assels, and net 055 of interests in joiot venkres

and associates.

Rl Lxcludes imparmentreva uahon decrements, net loss on sale of aseats, and net loss on share of nterests i jont venfures and

avsocates

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for tho year cnded 30 Junec 2019

Note 23(b). Statement of performance measures — by fund

‘General indicators * Water indicators
§ 000 2019 2018 2019 2018
1. Operating performance ratio
Tolal continuing cperating revenue cxcluding capital grants and confribufions Ioss
operaling expenses *7? ) (552 1355% 2581% 3 24%
Tolal continuing cperating revenue cxcluding capital grants end contrbutions *

2. Own source operating revenue retlo
Tolal conlinuing opsraling revenus exduding capilal granks and conlibulicns

Tolal conlinuing cperaling reveniue * 53.36% 4647% §113%  EETak

3. Unrestricted cument ratio
Cument assets less all external restidions
Cument labihes less specific purpose labilibes

4.35x 5 a7 14.61x 977

4_ Debt service caver ratia
Operating result before captsl excluding interest and
deprecahonimpairment/amortsabion *

[Frincipal repayments (Stalement of Cash MNows) plus bomowing costs (Income
Slatement)

233 4 Bix 5 Oax Sddx

5_Rates annual charges, interest and extra charges culstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outslanding — )
Rates, annual and cxira charges collectible - 222% 1635 s25% 434%

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Cumenl year's cash and cash equi plus all lerm deposils 16.87 1963 44 6 34353
Paymenls from cash Mlow of cperaling and lnancing aclvibes mtis mihs mihs mihs

| ontnoles
(1] - (2) RSBy 1 NOtES 3t TGl 283 anmve.
13) General hund refers Lo al of Coundlsachvics moop! or iswaler and sewer acivities whichare listed seporately.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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Séuu lndicl;n Eenchmark
018 2018

2077 Z652% >0.00%

ER 65% B300% >60.00%

12 42« 140ix 1k
0. D6x 10EMx 7%
1759% 163%% <10 00%
7185 187 >3
mihs mihs mihs
Page 81 {86
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I mancial Stetements 2073

Nate 23(c). Staternent of performance measures — consolidated resulls (graphs)

1. QOperating performance ralio
E]

- 1047
i |
g ESEY T
|
5, ) I
i i
| |
3 3 443
)
|
. I
2017 oy it) k]
Benchmark- — >000%

Purpese of operaling
pofrrmEma: mlio

Commentary on 201819 result

HNAAD s 43T

I

This Y10 MESSTES CouneTe
achwe vement of contanrg
apziatng expendture wikin
eratng ey

SOUIE 0 DENCRMEK: UDJe of ACCOUMING PIacice and HNancial REporing 421

2. Owm source operating revenue ratic

Shicegh s nalin 12 abeve 18 Banchmark of %, 1t
hax decreased sgnilcarty fom 247118 nacly due
I 2 rectuctior o nesees from Operohneal
Carhizufies and Faes Fan FAS Shils Rusds
projects.

[ Ruhio achices bochmark

I #ato = cutsoe nencmark:

I

Purpose of own sourcoe |

Commentary on 2ZUT8/T8 result

€25¢ R4y - -
G — oo | | operaling revenue ralio | JDYRIAG 33 435
4 T 2 5 ralic 439
I
#
N |
2
|8 D4 mRsuYEs, Al
ELY. RisThe GEOTCe of | | O SSUIGE OPe NG everE [t s reen above
o . r=iance on exieral fmeling the henrhmari of 50% Fus year due b the narmal
I ‘sourtes such as eperalig grmis Teved of Gl Lo
ard cenfriutre. |
" — e |
207 me | |
Benchmark: — > 60 00% |55 matio achicuss hencnman

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Pracice and Financial Reportng #27

3. Unrestricted current ratio

| Purpose of unrestocled L

W Rato s cuisde benchmark.

f Commentary on 20M8/78 result

N 25 currenl ralio
. ’ : RIGLBENETEREE
4.35 iy =1

o 3 r | |
o ¢t 143
5,
- o axaey Ihe sdequary of

7 A working capial and (s azéity i | | The unrcstacted curent @b tor 2019 has remaned

saiisy ooligzbors = e shoet wery sTong. A resut above 15 ndicales a sirang
| [ : = o ite esineze sctebes asity b3 st short ke cibagabons.
: of Crareil
L . ~ .
207 e 0318
Benchmok — 15K B Raln achicuns BeERcnTORR

Soume of benchmark: Code of Accounting Praclice and Fnancial Reporfng 427

conlnued on neal page .
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Nate 23(c). Staterment of performance measures — consolidated resulls (graphs)

| mancial Statements 2073

4. Debt service cover ratio .
i
‘ | Commentary on 201819 result
- ‘\‘umusa of debl senace
s 3m cover ralo ZUTBIE Falie
' |
g 44 [
54 53
2
This ralio musaurss e . _ _—
This ratio snftis parficaly shrang ndicati that
2- - t mmﬁmﬂm Ihere m 54 1 of Fan b et eveey £1 00 nfdeht
e Tom berfunark for Ui ralir s 280
o |
e s any | {
| | I - S -
Borchrark_ =2x [P Ralo achicwss benchmerk

Soume of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Mnancial Reporting #27

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and exira charges outstanding per

Ml Reto = cutsoe benchmank

123 >
3 ‘ Furpose of mtas, Commentary on 201819 result
annual charges,
i i il
L - —
L]
g , - 548
- B | Te assss e impad of Alough is 1t s incresed Fom kst year &
) "‘gm ﬁ‘;f;;m‘:ﬂu eIt B 5% recreseTts AN Eriremely sty deed
F1.} e $ 4 charp camdrs fqu 5
: | 72 s ey o recovery Wit FEEE R
|
L i it -
2d o) Pt Il
Renchmark — <1000% B Rate achicues Benchmark

SoUe o benchimark: Code of ACTountng Praciice and | mancial Reportng #21

Ml Rato s cutsoe pencaman:

6. Cash cover ratio
=
[ Commentary on 2018/18 result
I Purpase of cash _— - —
2579 75 expense cover ralio
E S 1345 ! SOTHIETAY 2505 Wi
Iﬁ’ 0
E 1550
5. =
§ ! This homiddy refo Indeae3 the
o ! B nurber of mowte 2 Cound G | | e penchmar for $rsraho s 10¢. This indcates
c "’“'-’ g uﬁtmﬂ e Ll Coamnst 151 2 wary nDng saai posiban
s ¥ | wlicw.
», :
2013 me |
L L
Benchmrk — > amirs [ Ratn achicwres Benchmo

Soume of benchmark: Code of Accounting Praclize and Fnandial Reporfng 427
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I nancial Statements 2019

Note 24. Council information and contact details

Principal place of business-
Church Street
Dubbo NSW 2830

Conlact details

Mailing Address:
PO RBox 81
Dubbo NSW 2830

Telephone: 02 6504 4000
Facsimile: 02 6501 1258

Officers
Chief Exacutive Officer
Michael McMahen

Respansible Accounting Qfficer
Jane Bassingthwaighte

Public Officer
Craig Giffin

Auditors

Audi Cfhice of New South Walcs
GPO Box 12

Sydney NSW 2001

Other Information
ABN: 53538 070 928

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Opening howrs:
9 00am - 5 H0prn
Monday to Fnday

Intermet www dubbo nsw qv au
Email: counci@dubbo.nsw.gov.au

Elecled members
Mayor

Een Shields
Councillors
Annemarie Jones OAM
Jane Diffey

Wicki Ethendge
David Crant

Dayne Gumlay
Stephen Lawrence
Greg Mohr

Kevin Parker

John Ryan
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Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Independent Auditor’s Repart

Please upit Councl’s Audit Report PO (opimion) for mclusion in the GPES report [wia the Home sorecn
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Dubbo Regional Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Independent Auditor's Repart

Please upit Councl’s Audit Repord POF (commentary] forinclusion m the GPES mport {wa the Home screen)
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Dubbo Regional Council

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2019

¢ DUBBO
- REGIONAL
“Great communlty, great council”™ COUNCIL
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Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Specal Furpose | mancial Siatemenis 2019

Contents Page
Statement by Councliliors & Management 3
Special Purpose Financial Statements

Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity 4
Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity 5
Income Slalemenl — Dubbo Cily Regional Airporl [
Incame Statement — Livestock Markets T
Income Statement — Praparly Develapment 8
Income Statement — Dubbo Cily | loliday Park ]
Incame Statement — Rainbow Cottage a0
Statement of Hinancial Posibon — Water Supply Business Actwity 11
Statement of Financial Position — Sewerage Business Activity 12
Statement of MNnancial Position — Dubbo City Regional Arport 13
Steterent of Financial Position — Livesinek Markets 14
Statemnent of Financial Position — Property Develiopment 15
Slalemenl of Financial Pasilion  Dubba City Holiday Park 16
Statemnent of binancial Pasiban  Rainbow Cottage 17
Significant Accounting Policies 18
Auditor's Report on Speclal Purpese Financial Statements 22

Background

I

These Special Purpose MNnancial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Lacal
Govemmaenl i ulliling thaer requirements under Nahona! Compeliion Poley

Iheprinaple of competitive neutralty is based on the concapt of a ‘level playing feld' between persunsientities competing
in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitars.

Essentialy, the principle is that Jovemment businesses, whether Commonweslth, stale or local, should operate without
riel compelilive sdvanlages over olber businesses as a resull of her pubfic owrershup.

For Council, the pnnaple of compebbive neutralty and pubhc reporting apples caly v dedlared business actvties.

These include {a) those aclivities classified by the Ausiraian Bureau of Statisiics as business activiies being water
supply, sewerage services. abattcirs. gas production and reticuiation, and (b} those acdivibes with a lumover of more
Lhan $2 milion Lal Councl has formally declared as @ business advily (defued as Calegory 1 aclivibies.

In prepanng these nancel skslements lor Cooncil's sellciassihed Calegary 1 businessses and ARS-defined acinbes,
comncls must {a) adopt A corporatsabon model and (b) spply full cost sitnbuhon induding Ex equmalent regima
payments and debt quarantee fees (where the business beneftls from Council's borowing position by comparnson with
commercial rates)
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

[l i =] | mancial Siafements 2019
Dubbo Regional Council Spesal Furpass | manc emen

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement by Councilors and Management made pursuant to the Local Govemment Code of
Accounting Praclice and Fimanaal Reporting

The atlached Special Purpose Financial Slatements have been prepared in accordance wilh:
tha NSW Government Policy Statement Application of National Competition Fokcy fo [ ocal Govermment,

lhe Division of 1ocal Govemmenl Guidalines Fricng and Cesfing for Councd Bivnesses A Guide e Gompehbive
Netdraliy'

« the Local Govemment Code of Accobnting Fractice and Financial Repaorfing,
= lhe HSW Office of Waler Bes! Practice Menagement of Waits and Sewesage Godolnes
To the best of our knowiedge and belief, these stalements:
«  presenl faly lhe operaling resull und Minancial posilion loreach of Counal™s declared busiress ad vilies for lhe yesr, gnd
accord with Council's azaunting ard clher racords.
prosenl evarhesd mealloclion charges lo lhe walor and spwernge businesaes s= lbirsnd roesonable

We are not avare of any matter thal would render these faise of mi g in amy way.

Slgned In aceordance with a resolution of Councll made on 28 October 2019,

Ren Shickds Aawie Jomes OAM

Mayor Deputy Mayor
28 October 2019 28 October 219
Michae| Mchiahon Jane Bassnglhwaighte
Chief Executive Dificar Respomsible Accounting Officer
2B October 2019 2B October 2019
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Water Supply Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Spezal Purpase | mancial Siatements 20139

5000 2018 2018
Incame from continuing operations
Access chames T283 7043
User chargss 16,235 18460
Interest 1193 969
Granks and conlibuliors provaded for non-capilal purposes 177 pF |
Cther income 63 41
Total Income from continuing operations PEHN EXREL
Expenses from continuing operstions
Employee benefils and on costs 5014 4878
Bormowing costs 1534 1532
Matonals and conbracts 4.1 1381
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5,560 5280
Loss on sale ol assels {2y 50
Calculated taxabion equivalents 130 131
Other expenses oz 27178
Rezvaluaion decremenl fimpainment of [PPF B55
Total expenzes from continuing operations 20,061 19131
Surplus (deficil) from continuing operations before capital smounts 5,840 8.503
Cranis and contibutions provided lor capilel purposes 2480 3369
Surplus { deficil) from centinuing operalions afler capital amounts 9320 11.872
Surplus {deficil) from all operations before tax 9,320 11,872
Less: coporate taxation equivalent {77 5%) [based on resuft before capital] (1,881} (2,338)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX 7439 9,534
Plus accumulated surplus 220,889 208 BEE
- Taxstion equivalent payments 131 13
Less:
- Corporate taxalion equivalent 1,881 2338
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
Closing accumulated surplus A3 720 385
Return on capital % 3T I
Subsidy from Cauncil - -
Calculation of dividend payable:
Sumius {defidt) efter tax. TAI 9,534
loss capilal granls and conlribulions (exciuding developer aonbibufions) (2 480y (3,368)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 4868 £8.185
Potential dividend calculated from surpius 2480 3pa2
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Sewerage Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Income from continuing operations

Access chames

User chargss

Liguid trade wasta charges

Foes

Interest

Crants and conlibuliors provided for non-capilal puposes
Other income

Total income frem continuing operations

from inuing
Employee benefils and on costs
Bomowing cosis

Malerals and conliacls

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Loss on sale of assats

Calulsled baxabon cquivalenls

Ciher expanses

Rreslilion decromenl fimpsimoen| of [PPF

Total expenses from conlinuing operations

Surplus { deficll) from continuing operations before capital amaunts

Grants and contnbutions provided for capitsl purposes
Surplus { deficil) from continuing operaticns sfter capital amounts

Surplus {defizi) from all operations before tax

Less: comporate laxation equivalent (77 5%) [based on result before capital]
SURPLUS (CEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus accumulsied surplus

- Taxation equivalent payments
Corporale axalion cquialkenl

Plus adjustmenis for amaunis unpaid:

Less:

Closing accumulated surplus

Return en capital %
Subsidy from Council

C: fon of divi

Surplus (defict) after tax

Less. capilal granls and conlrbulions feacluding developer conbibulioms)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposss

Potential dividend calculated from surplus.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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2019

3908
916
2221
5073
{tn
240
151

Specal Purpase | mancial Siatements 20139

2018

11782
1567

73
1361
121
55

18713

3,088
1012
27
5014

774

243
1,345

176

_ isass

3662

2282
5964

1,013)
4,551
733415

240
1013

45619

1 %

4951

2B

2660

13592
471

3587
8,408

2,408
(1.299)
7,110

730 785
242
1298

T meats
0%
1,808

7,110
__ @ses)
3423

1711
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Dubbao City Regional Airport
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Income from continuing operations

User charges

Granis and contibutions provided for non capital purposes
Other income

Tatal income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Cmployee benefits and on-costs

Romwing cosls

Materisls and contracts

Depreciation, amortisation and impsirment

Loss on sale of assels

Calkulated taxabion equivalents

Olher expenses

Total expenses from conlinuing operations

Surplus {deficl} from continuing operations before capital amounts

Granis and contributions provided for capite! purposes
Surplus (deficll} from continuing operations after capital amounts

Surplus {deficll) from all operations before tax

Less. corporate laxation equivalent (Z7.5%) [based on result before capilal]
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus accumulsisd surplus

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments

- Corporate tmxalion squivakent

Add:

Less:

Closing accumulated surplus

Relurn on capilal %
Subsidy from Cauncil

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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21,314

2018

3660

212

3976

5H

1821
1017

105
352
4,042

(HE)

21,248
21,248

21,248

3/ Bl

103

9184

01%
587
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10,348
2083

118

37 806

Cida
833

Pge &l 2
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Livesiock Markets
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Spezal Purpase | mancial Sistements 2019

5000 2018 2018
Incame from continuing operations
User charges 3342 4068
Cther incomea 58 28
Tetal incame from continuing aperations o 3381 4128
Expenses from contiruing operstions
Fmployea benafils and on costs GA1 ShE
Materials and contracts 1.206 1298
Deprecialion, amordisalion and impairment 1,347 1795
Loss on sale of assats 202 -
Calculated texabon equivalents 12 12
Uther expenses. 219 210
Total expenses from continuing operations _ 3657 3,304
Surplus (deficil) from continuing operati before capital t 276y 822
Granks and conlnbuliors provaded for capils| purposes . _TEFJ'_ . 3?‘_?
Surplus (defcil) from continuing operations after capital amounts £100) 1,151
Surplus { deficil) from all operations before tax {100y 1,151
Less. corporale laxalion equivalen! (77 5%) [based on resull belore capilal] = {226)
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX (100} 935
Plus accumulaied surplus 26213 20,050
Plus adjustments for smounts unpaid:
- laxahon equivalent payments 12 12
- Comporate taxalicn equivaient - 226
Add:
Less: — - -
Closing accumulated surplus 26,125 26213
Return on caphal % (14 4.0
Subzidy from Cauncil 55
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Property Development
for the year ended 30 June 2019

5000

Income from continuing operations
Interest

Profit from the sale of assals

Other income

Tatal income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Cmplcyee benefits and cn-costs

Maloriak and conlracls

Calculated taxation equivalents

Ciher expenses

Total expenzez from continuing operation=

Surplus {defick) from continuing operations before capital smounts
Surplus { deficll) from continuing operations after capital amounts
Surplus {deficil) from all opsrations belors fax

loss comparale laxalion cquivalen| (27 5°%) [based on osull before capital]
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus sccumulsted surplus

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— laxabon equivalent payments

— Corporale mxalion equivalent

Add:

Lass:

Closing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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2019
168
", 948

2,188

1 b
1,539
1,5%
@

1116

12340
212

423

14,091
T027%
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2078

123
3358

3494

158
183
208
562
7537
2332
2932

(B8}

2,128
o100

2g
806

12,340
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Dubbao City Holiday Park
for the year ended 30 June 2014

5000

Income fram eantinuing operetions
User charges
Total income from cantinuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee beneldls and orcosls

Bomowing costs

Materials and conlracts

Deprocialion, amordisalion and impairment
Calculated taxation equivalents

Other expenses

Total expen=zes from conlinuing operation=

Surplus {defick) from continuing operations before capital smounts
Surplus { deficll) from continuing operations after capital amounts
Surplus {deficil) from all operations belore tax

Lo coparsle bl bn cquivalen! (57 5%) [besed on rosull before cipital]
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus accumulsted surplus

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— laxabon equivalent payments

- Corporale mxalion equivalent

Add:

Lass:

Closing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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2019
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2018

7,667
W
102
102

PR
74

5848

B

6,014
19%

(54
248
5443
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Income Statement — Rainbow Cotiage
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Income from continuing operaticns

User charges

Granis and contributions provided for non capal purposes
Total incame from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Fmployes benefils and on costs

Materials and conlracts

Deprecialion, amordisalion and impaiment

Loss on sale of assats

Calculated texabon equivalents

Olher expensos.

Total expenses from conlinuing operations

Surplus (defici) from continuing operations before capital smaunts
Surplus {deficif) from centinuing operations sfier capital amounts
Surplus {deficl) from all oparations before tax

SURPLUS (CEFICIT) AFTER TAX

Plus accumulsied surplus

Plus adjustmentls for amaunis ungaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments

Add:

Less:

Clesing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %
Subsidy from Cauncil

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

2013

130

(27
347
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posiion — Water Supply Business Activity
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Spezal Purpose | mancial Sietements 2019

2018

«ts)
10 500
#AIS
168

E
26550

20,163

20,369
44

281,196

307866

644
1,068
1180

$°000 2019
ASSETS

Current assels

Cash and cash equivadlernts 10128
Invislmenls 23350
Heceivables [
Inveniories 167
Cther B i
Tolal eurrent m3saty A2411
Man-current assets

Irrvesimenls 17 500
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 262 361
Oiber .
Tolal non-cument assats 273905
TOTAL ASSETS 303
LIABILITIES

Current Babilitles

Payshles Ak
Bomowiras 1,069
Provisions 1217
Tolal current Babilities # Fen
MNaon-current liabilities

Bomowings 23735
Provisions . Liz]
Tolal non-current [labl[fies 23 800
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28 586
NET ASSETS 293,750
EQUITY

Accumulated suplus 230,339
Revalualion eserves 3401
TOTAL EQUITY ) 283,750

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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7 a3

24,865
a0 -
24,315

77 B0&

280,058

220 Beg
5160
230,058
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posilion — Sewerage Business Activity

for the year ended 30 June 2019
57000

ASSETS

Current assels

Cash and cash equivaents
Invislmenls

Receivables

Cther

Tolal current aszsts

Man-cumment assets

Investments

Infastiudure, properly, planl and equipmenl
Tolal non-current assets

2019

10349
15,000
2878

28277

26,500
87 B57
34157

Specal Purpase | mancial Sistements 20719

2018

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Eabilities

Payables

Bormwings

Tolal current Eabilities
Mancument liabilitiss
Bormwirgs

Tolal non-curment [iabilithes

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NETASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulaled surplus
Revaluation reseryes
TOTAL EQUITY

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Page 120

342434

15463
15,463

17 FAD
324,604
ML E1G

8075
374,694

334015

Pt
1938
3169

17.480
17.490
19,659
314,355

I ATS
71311

314,356
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posiion — Dubbo City Regional Airport

for the year ended 30 June 2019
57000

ASSETS

Current assels

Cash and cash equivaents
Invesimenls

Receivables

Tola! current essets

Nan-current sssets
Infrastructure, propery, plant and equipment
Tolal non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Eabilities

Payebles

Rorowings

Provisions

Tolal current Eabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Bormwings

Provisions

Total non-curment [iabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulaled surplus
Revaluation reserves
TOTAL EQUITY

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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2019

1
17 867

115
w013

19,000
43,000

67,013

132
798
180

105

2,682
& -

2658

3,796

63,247

53157
4,060

ez
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2018

1
2818

s
2z

41,536

41,636

44513

231
787
197

1215

2226
&
2232

3447

41,006

3¢ AOA
3200
41,096
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posilion — Livestock Markets
for the year ended 30 June 2019

§°000 2019
ASSETS

Current assels

Investments 5,700
Recrivables 36
Total current assats 7 0FR
Nan-cumrent assets

Infrastrudure, property, plant and equipment 135598
Tolal non-curment assets 135%
TOTAL ASSETS 26,606
LIABILITIES

Current Babliities

Payahles 143
Provisions 206
Tolal eurrent Eabilities 349
Man-current liabilites

Provisicns 3
Tolal non-current [iabilities 30
TOTAL LIABILITIES 38
NET ASSETS 26,307
EQUITY

Accumulaled surplus 28125
Revaluation ressrves 182
TOTAL EQUITY i 26,307

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
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2078

5,551
7
5 RA3

20516
20516

26499

88
180
265

__ 18
18
286

26213

26 213

26,213
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ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posiion — Property Development
for the year ended 30 June 2019
5°000

ASSETS

Current assels

Investments

Receivables

Inventonss

Tolal eurrent exsets

Man-current sssets

Inventares

Infrastruciure, properiy, plent and equipment
Tolal non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current [labilitizs
Payzahlcs

Tolal current Babilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
TOTAL EQUITY

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
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2019

B255

13
1451
,res

4076
213
4205

14 044

14,081
14,091

Specal Furpase | nancal Sistements 2015

2018

M| o|m

12,340

12,40
12,340
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posiion — Dubbo City Holiday Park
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Specal Purpase | mancial Sistements 20719

$°000 2019 2018

ASSETS

Current assels

Cash and cash equivalernts 4 1

Invesimenls 1T __ 1am

Tolal current ssets 1781 1475

MNan-cument assets

Infrastrudure, property, plent and equipment 5,967 6,174

Total non-curment assets 5057 6.174

TOTAL ASSETS T TE 7599

LIABILITIES

Current labliities

Payahlos g

Borowings 125 121

Tolal current Rabilities 216 130

Man-current liabilitmes

DBomowings - 125

Tolal non-current [iabilities - 125

TOTAL LIABILITIES 216 255

NET ASSETS 7.552 7344

EQUITY

Accumulaled surplus &.044 5848

Revaluation reserves 1438 1480

TOTAL EQUITY i 7,552 7,344
Page 160l 22
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APPENDIX NO:2 - ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - SPECIAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 2018-2019 - REFER TO AUDIT

ITEM NO: AUD19/18

Dubbo Regional Council

Statement of Financial Posiion — Rainbow Coltage
for the year ended 30 June 2019

5°000

ASSETS

Current assels
Investments
Receivables

Total current assats

Man-cument assets
Infrastrudure, property, plant and equipment
Tolal non-cument asseis

TOTAL ASEETS

LIABILITIES

Current labllitles
Payahlos

Provisions

Tolal current Eabilities

Man-curment labilitiss

Provisicns
BRomrwings

2019

1,357
1,357

1,370

210

14

2
204

Spesal Furpase | mancal Ststements 2072

2018

7
13
50

1406
1406

_1456
2

214
246

Tolal non-current [labilftkes.
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulated sumplus
Revaluation reserves
TOTAL EQUITY
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Dubbo Rﬂgional Council Specal Purpase | mancial Sietements 20139

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies
A slalemenl summarising bhe supplemen sl sccounling policies adopled in lhe prepemalion of the Specisl Pupose DNoancal
Statements (3FFS) for Natbonal Competition Pobcy {NCP) reporhing purpases follows.

These financial stalemants are SPFS prepared for use by Coundl and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
Inese statements, the Council is a nen-reporting not-for profit entity.

The hgures presernled in Lhese Spedal Purpese Fnancid Slaomenls have been prepans inaccordance with e recognilion
and measuremen| crileria of relevanl Auslslian Acmounting Standands, alter aothorna ee rmenis of e A T
Aocounling Slandards Board (AASB) and Auslrlan Accounbng Inlerprodal o

The disciosures in these Special Purpose Financial Statemenis have been prepared in acoordance with the Local Govemment
Act 1583 (NSW). the Local Govermnment (General) Regulation, and the Local Govermment Code of Accounfing Praclice and
INnancial Reporting.

Ihe slatoments sre preparcd on an accruals bass | hey arc based on histonc costs and do ot lake nfo account dhanging
money values or, except whene spechcally stated, current values of non curmant assels. Cardan tskes and olher costs,
appropnalely desaibed, have been imputed for the purposes of the Natronal Competion Falicy.

National Compstition Policy

Council hes adopled the prindple of ‘competiive neulrality’ in its business aclivities as part of the Mational Compefition Molcy
which is being applied throughout Australia et all levels of govemment.

Ihe framewok forils appicabon i€ sat cut i the Juns 1896 NSW governmant pohcy stalemant titad "Apphcaton of Nstonal
Competihien Foligy t Local Government™.

The Fricng and Costing for Counci Businesses, A Culte o Competitive Mefratiy issued by the Office of Local Govemment
m Jufy 1087 hes akse been adopled

The pricing and cestng guidziines oulline the process far identifving and allocating costs t aciralies and provide a standard
fer disclosurs requirements.

These disclosures are rellecled n Councils pricing andfor inancial mepading=yslcws and indude buedon courealens, Counol
subsidies, el on inveslments {rale of relom), and dvidends paid

Declared businezs activities

In accomdance with Fricing and Costing for Councll Businesses — A Guide lo Compelitve Nefrably. Council has dedaret thal
the following are o be idered &s busi T

Cstegory 1

{nhere gross cperating fumser s over 52 milion)

a. Water Supply Service
Comprising the whole of the weter supply operglions and net essets semvicing the ity of Dubbo, the fown of Wellington 2nd
lhe villages of Wongarbon, Bdlimore, Brocklehuwrsl, Geurie, Mumbil end Morth Yeowal

b. Sewerage Service
Comprising the whole of the sewerage reticulation and treatment operalions and net assels syslam servicing the diy of Dubba,
the town of Wellinglon and the villsoes of Wonaarbon, Brocklehursl, Geurie and Mumbil

. Dubbo City Regional Airport
Comprismg the whole of the aiport operations and net assets located cn Careena Hoad

d. Dubbo Regional | vestock Markets
Comprising the whole of the livestock markets operations and net essets ncated on Boothenba Read

e. Properly Development

Council's property development funciion compeles with other private =nd developers in Dubbo in the devebpment of both
industrial and residential land for purchase.

wonlnued on neal page . Page 180l 2
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Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Nate 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

HHE |hesurphes on dsposal of land 15 disciosed in the Income: Stalement of the Business Acbvibes a5 oposting evenue: [n
the General Purpose Hinancial Statements this 15 dsdosed as ganfloss) on disposal of assels.

Category 2
{where gross cperating fumeser s less than 52 mion)

a. Dubba City Holiday Paric
Comprising the whole of the holiday park operations and net assels located on Whiylandra Steel

The park offers accommeadalion for carmans, cabin accommedalion and lenl siles The Dubba City Holiday Park s in dired
rompelilion with olher carman parks wilhin Dubbo

b. Rambow Coltage Long Day Care Centre
Ramnbow Collage, lecated in Mitchell Sireet. pmvides day care for chidren aged between 0 and 5 years.

Several other long day care faaltes opemte within Dubbe, and Rambow Coltags 15 n direct compelibon wilh these cantres.
Monetary amounts

Amounts shown in the hnancial statements are in Australian dollars and rounded 1o the neanest one thoeusand dolsrs, excepl
for Mote 2 (Water Supply OestPractice Management Disclosures) and MNole 3 (Sewersge BestPractice Management
Disciosures).

As required by Crown Lands and Waler (CLAW), the amounts shown n Nole 2 and Note 3 are desdosed n whois doliars.

(i} Taxation equivalent charges

Council s liable to pay varous laxes and financial dulies. Where {his is the case, they are disclosad as 2 cost of cperations
sl ke all olhor cosls

However, where Counal does nat pay some taxes which are generlly paid by privale secior busnessas, such 85 mcome
lax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpese Finanncal Statements.

hor e purpeses of disclosing cemparative information relevant to ihe pavale sector equivalent, the iotowang faxabon
equvalents have been appiied lo all Council nominated business acivives [this does not noiuds Counal’s non busmess
activities)

Natlonal rate applied (%)

Comorste ncome lax mle - 27. 5%

Land tax — the firsl $629,000 of combined land values alfracts 0%, Mor the combined land values in excess of $523.001 up

Io 33,848,000 lhe rale is 1.6% + §180 For lhe memaining combined ksd value lhal excecds 335 B4E8 000 & promium marginal
rEle ol 20% apphes

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxatle salaries and wages in excess of $750,000.

In sxrodance wilh the Crown Tands and Walor (C) AW, a payment far the smounl cabewksted ss e annesl B equisabiod
rhargus [Laduding incomee kix) musl be paid Irom waler supply and sewemge usiness acliwlics

The payment of taxation equivalent chames, refemed to i the NSW Office of Water Cuidelines o 85 a dividend for laxation
equivalent, may be applied for any purpose &llowed under the Loca! Gowvemment Ad, 1593,

Ach nt of C ceto the NEW Cffice of Water Gudalmes s nof a prerequisite for the payment of the tax
equnvalent charges, however the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income Eax

An incame tax aquivalent has been applied en the profits of the business achiviies.

conlnued on neal page .. Page 185012
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Dubbo Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Whilst ncome tax 15 not a specdic cost for the purpese of pnong a good or serace, | needs fo be taken into aceount m lermns
of assessng the rate of retum regquired on capital invested.

Accordingly, the retum on capital invesled is set at a pre-iax level - gain/loss) from ordinary acilies before cagital ameunts,
as wnuld be applied by a private seclor compefitor. That is, # should nclude a provision equivazient to the rorporate ncome
Lix rale, cuenlly 27 5%

Income tax is only applied whare a gain/ (loss) from crdinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved.

Since lhe laxalion equiveenl s nolional  hal s, il s pavable lo Counal as the owner” of business opersfions - i represents
an inlernal paymenl and has o elfed on he oporalions of the Coumal Acodingly, there is oo need for disdasme of mfaal
charges n the SPFS

The rate applied of 27 5% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date

Local government rates and charges

A calculalion of the equivalenl rales and charges payable on @l calegory 1 businesses has been apphed Lo all land assets
owned o exclusively used by The business aclivily

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debl guaaniee lee & designed In ensure thal council business soivilies (oo Tue’ commencial borrowing cosks nine
with private secicr competitors.

In order o calculste a debt quamntee fee. Coundl has detemined what the differential bormowing rsle woulkd heve been
belween Lhe commerdal rale and Coundl's borowing rate for s business acivitios

(ii) Subsidies

Government palicy requires that subsidies provided to custemers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicitly
disclosed.

Subsidies ocrur when Council provides services on a less-than-rosl-recovery ieds This aplion & exercrsed on & rnge of
servces in order for Council o meet its community service obligations

Accordingly, “subsidies disclosed {in relation lo National Competiton Pofcy) represents the difference befween revenue
generaled fom 'rae of relum’ pricing and revenoe generaled from prices sel by Coundl in any given financsl yesr

The cverall effect of subsidies is contained within the Income Statement of each reporied business aciivity.
(iii} Return on invesiments {rate of retum)

The NCP policy slalement requires 1hat councils wilh Calegory 1 businesses ‘would be capecled b genesale a rddum on capatsl
Tunds employed hal & comparabie lo mies of elum for privale businesses operaling moa smibar feid”

Such funds are subsequenity available for meeling commitments or financing future nvestment skiateges.
The aclud mle of relum achioved by cach business adivity is disdosed st the fool of eadh respedive Incotre Stalkesrent.
The rate cf retum is caiculaied as koliows:
Operating resuit before capital income + interest expense
Written down value of |, PP&E as st 30 June

As a minimum, business activities should geneeate a retum squal fo the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 1.32%
at 30/6/19.

conlnued on nex! page Page 2001 22
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- - cal Purpose | al State s 2012
Dubbo Regional Council e o s e

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
{iv) Dividends
Council is not required to pay dividends o either dself {8s owner of a range of husinesses) or to any exdemal entiies.

local govemment water supply and sewemge businessas are permibiad tn pay &n annual dradand frem s watar supply ar
sewerage business surplus.

Earh dividend must be calculated and approved in accordance with the DPTW guidelines and must not exceed-
= 5H{F4 of this surplus in any one year, or
= the number of water supply or sewerage assessmerts al 30 June 218 mulipbed by 330 (less the payment for tax
equivalent charges, not exceeding 53 per assessment).

In aorodance with The DPW goidelines a Dividend Payment form, Stslanent of Compliance, Ungquaiiiod dependent
Financial Audil Report and Complianco Audil Reporl are requined o be subwilled o the DPIW
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Dubbo Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Please upift Counail's audit Report FOI [opinion] for inclusion in the 5P S report (vl the flome soreen )
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M REPORT: Internal Audit Report on RMS

\: Drives

PUBEO REOIONAL AUTHOR: Internal Auditor
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 2 July 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/949

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Internal Auditor has provided NSW Roads and Maritime Services with a report on Dubbo
Regional Council’s use of DRIVES 24 (known as “DRIVES”, “DRIVES24” or “RMS DRIVES”) for
the period ended 30 June 2019. The audit report is a review of compliance with the
contractual obligations of Dubbo Regional Council based on the specific requirements of
Roads and Maritime Services NSW (RMS). RMS controls the information available to the
audit and only provides sufficient data to perform the tests it mandates. RMS also controls
the timeframes.

The audit report provides RMS with a certificate recording the auditor’s opinion that Dubbo
Regional Council’s use of the system was in material compliance with the Terms of Access
Agreement. Some minor clerical errors mean that technically there was not full compliance.
The Internal Auditor advises that while RMS demands full compliance, including the absence
of any form of human error, it is not unusual for a Drives audit to note that some errors did
occur.

The report makes three recommendations for minor improvements. All recommendations
have a low risk rating. There is nothing of significance in the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
There are no financial implications arising from this report.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information in the report of the Internal Auditor dated 2 July 2019 be noted

Peter Browne
Internal Auditor
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BACKGROUND

DRIVES is a database owned and administered by Roads and Maritime Services (RMS). RMS is
a NSW State Government agency within the Transport Cluster. The database contains details
of over six million licensed drivers and over six million vehicles. The database is the primary
tool used by the NSW public sector to identify and locate vehicle owners when issuing Penalty
Infringement Notices (e.g. Parking fines). The database contains a large amount of
confidential information. RMS requires users (including Dubbo Regional Council) to maintain
strong security and surveillance of the use of their system to ensure there is no misuse of the
data.

Council’s use of DRIVES is governed by a 22 page “Terms of Access Agreement” signed in July
2016. The agreement requires various actions including the annual audit and RMS is quite
pedantic regarding the form and content of records related to use of DRIVES. Previous audits
have been performed by contract auditors engaged directly by Environmental Compliance.

In affect anyone wanting to access the system has to navigate through three sets of locks and
then keep records justifying why the system was accessed. The auditor checks various
matters intended to confirm all locks are functional and that the records are complete.

REPORT

A copy of the DRIVES Audit Report has been provided to members of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee under separate cover. Some of the technical detail in that report
relates to the intellectual property of RMS and the way security precautions work. It
therefore seems appropriate to exclude some matters from documents that will become
available to the public. This summary of the Audit Report discloses all appropriate
information while avoiding the confidential matters within the fine detail of the full report.

The audit found no evidence of improper use of the system and found that the security
precautions prescribed to be checked appear to be functioning. The auditor made some
additional checks and found one security measure operating at a lower level than intended.
None of areas for improvement are considered significant.

The RMS requires meticulous records of what was done, as demonstrated by the following
example. The audit detected a situation where a Council Officer attempted to input a six
character licence plate that ended in “V”. The officer misread the last character as a “U”. The
computer responded with some sort of error or invalid data message. The officer attempted
the request again, making the same error and then made a third attempt using the correct
plate data. The officer recorded one enquiry in Council’s records. According to RMS rules,
three enquiries were made with Council failing to keep proper records of the first two.

As a result of the amalgamation, new access arrangements were made for the new Dubbo
Regional Council based on the arrangements for the old Dubbo City Council. Much of the
process was arranged via emails between Council and RMS. The Internal Auditor noted that
some of the security changes do not appear to have been correctly processed. This has the
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effect of weakening one of the three sets of locks an unauthorised user would have to get
passed to access the system. It would appear that because the arrangement was made by
general email rather than by using the official form, RMS did not process it correctly.

It was noted that much of the record keeping and process prescription is hardcopy rather
than electronic. The manual system appears to be effective and efficient. Some of the
documents being utilised are however not the current versions. There is no impact in this
instance but documents should be kept up to date so that any material change would be
affected when it is intended to be.

The following recommendations were made:

Audit Recommendation Management Response Timeframe
1. Staff be reminded that all Staff were reminded during the audit | 30/06/2019
enquiries must be logged, when the management were advised
including enquiries made in of the issue. Completed
error. during audit
2. further attempts be made to Forms obtained from RMS. These 31/07/2019

have former staff fully deleted | will be completed and lodged
from the approved access list

3. update the staff folder with the | Agreed 31/07/2019
latest version of documents

Note: This table records the situation at the time the Audit Report was issued (early July 2019). A
progress assessment has prepared in the lead up to the Audit and Risk Management Committee
meeting and included in the Action List report (elsewhere in this Business Paper). That report advises
all recommendations are now completed.

SUMMARY
The audit found no evidence of any improper activity and a certificate to that affect has been

issued to RMS. Staff are already doing their jobs effectively and some minor improvements
are being made as a result of the audit which will further enhance this performance.
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REPORT: Audit and Risk Management
\_ Committee Action List as at August 2019
puBED REUIUNJ:. AUTHOR: Internal Auditor

COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 26 July 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/1065

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report enables the Audit and Risk Management Committee to monitor the progress on
implementation of requests and recommendations, and in ensuring that outstanding matters
are resolved satisfactorily. Where an issue has been raised by the Audit and Risk
Management Committee or through the findings of the Internal Auditor, progress will be
reported to the Committee until the matter is resolved or the Committee determines it no
longer requires updates.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information in the report of the Internal Auditor dated 26 July 2019, be noted.

Peter Browne
Internal Auditor
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BACKGROUND

A new format for this report was developed and first utilised at the 14 June 2019 meeting of
the Audit and Risk Management Committee. Where an item is raised in an Internal Audit
report, raised by the Committee or the Internal Auditor considers it is a matter that warrants
reporting to the Committee, the item is listed in this report until advice is received that the
matter is complete, or that the situation has changed and the item is no longer required
Internal Audit does not routinely confirm that advice from management is balanced and
complete.

REPORT

This document is in three parts

» A checklist of items that will be provided periodically or in the future. The checklist is a
means of ensuring items will not be overlooked and provides the Committee with the
opportunity to keep track of what is pending and to add issues requiring action

» A table detailing items outstanding and providing a short update on where these
items are up to

» A more detailed explanation of any item may be imbedded in this report (below). This
is essentially a practical compromise where the format of the update table does not
work for the level of detail that is being provided to the Committee.

Recurring and/or requested items Checklist

Items Comment
e Committee Meeting Calendar No Changes
e Training for Committee members
e Annual pecuniary interests return Update below
e Updates on requirements for an Audit Risk and ~ No changes

Improvement Committee — State Government
requirements to be announced — will take affect
from March 2021.
Annual Management report on compliance
Risk Management reports from each division
Annual update on management of fraud risks
Report on Council Payments and Contract CFO advises no events outside of
Variations if / when a variation is outside policy. policy occurred
e Areport be provided on the integration issues Update below
between the three purchasing platforms.

e Advice on Management Letter from Audit See separate report in this
Office Business Paper
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Integration between purchasing platforms
The Chief Financial Officer has advised:

The multiple purchasing platforms has been resolved and Council now only uses one
hierarchy for purchasing.

With the old ordering system, a Purchase Order automatically generated a purchase
order number, (the purchaser required no approval prior to purchase) the approval for
the purchase was require by the supervisor/manager prior to invoice payment (call
Invoice Approval). Online Requisitioning (OLR) was implemented in 2017, OLR requires
Supervisor/manager approval prior to a purchase order number being generated,
therefore, goods are being approved prior to purchase.

When OLR was implementation it was intended to also implement Accounts Payable
Workflow instead of the Invoice Approval process, but due to significant issues with the
program it was decided not to implement and to continue with the HP records
management system workflow.

Therefore post OLR implementation and not implementing the Accounts Payable
Workflow the Invoice Approval system was maintained. Therefore there was two
separate purchasing platforms were required to be maintained.

After a risk assessment of the purchasing process it was determined (approved by the
Executive Leadership Team) to discontinue the invoice Approval process. Due to the
approval of the purchase is gained at the start of the process therefore not requiring any
further approval unless there is a variation.

The Purchase Card Module was successfully implemented in July 2019, it was initially
thought that the Purchase Card Module would require another hierarchy, the module
was successfully implemented in July. The module uses the hierarchy as OLR.

Pecuniary Interests

The Audit and Risk Management Committee charter provides that:

6.11 All Committee members shall make an annual declaration of interests.

Councillors have previously received requests for declarations and other members will have
received a copy of the required form last week with covering instructions. The form is
mandated by the State Government and it is clearly written on the assumption that the
covering guide has been fully read. It is strongly recommended that the guide be reviewed
before attempting to complete the form. Members are encouraged to return completed
forms at or before the meeting.

Appendices:
1  ARMC Action List August 2019
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Issue or Recommendation Original Response Timeframe Current Status
DRIVES (July 2018)
1 Staff be reminded that all enquiries Manager Envirenmental Compliance (MEC): 30/06/2015 MEC: Completed
must be logged, incuding enquiries Staff were reminded during the audit when the management were Completed during audit.
rmade in errar. advised of the issue.

Risk Rating: Low
2 Further attempts be mada to have Manager Emvirenmental Compliance: 31,/07/201% MEC: Completed
former staff fully deleted from the Forms obtained from RMS. These will be completed and lodged
approved access list

Risk Raling. Low
3 Update the staff folder with the Manager Erwironmental Compliance: 31}0?[2019 MEC: Completed
latest version of documents Agreed

Risk Rating: Low
Respormse to ICAC report "Operation Jarek™ [feb 2014)
11 That councils examine options for ~ There are currently items that are purchased regularly that are CFOr Completed
control of their pull-based inventary currently ot held in inventory. Reparts will be developed/sourced to Pull based i ) I d
and implement an opticn that is identify these items and intreduce them into stack. asec inventory is now normal procecure
suitable for their operations.
594 (April 2011)
Some developer contribution plans Director Enwironmental Services: Manager Strategic Planning Services:
are overdue for a review. Update It is noted that Council Policy determines the procedure for the X

March 2020  Roads and Car Parking:

developer contributions plans

1 It is recommended that contribution
rates be reviewed in line with induskry
practice

initiation of review s or new plans as including allowance for an
annual adjustment and advice of the need for the review or
amendmaent by appropriate Directars ta Directar Environmental
Services.

The programming of any review based an such advice would need to
have a comprehensive regard for the existing program and projected
waorkload and priarities for the Building and Develapment Services
Branch.

Deferred pending RMS consideration of 3rd
Bridge and the underaking of the Transport
Strategy Review. Awaiting receipt of final draft of
cansultancy review for Transpartation Strategy
Review 10% complete

Open Sparce and Recreation

Completed - new plan adopted 22/6/2016.
Strategic Planning Services now working with
Parks an 2 new work schedule for review of the
Plan_A revised draft Plan could be considered by
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Issue or Recommendation Original Response Timeframe Current Status

Council in Octcber 2019

July 2020
Review of s64 Water and Sewer
An initial Operational review of the sh4 Water
and Sewer Policy has commenced. The goals of
the Review are to ascertain what works are left
to be delivered and to determine if the relevant
ET rates need adjustment 5% complete

Urban Stormwater Drainage
Draft South-East sectoral Plan to be considered
Mar 2021 by Council in August 2019. 95% caomplete
New Stormwater Developer Contributions Plan
for other sectors will not commence preparation
until early next year based on other contribution
priorities. Plan process will also need to
commence with a background starmwater study
and review, which will be undertaken on behaif
of Infrastructure and Operations Division. Not
Commenced

5944 - Former Wellington Council -

Initial review of the Plan undertaken in 2018.
Plan found to be operating appropriately for the
Wellington community.

No further action required at this time.

Developer contributions register Directer Environmental Services: Dec 2019 Manager Strategic Planning Services:

lacking important details 1o facilitate A team has already been formed to look at implementing actions that Strategic Planning Services to review current

efficient identification of entries. should meet the above recommendatians. It is hoped to implement status of Contributions Register in second half of
the changes for the commencement of the 2010/11 finandial year. 2019 25% complete

4 Ensure that all necessary
infermation is correctly captured in
developer contributions registers
{various items mentioned as possible
improvements)
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REPORT: Development of three year
N\, audit program

PUBED REOIoNAL AUTHOR: Internal Auditor
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 6 August 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/1092

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The report provides information to the Committee to assist it in creating a three year audit
program in the workshop to be held on completion of the formal Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting. The report includes details of senior management’s views
of the most significant risks to Dubbo Regional Council.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION
That a three year audit program be developed in accordance with the decisions made by

the Audit and Risk Management Committee and reported back to the next Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting.

Peter Browne
Internal Auditor
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BACKGROUND

The 4 June 2019 meeting of the Audit and Risk Management Committee considered the
approach to creating a three year audit program. The report to that meeting advised that
Internal Audit had reviewed the Council’s risk register, and considered it had not yet reached
that level of maturity that would allow it to be the sole source of information for developing
the program. In line with the process determined at that meeting, Consultations have now
been held with senior management and a list of proposed audit topics produced for the
Committee’s consideration.

Assessing risks in order to rank the overall priorities for audit is a resource consuming activity
that tends to be done around once every three years. This is particularly so if the risk
management system and risk registers are not fully mature. In between these full
assessments will be ongoing consideration of whether anything needs to be changed.

At the time of writing this report Council is aware that the Office of Local Government is
working on a new and completely revised set of guidelines on how Audit and Risk
Management Committees should operate. It is expected that those guidelines will continue
the perspective that audit is an extra line of defence. It seems highly unlikely that those
guidelines would significantly modify the current task but in any event it would not be
appropriate to abandon the current understanding of best practice and wait to see what the
State Government mandates. It is recognised that some changes could be required when the
State Government does issue new guidelines.

REPORT

The present task is the creation of a list of audits to go on a three year program. After that
list is created there will need to be planning of what to review when, as well as ongoing
monitoring of the situation as new information on the risks to Council becomes available.
The program should not be so full that it consumes all Internal Audit time and leaves nothing
for routine advice to staff or for reviewing matters that are bound to arise over such a
timeframe.

The audit program is expected to be the most significant source of information coming to the
Committee. Internal Audit will not be the only area providing reports to the Committee and
will not always be the best area to source information from. In preparing the recommended
program consideration as been given to whether information should be sourced elsewhere.

The size of an audit program is generally determined by the available resources. There is no
clear consensus view on how many items should be reviewed as the best practice guides
focus more on risk assessment process than on numbers. You do however see occasional
recommendations along the lines of it’s better to have a list of your top ten risks and keep re-
auditing those items than to have fifty items with its inherent long delays between auditing
high risk issues. Likewise the recommended practice is that a few in-depth reviews are better
than many reviews that lack depth.
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The recommendation from Council’s Internal Auditor regarding size, is that twenty items
should be included in the three year program. This allows for each item to receive sufficient
Internal Audit time to review what is happening and identify whether management controls
to mitigate risks are actually achieving their objectives. The topics are intended to be of a size
that lends itself to this approach. For instance there could be separate reviews of timesheet
approval, travel allowances, overtime, termination payments, and other aspects of payroll,
but what is being proposed in the list below is a single item called payroll. The concept is that
the auditor gets a good understanding of how the payroll process works and then focuses in
on the aspects that seem to be most at risk of going wrong. If when looking at the highest
risk components, nothing is found, senior management can be reasonably confident that staff
in this area are doing their job effectively. If problems are found then the report would
consider if this indicates a need for further reviews.

The dominant input in prioritising potential topics for audit in this report is the expertise of
senior management. Prior to this step there was consideration of information from a variety
of sources to ensure no potentially significant known risk was overlooked. The risk registers
were reviewed, prior reports examined and interviews held with key staff. In regard to
previous audits, there were recommendations for further review of some items. These
recommendations were seen primarily as border markers indicating matters that were not
within the scope of the issue being considered at the time. They indicated matters worth
considering for the audit program but not that a particular matter was more urgent or
important that other potential risks. Likewise the risk registers were considered a good
source of data to protect against any matter being overlooked, but not sufficiently mature to
be able to rank those risks better than senior management could rank them.

Following an extensive review process, the recommendations on the most effective use of
Internal Audit time are per below.

The top 10 items as recommended by senior management are:
1. Water availability (including Disaster recovery and Business Continuity)
Workplace Health and Safety
Procurement policy and processes (overall general assessment of process)
Developer Contributions
Rates and Charges
Payroll
Contractor Management
Project Management framework
. IT Governance
10. Credit Cards

©oNOU e WwN

While the Audit and Risk Management Committee can consider any item for adding or
removal from the program, significant weight should be given to the fact that these are the
items multiple senior officers have nominated as matters deserving organisational focus and
caution through priority inclusion in the Audit Program.

The recommendation for the remaining items is:
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11. Legislative compliance

12. Social Media

13. Creditors / Accounts Payable

14. Treasury (Investments, banking, loans)
15. Accounts Receivable

16. Cyber Security

17. Risk Management framework

18. Fraud & Corruption risks

19. Private Works

20. Heavy Vehicle Chain of Responsibility

Assuming the Committee agrees that the top 10 are deserving of inclusion in the Audit
Program, the task for today’s workshop is to consider if any of the items listed 11 -20 should
be replaced by some other topic which is considered more significant.

In addition to the major audits we will do, two additional items are relevant.

A. External Quality Assessment of Internal Audit
The Committee may wish to include in the program, an audit by an external consultant of the
Internal Audit function. The Audit and Risk Management Committee Charter provides that
the Committee should review the effectiveness of the internal audit function and objectives.
The NSW Local Government Internal Audit Guidelines (2010) provide the following advice:

3.12 Internal audit should be subject to an external quality assessment of its performance using
accepted standards for performance measurement and evaluation at least every five years.

There was an independent review of the Bathurst, Orange and Dubbo shared Internal Audit
function completed July 2018 and reported to the Committee in September 2018. A review
in this three year plan is not essential to achieve a review every five years. The Internal
Auditor suggests an external quality assessment around the middle of each Council term is
likely to be the best approach.

B. Annual DRIVES Audit
The annual audit of DRIVES is an organisational obligation. Council previously engaged
external contract auditors to perform the task. The audit is relatively small and can be
accommodated in the program.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A rough indication of what is intended by each subject is included as attachment A. The
Committee may wish to advise at this time of any specific components they would like
considered within each audit, however it is intended that opportunity for this input will be

provided in the lead up to each audit.

Comments on specific audits are below.
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Credit Cards

The Auditor General has recently commenced a review of credit card usage at Council. The
inclusion of this item in the Internal Audit Program is intended to be a follow up after any
matters raised have been actioned. If any weaknesses are located by the Auditor General,
this follow up audit would confirm that remedial action was effective in remediating the risk.
If no weaknesses are located then the purpose would become the checking that security
systems continue to work effectively.

Cyber Security
The Internal Auditor advises that this audit will need to be performed by persons expert in
this particular speciality. It is understood that this task would be contracted out.

I.T. Governance
The Internal Auditor advises that this audit would more effectively be performed by persons
expert in this particular speciality. It is recommended that this task be contracted out

Fraud and Corruption Risks

The Internal Auditor has made a very preliminary assessment of the state of maturity of
Councils Risk Management processes. That initial consideration suggests in regard to Fraud
and Corruption risks, corrective and preventive actions are performed in a systematic way but
Council might not have yet reached the level where we can be confident all problems are
detected by routine processes and where improvement likewise is routine. It is proposed
that this item would be in the nature of facilitating a self-assessment by management. The
concept is to use Internal Audits expertise to guide and assist managers to further assess
what risks exist in their areas.

Appendices:
11  Topics Considered for Audit
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Procurgment - general

Water availability Are we vulnerable to any equipment fallures? Are there disaster recovery procedures that cover potential failures in a reasonable timeframe? Is all equipment

(inelnding Disaster properly maintained and secure from vandalism? Are we vulnerable if key stafl leave? Are there dear risk / trigger points that will mean developing problems are

reovery and Husmess | promptly escalatedy Do we receive warning if dams / bores are running low? Is disaster response realistic? Amy risk of political peanic preventing proper response?

Continuity)

Workplace iealth and |1s WHS incorporated inte the way we do things or is it treated as a compliance cost to be minimised? Review organisational culture, approach to WHS and adequacy

Safaty of resourcing. Do staff sllocate part of their time to process improvement and safety or is the focus always on getting the immediate task completed? Are records
adequate {to prove adequate precautions were taken) if something was to go wrong? Do we have sufficient consistency in approach te enable checking of
compliance or is there such diversity that it becomes ton hard to know and check each pracess?

Croering / Procurement policles ard processes exist and are accessible and understandable, Delegations are understood. When problems occur itis cdear who to ask for help

and help actually happens. There are processes to minimise errors and to locate end correct problems that do occur. Cheque § EFT f Credit Card f Cash used
appropriately. GST & FBET compliance. Procwrement process is practical (noting that difficult processes can foster a culture of non-compliznce). The eudit would
focus on the blg picture 2nd whether component parts work together, Review of individual purchases would be guite limited.

Bevaloper A Are there Develuper Contribution plans in place covering appropriate iterns? Are the plans reusonably structured, complete, approved and enforceabie? Are the

Cantributians plans reviewed sufficiently often to allow For cost changes and for changes in undedying situation?
B Are contributions correctly levied to every DA? Are contributions recelved and correctly recorded? Funds are allocated to correct projects. Projects are
constructed in reasonable time. Record keeping clear and efficient.

Rates dnd Charges Billing is in accord with amounts in operational plan and legal requirements. Payments received are sllocated to correct levies. Levies reconci'e to land values.
Ownership, land use, and levies all present a consistent picture of what is happening on any given parcel. Procedures adequately documented in case we lose staft

| members

Payrall Adequate safeguards prevent creation of ghost employees. Procedures ensure pay office will receive accurate advice of hours actuslly worked. Pay office
procedures should detect significant ermors by pay staff. Reporting maximises chances of detecting errors, rorting, or Inefficient resourcing. Changes to pay rates
are checked and validated. Employee entitlements and termination peyments are correct.

Contracior Noting that DRC is responsible for the Health and Safety of contracters while they ere working for us - are our systems for managing cantractors effective?

leagemem

|Project Management | A projectis something sufficiently different to routine work (or the previous project) that it requires its own risk assessment and monitoring. The management

framevanrk system has to be tuned to the requirements of the current prajert. Does DAC have @ process ta systematically consider what can go wrong with a project, how ta
manage that project, and to monitor that the project is actually being manaped in accord with the plan? Do staff have the necessary expertise and traming to
manitor projects? Is there consistent quality in proposals being put to Councll or CED? Are the impacts on other areas [e.g. reduced funding available for other
items, changes to LT, training of staff in other departments) properly considered {including in time for other areas to plan their involvement)? Are future year
Impacts considered? Could we end up committing to 2 project that we cannot actually afford?

IT Governarnce policies exist for all critical areas including security, disaster recovery and business cantinuity. Staff are aware of and say they follow policies. Backups actusily

happen. Licenses held for software used,

Credit Zards Are cards issued to appropriate people? Are requirements dearly communicated to card holders? Is the approval process adequate in theory and actually working
In practice? Are all problems followed up until resclved? Are limits appropriate - should we use cards more or reduce usage?
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| episiative enmpliance | Does DRC have a process which -

- |dentifies who Is responsible for legal complience in regard to each activity DRC conducts?
- Ensures that person is aware of their respansibilities 7

- Provides a mechanism for that persan to be aware of changes when they happen?

- Enables senlor Management to be confident that problems are identified d?

Socal Media Is there clear guldance on what can be sald and how we differentiate the opinlons of Individual Counc!llars from the official position of Council? Do our record
keeping systems capture whet is said and how long It waes on an official website?

Creditors / Accounts | Can creditors be created / madified without proper authorisation and checking® Cou'd an order be paid twice? If 20 error is made Is likely to be detected? Are

Payable payments property authorised / delegations cbserved? Is the system being used as designed / interded? If there are multiple systems, is the right one used each
time? Are the processes safe / are there fraud risks? Reports are regularly produced and can reascnably be expected to "sound the alarm® if something does go
WIODE.

Treasury investments, Bank signataries, loans registers, bank reconcifiations, use and reconciliation of trust funds, stale cheques, unclaimed monies. Are funds invested in
accord with policy and risk of fraud is controlled?

Accounts Receivable | Are there processes which mean a debt owed to DRC will always be recorded on the debtors system? Are amounts followed up in a timely manner? Disputes are
resolved. Process to write off / make corrections is safe. Large amounts are reported, Racords suppart that debt is actually owed. Process presents DRC as
professional {e.g. Customer can get well presented statements as required, repayment ammangements are implemented). Debt collection follows best practice.

. 8ad debt process.

Cyber Sacurify Test if sites can be hacked. Could DRC be out of action for too long if we were attacked?

Note that consultants tend to test common winerabil'ties - problems inherent in Clvica unlikely 1o be targeted?
Maitgerrent Locate best practice documents for Risk Management and compare DRC to those recommendations

tramewerk

Fraud & Carruption  |Initial Fraud Prevention sudit would usually look at whether we have all issue on the risk register, However recommended approach is simply to assume the [istis

risks missing items and drive straight into a risk assessment process to collect missing items. This would be done by providing scenados or examples to provoke focused
thought by managers 2nd preferably fallowed up by a half day workshap where managers provide feedback and bounce ideas off each nther. Could be done by Ia,
Risk Management, or joint effort.

Private Warks The provisions in the Loca! Gevernment Act related to private works have a strong enti-corruption focus and essentially prevent staff making any decisions on the
subject. The audit would not be considering minor errors related to practical difficulties in determining where a road reserve ends and privete lands begins. . The
Issue would be the possibility of staff negligently ignoring boundaries because they consider it too difficulty or corruptly igroring boundaries for the benefit of the
land owner. The review would consider if staff understand the Issues, policies provide clear guidance and what checking of staff activity is effective.

Heavy V&lﬁ»ﬁhﬂﬁ l!? Liability to monitor vehides loading or unioading - potential For action against Council if trucks arrive overloaded at Sale Yard or depart vverloaded. Does DRC

Responsibility \understand risks at afl sites where risk exists? Are risks understoed? Is training of staff adequate? What else is required?

|

Asbestos in Coundil Do staff manage asbestos risks in a consistent and effective way?

bu'ldings Mot recommended as there is already a review of this topic happeaing

Customer Request Focus on matters related to safety and In particular complaints about potentially dangerous dogs. {Noted that there have been incidents in NSW where dogs have

System killed penple.) Can we be confident that any customer request is dealt with in an appropriate time frame and with proper consideration of known facts? Are
matters involving possible current danger tothe public prioritised and responded to quickly? Are full details of history of matter readily available to responding
officer? What is the risk of previous red flags being missed when tenants move house?

Are matters followed up appropriately and overdue items given apprepriate attention?
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Ordering / |Is an appropriate method used to select supplier and product? Are all required records kept? Could staff become confused about what was approved? Disclosure
Procurement - large | of actions |s compliant with legal requirements Including level of detail and timing. Eveluation of offers / tenders and weighting of oriteria. The audit would lock at
fterns some of the detzil around a selection of tenders.
|Note: There would be some overlap between procurement general, procurement of large items and Project Management.
waste management— |We can get contaminated waste in general waste stream and waste can be illegally dumped in many places. How do we deal with ashestos st tips? Do we get the
dumping and nen- mix cf carrat and stick right for illegal dumping of waste? What communicatinns strategy is necded?
campliance
Business Continulty Locate best practice documents for BCK and compare DRC to those recemmendations
Operations at A look at some sites apart from Civic Admin Buildings with focus on Wellington Depot. Does being away from head office impact efficiency? Is there adequate

Wellington Depots management oversight of what happens &t depot? Are there KPls that would flag under-performing teams? What reports of what is achieved / cost of work  exist

and do they give helpful informaticn to the right people?
|s security of site managed and unauthorised access protected against? Is the health and safety of staff and contractors at site petting sufficient attention?

New Development - | Are there appropriate processes to congider cost ve benefit in design of infrastructure? {Is it toa short term focused ar at the other extreme gold plated.} Can we be
Infrastructure Quality certain the construction actually meets the design quality? Do developers question our Interpretation or design cften? (s there sufficient invelverment of the

] \pecple who will maintain the assets, in the design and construction phases?
Charging fair and Impact on income not likely to be significant but reputation damage should be considered. s there discretion [ lack of clear definition between commercial and
reasonable prices |cormnmunity use, snd in the appropriste fees? Do we have very similar services being offered by different parts of Council at very different prices? Is there an
appropriate process to came ug with fees?
Contaminated land |Can we identify what land [s contaminated within the reglon. |s there a process ta flag land identified as cortaminated? Is there a process to flag land potentially at
register and other |risk due ta DAs?
similar registers
Grants - outgoing |itIs possible that the guidelines are not suffidently precise so that personal judgements end up playing a significant role on occasion. Possible reputation damage

from poor decision or appearance of faveuritism. Also technical complianee with legal requirements.

IT General Controls |appropriate policies and processes to remove access when staff leave, imit access to confidential data, new users are approved. Software is updated approgriately

Audit [we are not running old unsupported versions).

Peer review 1A Compare IA to recommendad practice from 1A and to OLG recammended practice. This review would be sutzourced. Current recommendations from OLG include
(External Quality an external review at least once every five years. Any significant change in the audit function would indicate more frequent review. A review in the final year of
Assessment the 3 year program being developed would seem appropriate

Records Management Compare sctual practice to recommended practice from State Records. Do we comply with legal obligations? Is there evidence suggesting documents are not
|being placed in records? Risk of information being lost or not ected nn.

Privacy requirements  |Consider what confidential information Councdll holds, Do staflf managing this nformation understand privacy considerations? Are training levels appropriate? Has
|arress heen appropristely contreolled?

Aquatic and Leisure CenDo we understand the options and costs for running the centres? Do we want Lo package up activities / add more profitable services in order reduce net cost of
operations {noting this could negatively impact husinesses in the area)? Are centres running efficiently?

Cemeteries \Is management consistent and in line with best practice?

On-boarding / Off- Do processes caver the risks? Are the various players (Recruitment, Payroll, Building Security, LT., records, purchasing, management accounting) working together?

boarding of staff, Are former staff quickly removed? Are the segregation of duties issues documented? Do the client departments have appropriate handover documentation,

contractors end |induction, etc. What is best practice?
Volunteers
Governance [ The Annual Report contains the information it is required to contain {incl 5428, Reg 217, OLG Checklist) - Information is consistent with other publications and
compliance - Annual  |plausible - process of collecting the dsta should reasonably preduce the correct answer (e.g. informatian is sourced from a full set of data not & partial database
|Repart created for an alternste purpose)}
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Volunteers |00 we have acorporate view on how we manage volunteers that [ead to similar approaches in each area that has volunteers? Dawe kave a sound ratinnale on
whether we want volunteers In any particular function? Are lessons leamed in ons department shared with other departments? Are volunteers appropriately
managed? Do we have adequate records? WHS issues. Security issues. In short, do we understand and manage the risks while also maximising the opportunities.

Cash receipting - |Do systems exist that maximise the chance of cash being receipted when received? Do systems make it extremely difficult to remove cash from DRC custody
General without that belng noticed?

Imventery Do we hold the correct amount of the right inventory in order to facilitate efficient operations (as opposed to staff purchasing from local store as needed) - cost of
Management \operation, risk of needed inventary not being availsble, risk of stares being misappropriated, efficiency of purchases

Operations at small Risks Increase when there are few people at a location and normal segregation of dutles becomes Impractical. This Includes safety risks and corruption risks.

sites Landfills and Transfer stations noted as specific examples of heightened risk

Asset Maintenance - | How do we record what we own / can we be sure we have noted everything? Are valuations recent / rezsonable?
specitic asset category  How s the maintenance Budget determined? |s the asset being maintained? Comparison to best praciice recommendations for process.

Corporate Governance 4 Create a checklist of questions and require eacth manager to respund. If done repetitively then it becomes a [ist of things managers check prior to this annual audit.
SUrvey Types of questions -
Does each staff member have Individual passwords to all computer systerns and de not use shared passwords? The et s it should be Siackied -
Are staff aware that when purchasing Items, they must ensure good are delivered before authorising payment? s
|Are staff aware of how to report a suspicion of unethical behaviour?
Are staff aware of thelr delegations and the financial limits attached, and generally aware of who n authaorise large amounts?
|Have all staff been reminded of the Code of Conduct requirements this year? Have records been kept of these toolbox talks / steff meetings / training sessions?
|Has the manager advised Finance of any amount over $5K known to be due to Coundil which Is not recorded in the Finance System?

Corporate Governance - Pelicy and precedures are documented and reviewed, Oversight of committees, GIPA compliance including record keeping of GIPA dats
General

Resourcing Strategy  |Is there a resourcing strategy? s it regularly reviewed? How does it relate to other plans / strategy?

\Does it cover sufficient period of fime? Are assumptions realistic? Is the output timely / useful / actuslly used?

What other information would management like to see?
Internal compliance | Do our staff comply with all the precautions that we expect private contractors to comply with? Are all considerations given appropriate weight? {e.g. If road safety,
with environmental suggests a particular location for a read but enviranmental concerns suggest a different location, does priority go 12 safety or ta environment?] Is the outcome
rules and other |decumented and recorded in such a way as guarantees culcomes and protects against double counting? How are part 5 assessiments recorded?
requirements
DA pre-lodgement Are there amy rishs associated with the level of documentation of predodgement meetings?

meetings |
Collection ot all income Do we actuzlly know what is due to us? [Can we be confident passenger data from the airport is accurate? Can we be confident livestock markst data is correct?
due :[ar spaces used by hire company at airport?}

Do we have appropriate systems for booking facilities and collecting payments? e.g. Are we losing business because of issues taking card payments over the phone?|
Do our systems appropriately support initiates such a: “my Dubbo™ card?

Councillar induction  Training and Infarmation provided to Councillors is adequate
Focus on initial Inducticn but also loak ot ongeing training
Plant Hire vs Ownership Do requests for plant contemplate all reasonable ways of doing the work or is there & tendency to specify the exact process used last time?
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Marquarie Reginnal  |Review whether joint cantrol results in a greater level of oversight or in a reduced focus on cperations.
Ubrary |5 the cperation of the library in lina with generzlly agreed best practice? Are opportunities for improvement actively sought?

Recruitment oversight  1s there sufficient guidance on how ta deal with conflicts and the appearance of conflicts? Are our controls effective in the clase-knit communities we work in. Do
contrals waork squally effectively at all sites?
Could also consider onboarding [ offboarding process.

Recreation and Qpen  |Compare cperations to best practice

|Space
Events Management  |Aeview policies and procedures of this new function and compare to best practice
Function
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N REPORT: Fraud and Corruption
\: Prevention Policy
puUBgo REGIoNAL AUTHOR: Internal Auditor
c

NCIL REPORT DATE: 14 August 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/1142

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks the endorsement of the Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
proposed Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy. If the Committee endorses the policy it
shall be forwarded to Council for approval.

Council has various documents identifying what is and is not acceptable behaviour. The
focus of the Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy is not to go into detail on what is ethical,
but rather to identify who needs to do what in order for the process work in practice. The
proposed forward to the policy advises: “it is a requirement that all Council officials are

aware of the risks and how to respond to, manage and mitigate them”. The document then
details specific responsibilities for various positions.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications arising from this report. It is understood that all areas
have sufficient resources to meet the requirements of the policy.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

This document, if adopted by Council, becomes the apex document on the organisation’s
strategy for preventing fraud and corruption.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Fraud and Corruption Prevention policy be adopted.

Peter Browne
Internal Auditor
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BACKGROUND

The former Dubbo City Council had a basic Fraud and Corruption Prevention policy. The
creation of a revised policy for Dubbo Regional Council has been progressing slowly for some
time and impacted by various staff vacancies. The new policy is a complete re-write based on
the “Fraud Control Framework” of the Audit Office of NSW. It has been carefully reviewed by
the Executive Manager, Governance and Internal Control; the Internal Ombudsman and the
Internal Auditor.

Elsewhere in this Business Paper is a report on the Audit Office Management Letter on the
Interim Phase of the Audit for the Year Ended 30 June 2019. The letter recommends that
Council adopt a “fraud control plan” and perform some associated tasks by 30 June 2020.
This is the same thing by a different name. The slightly different naming of documents
reflects that Council’s objective goes beyond controlling fraud and targets the complete
elimination of fraud and corruption.

REPORT

The attached draft policy details the duties of various groups of people in the fight against
Fraud and Corruption. It is intended to be a practical document to identify what each
individual’s role in the process is. It covers the themes of prevention, detection and
response.

Section three of the policy focuses on “Who” and advises the duties of:

3.1 All Staff

3.2 Chief Executive Officer

33 Mayor and Councillors

3.4 Directors and Managers

35 Internal Ombudsman

36 Internal Auditor

3.7 Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC)
3.8 Volunteers and Contractors acting for Council
3.9 External Parties

3.10 Residents and members of the public

The remainder of the document gives an overview on “How” and provides direction on
training, detection strategies, prevention systems and administrative process. As a policy
document it does not get into fine detail but is designed to eliminate the risk of a “not my
job” approach occurring.

The proposed policy is attached for the Committee’s consideration.

Appendices:
11  Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy
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FOREWORD
Message from the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer.

The risk of fraudulent or cormupt aciivity is an ongoing and pervasive risk faced in all organisations and indusiries
throughout the word. Unfortunately, experience shows that Local Government is not immune to the se risks which

have the potential to significantly undermine Council activities. programs and reputafion among the community.

The communily expects the highest sfandards of ethical behaviour and efficient use af public rescurces fram
Council. While we would all like ta think it could only happen from exfernal sources, evidencs shows thatf fraud
and canrupt behaviour is offen perpefrated fram within an organisation and is offen varied, complex and diffieuft
to defect. Therefore, il is a reguirement ihat all Council officials are aware of the risks and how io respond io,
manage and mitigate them. The Fraud and Comuption Prevention Framework has been implemenited and
meodelled on established best practice that supports Dubbo Regional Council’s ‘zero tolerance’ approach fo such

behaviours and promoies an integily focused cuilure that is resistant to improper behaviour or influence.

This policy applies ta and requires the cooperafion of Counciliors, staff members, contractors and stakeholders,
including customers and members of the communily. it is io be read in conjunchon with other relfevant poficies
such as Council's Code of Conduct and the Fublic Interest Disclosura and Intsrnal Reparting Falicy.

VWhile fraud conirof is an ongoing actinly, the most impoitant factor lo ensure success s everyone’s

commitmant, atfitude and preparsdnsss to taka actian.

Ben Shields Michael Mchahon

Mayor Chief Executive Officer
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PURPOSE

Dubbo Regional Council is committed to a ‘zero tolerance’ approach to fraudulent and corrupt behaviour,
and seeks to minimise the incidence of fraud by implementing and regularly reviewing a range of
strategies that aim to prevent, detect and respond to such behaviour.,

Prevention

A Ui

Dre_tg-c:mr_: ' Réspfms!

This policy serves to outline the high standards of ethical behaviour expected by Council and introduces a
Fraud and Corruption Control Framewark to ensure appropriate mechanisms are in place to prevent,
deter, detect and raspond ta fraud and corruption.

S5COPE

This policy applies to everyone who has any interaction with Council or Council staff to the maximum
extent that Council has the authority ta reguire it. This includes Councillors, Council staff members,
committee members, consultants, contractors, suppliers, applicants and volunteers who all have
obligations in the prevention of fraud and corruption and the fostering of an ethical and accountable work
environment at Council.

Expectations of this policy also apply to customers, community and any relevant third parties with regard

to the functions and/or operations undertaken for or on behalf of Council.

PRINCIPLES

Council is committed to building a corruption resistant culture through:

» Promoting an organisational environment that encourages professionalism, integrity and ethical
conduct.

» Minimising the opportunity for fraudulent or corrupt conduct.
s The detection, investigation and disciplining and/or prosecuting fraudulent or corrupt conduct.

»  The Reporting of any fraud or corrupt conduct to the Independent Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) and other authorities where appropriate.
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Relevant Legislation

This Framewaork links with the following legislation:

s Local Government Act 15993

v Lacal Gavernment (General) Requlation 2005

» Independent Commission Against Corruplion Act 1958
s Public Interest Disciosures Act 1994

Relevant Council Policies and Documents

The following Council policies and procedures support this Policy:

s Code of Conduct

» Internal Audit Framework and associated documents and systems
» Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting Policy

s Secondary Employment Policy

» Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework

» Statement of Business Ethics

» Grievance Handling Palicy

= Discipline Policies and Procedures [as appropriate)

DEFINITIONS

To assist in interpretation, the following definitions apply:

[Term

Definition

Fraud

Dishanest activity causing actual er potential financial loss to
any person or entity including theft of moneys or other
property by employees or persens external to the entity and
whether or not deception is used at the time, immediately
before or immediately following the activity. This also
includes the deliberate falsification, concealment,
destruction or use of falsified documentation used or
intended far use for a normal business purpose or the
improper use of information or position.

Caorruption
{or corrupt canduct)

As per the ICAC Act 1988 {Sect 7, B, 9}:
® any conduct of a person (whether or not a public
official) that adversely affects, or could affect the
honest and impartial exercise of public official
functions, or

» any conduct of a public official that involves the

dishanast ar partial exercise of any of his ar her public |

afficial functions, ar
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# any conduct of a public official or former public official
that constitutes or invelves a breach of public trust, or

» any canduct of a public official er farmer public afficial
that involves the misuse of information or material
that he or she has acquired in the course cf his or her
official functions, whether or nat for his or her benefit
or far the benefit of any octher person.

Maladministration As per Public Interest Disclosure Act 1994: Conduct that

involves action or inaction of a serious nature that is
contrary ta law; or unreasonable, unjust, oppressive,
improperly discriminatory; or based wholly or partly on
improper motives. Refer Dubbo Regional Council Public
Interest Disclosures Policy.

Serious or | Refers ta the uneconomical, inefficient or ineffective usa of |
substantial waste resaurces, autharised or unauthorised, which results in a

loss/wastage of public funds/resaurces.

Stakeholders Stakeholders refer to Councillors, Council staff members,

committee members, consultants, contractars, suppliers,

applicants and volunteers

POLICY

Dubbo Regionzal Council is committed to a culture of good governance and ethical behaviour. As such, it

will not tolerate fraudulent or corrupt behaviour and is committed to building a sound ethical culture

supported by appropriate policies, procedures and strategies that prevent fraudulent and corrupt

behaviour through:

COngoing education and training of all Council officials in relation to their obligations in combating
dishonest and fraudulent behaviour.

Regular review of fraud and corruption risk assessments to identify circumstances where fraud and
corruption could occur.

Implementation of procedures that have regard to, and mitigate, the risks identified in day to day
activity.

Prcmote an organisational environment that encourages professionalism, integrity and ethical
conduct.

Use of formal procedures upon detection, investigation and disciplining andfor prosecuting
fraudulent or corrupt conduct.

The reporting of any fraud or corrupt conduct to the Independant Commission Against Corruption
(ICAC) and other autharities where appropriate.
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Council’s commitment to preventing fraudulent or corrupt activity, and avoiding or managing conflicts of
interests, will be supported by implementing appropriate auditing systems to deter and identify corrupt
activities, included in the following Fraud Control Framework.

FRAUD CONTROL FRAMEWORK

In order to achieve best practice, Dubbo Regional Council is adopting the following processes which are
sourced from the Fraud Contral Framework of the Audit Office of NSW. The Audit Cffice framework is
acknowledged as being best practice and widely used in State and Local Government organisations,
praviding far a consistent, effective and systematic approach ta preventing fraud and corruption across

the arganisation.

Pluver‘\lionf

e
@ &

Datection Response

The Fraud Control Framework of the Audit Office of NSW encompasses ten key attributes which sit within
the themes of prevention, detection and response. Each attribute has a checklist of high-level processes
and behaviours that should be present.

Attribute Theme

1. Leadership Prevention

2. Ethical Framework Prevention, Detection, Response
\ 3. Responsihility Structures Prevantian, Detection, Respanse

4. Fraud Cantrol Policy Prevention

5. Prevention Systems Prevention

6. Fraud Awareness Prevention, Response

7. Third Party Management Systems Prevention, Respanse

8. Notification Systems Detection, Response

9. Detection Systems Detection

10.Investigations Systems. Response
DUBBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Page 6
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1 LEADERSHIP

A successful fraud control framewark is led by a committed and accountable Executive who demonstrate
and reinforce the high ethical standards expected of public officials, who are resistant to improper
behaviour or practice and promote an open culture of accountability and transparency. The Chief
Executive Officer has ultimate responsibility for fraud and corruption prevention within Council and is
supperted by the Executive Leadership Team, Audit and Risk Management Committee, and Governance
and Internal Control Branch.

2z ETHICAL FRAMEWORK

The Fraud and Carruption Prevention Palicy and associated framewark builds upon Dubbo Regional
Caurncil’s commitment to ethical, transparent and accountable behaviaur. Dubbo Regional Cauncil has
clear palicies, such as its Code of Conduct, setting cut accepteble standards of ethical behaviour which

are available to all staff on Council’s intranet and/or website.
3 RESPONSIBILITY STRUCTURES

This policy applies to everyone who has any interaction with Council or Council staff to the maximum
extent that Council has the authaority ta reguire it. This includes Counciliors, Cauncil staff members,
committee members, cansultants, contractors, suppliers, applicants and velunteers wha all have
obligations in the prevention of fraud and corruption and the fostering of an ethical and accountable work
environment at Council.

Expectations of this palicy alsa apply to customers, community and any relevant third parties with regard
to the functions and/or operations undertaken for or on behalf of Council.

3.1 All staff

It is important that all Council staff contribute to a workplace culture that has a “zero tolerance” approach
towards fraudulent and corrupt behaviour. As such, all staff have responsibilities in accordance with this
policy, specifically:

= Maintain awareness and compliance with the requirements of this policy.

® Perform their duties to the best of their abilities with honesty, integrity and impartiality.

» Have regard to fraud and corruption related risks when performing their duties, and support
processes that report and mitigate risks.

» Prevent, mitigate and report on (suspected, actual or attempted] fraud, corruption,
maladministration and waste. This shall be done in accordance with Council’s Code of Conduct and
Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting Policy.

s Cooperate with and provide assistance to investigators or officials investigating suspected or
reported fraud or corruption.

» Manage and declare pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests in compliance with Council’s Code of
Conduct,
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3.2

Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the efficient and effective operation of Coundil and the
implementation of systems and practices that proactively minimise risks of fraud and corruption while
promoting an ethical workplace culture that has ‘zero tolerance’ towards fraudulent and corrupt
behaviour and is readily reported should it occur.

In addition to the responsibilities of all staff, the Chief Executive Officer is required to:

33

Promote Council’s commitment to fraud and corruption prevention.

Lead by example through ethical workplace behaviour, decisicn making and acting with honesty,
integrity and impartiality when dealing with others.

Ensure processes exist to monitor Directors’ and Managers’ compliance with their duties in
accordance with this policy.

Ensure Councillors are aware of their obligations in accordance with this pelicy.

Moniter and review fraud and corruption risk assessments on & regular basis.

Ensure any allegations of wrongdoing are fully investigated and report actual or suspected corrupt
conduct to the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) in accordance with Section 11
of the ICAC Act 1988.

Repart criminal offences to the NSW Police Farce.

Mayor and Councillors

Responsibilities in accordance with this policy, specifically:

Maintain awareness and compliance with the requirements of this policy.

Perform their duties to the best of their abilities with honesly, integrity and impartiality.

Have regard to fraud and carruption related risks when performing their duties, and support
processes that report and mitigate risks.,

Prevent, mitigate and report on [suspected, actual or attempted] fraud, carruption,
maladministration and waste. This shall be done in accordance with Council’s Code of Conduct and
Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting Policy.

Cocperate with and provide assistance to investigators or officials investigating suspected or
reperted fraud or corruption.

Reparting all instances of possible fraud or carrupt conduct, in accordance with Council’s Code of
Canduct and Internal Reporting Policy.

Pravide support to the Chief Executive Officer to implement adequate strategies te prevent fraud
and corruption.

Implementing and promoting Council's commitment to fraud and carruption prevention.

Manage and declare pecuniary and non-pecuniary interasts in compliance with Council’s Code of
Canduct.
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3.4 Directors and Managers

In addition to the general responsibilities of all staff, Directors and Managers have a supervisory role in
the implemeantation of this pclicy and promation of an ethical workplace culture by demonstrably

supperting the objectives of this policy, specifically:

= Leading by example through ethical workplace behaviour, decision making and acting with honesty,
integrity and impartiality when dealing with olhers.

» Promoting and disseminating this policy and the standards of ethical behaviour expected by
Council.

» Ensure training is provided to employees surrounding fraud and corruption awareness, Council’s
expectations and the reporting requirements in accordance with Council’s Code of Conduct and
Council's Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting Policy.

» Provide ethical advice and support to staff.

» Identify and ensure appropriate internal controls are in place to manage potential fraud and
corruption risks. This includes systematic review of risks and controls over time as well as initial
identification, and assessment of training needs including refresher training.

3.5 Internal Ombudsman

In addition to the general responsibilities of all staff, the Internal Ombudsman is Council’s Disclosures
Coordinator for the purpose of Council’s Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting Policy and is
further responsible for the provision of advice and education surrounding fraud and corruption
prevention, Council’s expectations and reporting requirements in accordance with Council's Code of
Conduct and Puhblic Interest Disclosures and Internal Reparting Palicy.

The Internal Ombudsman may also conduct investigations into allegations of wrongdoing in accordance

with Council’s Internal Ombudsman Policy.

3.6 Internal Auditor

In addition to the general responsikilities of all staff, the Interal Auditor is responsible for:

s FExamine and evaluate the effectiveness of internal controls;

» Make recommendations to enhance the effectiveness of internal controls;

s Make notifications of suspected, actual ar attempted instances of fraud and corruption in
accordance with Council’s Code of Conduct and Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting
Policy.
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37

Audit and Risk Management Committee (ARMC)

The ARMC provides independent assistance to the Council by providing advice on the adequacy of the

fraud

control framework and the praocesses and systems in place to capture and effectively manage the

identified fraud and corruption risks, internal controls and proposed risk treatment action plans which
will be documented and recorded in Council's Risk Register.

The respansibilities of the ARMC are set out in the ARMC Charter as resclved by Council. At the time of
adopting this Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy, the responsihilities included:

338

Financial reporting process
Business ethics, policies and practices
Management and internal controls

Monitering the integrity of the Council’s financial reporting practices and finance and accounting
compliance

Reviewing internal controls, key corporate risks and all audit related matters
Encouraging continuous improvement of Council’s systems and practices
Adoption of the Internal Audit Plan

The Council's process for monitoring compliance with policies, laws and regulations and the
Council code of conduct.

Volunteers and Contractors acting for Council

Volunteers and Cantractors providing services or otherwise acting on behzlf of Council are required to:

3.9

Perfarm their duties ta the best of their abilities with honesty, integrity and impartiality.

Have regard to fraud and corruption related risks when performing their duties, and support
processes that report and mitigate risks.

Prevent, mitigate and report on (suspected, actual or attempted) fraud, corruption,
maladministration and waste. This shall be done in accordance with Council’s Code of Conduct
and Public Interest Disclosures and Internal Reporting Policy.

Cooperate with and provide assistance to investigators or officials investigating suspected or
reparted fraud or corruption.

External Parties

Council requires that all external parties act ethically and honestly in their business dealings with Council
and that:

Actual or perceived conflicts of interest are declared at the point any conflict becomes apparent;
Any persons doing business with Council are to provide accurate and reliable information to Council
when required, and;
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* Tazke all preventative measures to prevent the unauthorised disclosure of confidential Council
information.
External parties include Contractors, Consultants, Suppliers, Applicants, other Government Agencies or
any other party engaged in business dealings with Council.

3.10 Residents and members of the public

Council encourages residents, customers and members of the public to support Council in preventing and
responding to fraudulent or corrupt behaviour and invites those who suspect fraud or corruption that
involves Council, to report their suspicions to the Chief Executive Officer, Internal Ombudsman or other
appropriate autharity.

4 FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION POLICY

This Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy reinforces Council's commitment to fraud and corruption
prevention by providing clear guidance and expectation of staff that responsibility falls with every
individual who is involved with the functions and/or operations undertaken for, or on behalf of Council.

Frzud and Corruption risks are to be monitored in accordance with Council’s Risk Management Policy

5 PREVENTION SYSTEMS

Council’s main objective is tc minimise the occurrence of fraud and corruption within Council. This

objective will be achieved by:

o [dentifying fraud and corruption risks
» Determining strategies to control those risks
s Defining responsibility and timeframes for strategies to be implemented

Council’s identified fraud and corruption risks, internal controls and proposed risk treatment action plans
will be documented and recorded in Council’s Risk Register.

Council recognises that internal 2udit complements the internal assessment of fraud and corruption
related risks and controls. Independent identification and assessment of Council’s fraud and corruption
risks will be arranged with Council’s Internal Auditor to the extent that the Audit and Risk Management
Committee (ARMC) deems warranted.

3 FRAUD AWARENESS

One of the most common ways in which fraud and corruption is detected is by observation, investigation
and repcrting by those who work with, or deal directly with, the perpetrator(s).
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Council will commit to providing all staff with a general awareness of fraud and corruption, and provide
guidance on how they are to respond if such behaviour is suspected, detected or attempted.

This will be achieved in a number of ways by:

s |ncorporating a brief session on fraud and corruption prevention into induction training for new
staff;

» Providing fraud awareness training sessions to Management and staff;

s Making the Code of Conduct and the Fraud end Corruption Prevention Policy available to all staff
and the general public via Council’s website;

s Disseminating articles of interest on fraud and corruption to staff via staff newsletters, publications
and circulars;

» Promotion of this strategy and asscciated documents through Council’s procurement framework
and procurement documentation;

» Regular attendance at relevant industry ferums and seminars.

Additianally, Council rautinely intaracts with a wide range of stakeholders such as residents, ratepayers,
suppliers, contractars and developers ta volunteers, applicants, media, community arganisations and
various other interested parties. There is a need to ensure that these stakehclders are actively aware of
Council’s attitude towards fraud and corruption and that such behaviour will not be talerated, through
the promatian of this strategy in an affart to reduce the likelihcod of improper dealings and/or attempts
by external parties to influence Councillors or Council staff.

7 THIRD PARTY MANAGEMENT S5YSTEMS

Dubbo Regional Council ensures that appropriate controls are in place via an assortment of pclicies ta
manzge our dealings with third parties and confiicts of interest. In doing so we provide a copy of our
Stuiement of Business Ethics to contractors and suppliers to ensure understanding of the standards of
behaviour expected by Council.

Third party management also covers managing staff conflicts of interest in accordance with Council’s Code
of Conduct, Related Parties Disclosure Policy and secondary employment declaration requirements in
accordance with Section 353 Local Government Act 1933.

8 NOTIFICATION SYSTEMS

Council’s Code of Conduct compels all employees to report any instances of possible fraud, corruption,
maladministration or sericus and substantial wastage. Members of the puklic are actively encouraged to
report any such behaviour that is known or suspected. Council supperts and encourages a suppertive
culture of reporting and any person who makes a report in accordance with Dubbo Regional Council’s
Public Interest Disclosure and Internzl Reporting Policy will be protected under the Public interest
Disclosures Act 1994,

Reports of all suspected unethical activity including corruption be made to Council's Internal Ombudsman.
Alternatively, anyone wishing tc make a report can direct matters of corruption to the Independent
Commission Against Corruption, maladministration to the NSW Ombudsman and serious and substantial
wastage to the Office of Local Government.
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4 DETECTION SYSTEMS

Internal controls are effective at detecting fraudulent and corrupt behaviour with Council maintaining
appropriate controls such as:

= segregation of duties

s approvals and authorisation

= verification

» reconciliations

=  management reviews

data mining tocls

risk assessments

physical security

job rotation

Independent reviews like internal and external audits and peer reviews.
Audit and Risk Management Cammittes

Council will not talerate any reprisal action against staff who uncover and report such behaviour and will
ensure appropriate methods are in place for their pratection. If someone believas that detrimental action
has been oris being taken against them, or someone else who has reported suspected fraud or corruption,
they should advise a disclosure officer in accordance with the Public Interest disclosure and Internal
Reparting Palicy immediately.

10 INVESTIGATION SYSTEMS

10.1 Assessment

When an allepation of fraud or carrupticn is made under a Public Interest Disclosure, the Disclosures
Coordinator will undertake a preliminary assessment and may recommend that the matter be referred to
an external body or that a full investigation be conducted. The complainant will be advised and action
taken as appropriate in accordance with Council’s Public Interest and Internal Reporting Policy.

10.2 Support

Council will deal fairly with all parties in the course of investigating allegations of fraud or corruption,
however if fraud or corruption is proven, Council will apply the appropriate sanctions or refer the matter
to external law enforcement agencies if criminal offending is detected.

Council’s investigation standards are clearly documented in varicus Council policies and procedures that
include Council's Code of Conduct, Public Interest Disclosure and Internal Reparting Palicy and Workplace
Investigations Policy and Procedure.
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10.3 Maintaining Confidentiality

Every effort will be made to ensure that any allegations of fraudulent or corrupt conduct are handled
confidentially. In some situations, confidentiality may not be possible or appropriate and will be managed
in accordance with the Public Interest Disclosure and Internal Reporting Policy.

Council will accept and cansider anonymeus reports, however anonymity may limit Council's ability to
seek further information or adequately assess the report.

10.4 Vexations, Frivolaus or Misleading Allegations

Any report that is found to be vexatious, frivolous or deliberately misleading may result in disciplinary
action against the staff member for making the allegation.

REVIEW

This policy will be reviewed every two years.
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Appendix 1 - Examples of Potential Fraudulent and Corrupt Activity

Theft

The most comman types of property stolen include:

stationery and office supplies

construction and maintenance eguipment and tools
lap top computers

mobile phones

technical equipment

cash

fuel

intellectual property, including documents and data

Theft also includes the unautharised use of credit cards, petrol cards, Cabcharge cards or vouchers.

Gifts, Benefits and Bribes

Gifts, benefits and bribes are often intended to influence the way the recipient carries out cofficial
functions. The intention may be to encourage the recipient to not laok too clasely at an illegal or
unauthorised activity, or to actively participate in a fraudulent or corrupt activity.

Exposure to offers of gifts, benefits or bribes is particularly common for Council Officers wha:

approve or can influence decisions
procure goods or services

carry out repulatory work

provide customer or client service
carry out work with the private sector

Misuse of Council Resources for Inappropriate Private Purposes

Intheir publicaticn “Preventing the misuse of Council Resources Guideline 27, the ICAC provides a number
of examples of this type of risk:

a Council driver using a Council truck to deliver tonnes of gravel to a friend’s property and remaove
atree

a works team undertakes paid work for a builder on a construetion site during working hours

a swimming pool manager running a non-authorised swimming school during werk hours

a parks maintenance officer running a landscaping business using council equipment and materials,
and falsifying timesheets ta caver up his private use

five council employees spend a work day turfing an employee’s backyard
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Other forms cr misuse include:
e staff using mobile phones excessively for private purpeses without reimbursement of costs
» internet services being used extensively for nen-work purpeses
s “left-over” materials and low value assets being claimed by Council Officers

Zoning and Development

» coercion, intimidation and harassment of Council planners dealing with development applications
s inducements from developers te modify approved DA or conditions imposed

Regulatory Compliance

» Compliance Officers accepting bribes and favours to allow illegal and unauthorised activities

Procurement, Tendering and Contract Management

Activities associated with procurement, tendering and contract management have traditionally keen very
susceptible to fraud and corruption. They normally result from bribes, commissions or conflicts of
interests. Examples of the type of fraud and corruption risk exposures include:

» order splitting to avoid tendering or obtaining guotes

s collusion with suppliers to provide dummy quotes

» accepting late tenders without justification

= @pproving fraudulent contract variations

Human Resources

s creation of fictitious employees on the payroll register
» applicants for positions falsifying career background details
= direct recruitment of friends and relgtives to permanent and cesual positions

Delegations

The opportunity for various types of fraud and corruption can be increased by:
s unclear delegations
o delegation for arder and payment granted to same person
» lack of suppeorting documentation
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Information Technology

The main risk areas of computer fraud are:
# unauthorised electronic transfer of funds
e electronic claims processing
¢ unautheorised alteratian of input data
s misappropriation, destruction or suppression of output data
e alteration of computerised data
e alteration or misuse of software program

Forgery or Falsification of Recards

The falsification of records and processing of a false statement is fraud. Examples include falsification of:
e data on expense claims and receipts
» credit card reimbursement claims
® invaoices and timesheaeats
» job application farms
e leave records
» forpery of a signature an a cheque ar document

Unauthorised Sale ar Provision of Information

This risk invalves unauthorised sale or provision of confidential information, including client information.
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n REPORT: Investments Under Section 625
| _ of the Local Government Act - August
2019

DUBBO REGIONAL

COUNCIL . .
AUTHOR: Director Organisational Performance
REPORT DATE: 2 September 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/1204

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As required by Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005, set out below
are the details of all monies that Council has invested under Section 625 of the Local
Government Act as at 31 August 2019.

Investments when placed have been done so in accordance with the Local Government Act,
Local Government Regulations and Council’s Investment Policy and Strategy. Interest on
investments for the month of August 2019 has been accounted for on an accrual basis. This
report details investments and annualised returns for the month of August 2019.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Interest earned on investments has been included within Council’s 2019/2020 Operational

Plan, with total income generated from the Investment Portfolio forecast to be in excess of
$5,100,000.

RECOMMENDATION

That the report from the Director Organisational Performance dated 2 September, 2019 be
noted.

Craig Giffin
Director Organisational Performance
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2019 2019 2019 2019
Investments Total Current Non-Current Total
Maturity After
30/06/2018 Maturity By 30/06/2020 30/06/2020 31/08/2018
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand and at Bank $28,700.00 $28,700.00 50.00 %28,700.00
Cash-Equivalent Assets (1)
- Deposits At Call 547,102,168.31 526,233,403.05 50.00 526,233,403.05
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents §47,130,868.31 $26,262,103.05 $0.00 §26,262,103.05
Investments (Note 6b)
- Long Term Deposits * 3 Months $171,330,281.25 569,830,281.25 $118,500,000.00 $188,330,281.25
- NCD's and FRN's » 3 Months 514,000,599.09 %1,500,000.00 %10,500,599.09 %12,000,559.09
- CDO's 50.00 50.00 50.00 $0.00
Total Investments $185,330,880.34 $71,330,281.25 $129,000,599.09 $200,330,880.34|
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS & INVESTMENT S $232 461,748.65 $97 592,384.30 $129,000,599.09 $226,6592,983.39|

{1) Those Investments where time to maturity (from date of purchase) is < 3 months

FYTD Overall Portfolio Return

3.5000%
3.0000% e=@== Overall Portfolio
2.5000% e
2.0000%
e=fii== Aus Bond Bank

1.5000% - Bill Index -

_.\. annualised
1.0000%
0.5000%
0.0000% T T T T )

Jul-19 Sep-19 Nov-19 Jan-20 Mar-20 May-20
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Budget to Actual - Interest on Investments
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5,000,000.00 = .
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Performance Benchmark as per Council
Policy

Investment % Held as per Council Policy

Institution 5 % % $

Cash on Hand and at Bank 528,700 0.01%

Cash-Equivalent Assets

NAB - Sweep Account 526,233,403 11.58% 100.00% 5226,592,983
Direct Investments

AMP 5,000,000 221% 20.00%  $45,318,597
Bank of Queensland 519,830,281 B.75% 1000% 522,659,298
Bendigo & Adelaide Bank $18,500,000 8.16% 10.00%  $22,659,298
CBA 59,000,000 397% 30.00% 567,977,895
Macquarie Credit Union 51,000,000 0.44% 1.00% 52,265,930
NAB 556,000,000 2471% 30.00%  $67,977,895
St George $37,000,000 16.33% 30.00%  $67,977,895
Suncorp 53,000,599 1.32% 20.00%  $45,318,597
Westpac 548,500,000 21.40% 30.00% 567,977,895
TOTAL DIRECT INVESTMENTS $197,830,880 87.31%

Grandfathered Investments Rated
MNewcastle Permanent Building Society 52,500,000 1.10% BBEB

TOTAL GRANDFATHERED INVESTMENTS 52,500,000 1.10%

TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH EQUIVALENTS &
INVESTMENTS $226,592,983 100.00%

BankBill Index- 1 Month  Weighted Average Rate
Annudised

Aus Bond council's
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SUMMARY

Council outperformed the 11am Official Cash Rate market benchmark for 1 month annualised
return of 1.00%, with a return of 1.40% for its At Call investments for the month of August
2019. Council also outperformed the 1 month annualised Bloomberg AusBond Bank Bill Index
of 1.20% for the month, with an average annualised return of 2.68% for its overall portfolio
return, including an average on Term Deposits and Floating Rate Notes of 2.87%.
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n REPORT: 2018/2019 Budget Highlights
| _ Report

DUBBO REGIONAL AUTHOR: Chief Financial Officer
COUNCIL REPORT DATE: 29 August 2019
TRIM REFERENCE: 1D19/1187

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Council has conducted a review of actual income and expenditure to budget for the quarter
and year end 30 June 2019 including its type and value of internally restricted assets.

Formally, Council would adopt this information as provided in the Quarterly Business Review
Statement. This report provides an opportunity to reflect on the year past and achievements
for the year.

Council is required to formally adopt the type and value of its internally restricted assets,
funds that Council has set aside for a future purpose. Note 6 of Council’s financial
statements shows the actual cash and investments held as at 30 June 2019, broken up into
External Restrictions, Internal Restrictions and Unrestricted cash.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

It should be noted that the Financial Statements and Audited results for 2018/2019 have not
yet been finalised. The final results will be determined following the completion and audit of

the 2018/2019 Financial Statements which is scheduled for 31 October 2019.

The adoption of the internally restricted assets as at the 30 June 2019 provides confirmation
from council that these funds are to be allocated for their respective purposes.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

That the information contained within the report of the Chief Financial Officer dated 29
August 2019 be adopted.

Jane Bassingthwaighte
Chief Financial Officer

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 172



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/39

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

REPORT

The quarterly review for the period ending 30 June 2019 of Dubbo Regional Council’s
2018/2019 Budget Review Statements shows satisfactory implementation.

Council has conducted a review of actual income and expenditure to budget for the quarter
and year end 30 June 2019 including its type and value of internally restricted assets set aside
for a future purpose. Formally, Council would adopt this information as provided in the
Quarterly Business Review Statement. This report provides an opportunity to reflect on the
year past and achievements for the year.

A summary of the budget results are depicted as follows:

Total Expenditure 2019

($'000)
Total Income Operating Expenditure Loan Repayments Capital Expenditure
% Income by type 2019

= Grants and Contributions provided
for capital purposes

= Rates and annual charges
m User charges and fees
= Interest and investment Revenue
= Other revenues
‘ = Grants and contributions provided for
operating purposes
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Dubbo Regional Council manages over $2.4 Billion of community assets and infrastructure
and has spent over $200 Million on the provision of services in 2018/2019. Significant
investment of over $14 Million in maintaining and improving Dubbo Local Government Areas
assets such as roads, footpaths and cycle-ways is a highlight of the Dubbo Regional Council
result for the 2018/2019 year.

The Financial Statements for the year end 30 June 2019 for Dubbo Regional Council are
prepared in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards and are due for completion by
31 October 2019. The 2018/2019 financial statements audit is being conducted by the NSW
Auditor General.

Below is a summary in respect of various major capital projects undertaken during 2018/2019
and projects still in progress into 2019/2020:

Waste Collection Services

The introduction of the new household waste collections services within the Local
Government Area commenced on 2 July 2018, collection areas were defined into two bin
service (general waste/recycling) or three bin service (general waste/recycling/food organics
and gardens organics). This has resulted in areas increasing the diversion of waste from a
single stream to three streams within Wellington, while Dubbo has increased the diversion
from two streams to three stream. The diversion of food organics and garden organics
material from landfill during 2018/2019 for Dubbo Regional Council was 5,478 tonne which
contributed to 31.29% waste collected within the Local Government Area. Extensions to the
collection service area is continually reviewed with a number of inclusions occurring during
2018/2019, with an increase to the collection service occurring during 2019/2020 to ensure
services are available to a wider service area. Issues associated with the introduction of the
service were resolved in a timely manner.

Dubbo Regional Organics Processing Plant

The Dubbo Regional Organics Processing Plant (DROPP) officially opened in July 2018, with
the first deliveries of food organics and garden organic waste being received on Monday 2
July 2018 from Dubbo Regional Council, Mid-Western Regional Council and Narromine Shire
Council. The facility received 7,916 tonne of food organics and garden organics waste during
the 2018/2019 which has diverted a significant volume of organic waste from landfill,
reducing environmental pollution caused by leachates and methane gas production. The
processing of this material provides a valuable resource in the form of compost, Dubbo
Regional Council have used this product on Sporting Grounds and Parks and Gardens.
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Small Waste Facilities

Geurie Waste Facility has undergone significant improvements during 2018/2019 to enable
the conversion of the site to a transfer station, historically this waste facility was a landfill site
and has undergone full rehabilitation during the conversion. Dubbo Regional Council also
conducted improvements works at Eumungerie Waste Facility, Ballimore Waste Facility and
Toongi Waste Facility during 2018/2019 in preparation for all Dubbo Regional Council Waste
Facilities converting to operating hours during 2019/2020. This rehabilitation program will
continue during 2019/2020 at the remaining waste facilities.

NSW RFS Training Academy

The NSW RFS Training Academy Stage 1 was officially opened 25 July 2019. Stage 2
Accommodation Block B is progressing with slabs, in-ground services and wall frames 100%
complete; roof 95% complete; external sheeting 95% complete and internal sheeting 25%
complete. The Accommodation Block C slab is 60% complete.

SES/VRA Emergency Services Facility
The SES/VRA Emergency Services Facility was officially opened 25 July 2019.

Wellington Caves

The Wellington Caves Visitor Experience Centre is due to be complete by 31 December 2019.
Slabs, structural frames, fire hydrant water tanks and bricks 100% complete; rough-in of
electrical and roofing 95% complete; and internal sheeting 40% complete.

Wellington Pool Re-development

The project is on track for November opening, with the Administration and Amenities 100%
complete. Tiling of the 50 metre pool commenced early August 2019. Learn-to-Swim Pool has
been filled and tested. Filtration Systems are 40% complete, and the Splash Pad concreting is
100% complete.

Victoria Park Re-development - Cycling
The project is progressing with the Velodrome - earthworks continue, lime stabilisation, sub-
base and base levels complete, electrical conduits complete and fence footings underway.

Criterium Track earthworks continue, lime stabilisation, sub-base levels and electrical
conduits complete. The Club House building pad concreted and structural steel framing has
commenced.

Victoria Park Re-development — Ovals - Clubhouse
The Victoria Park Re-development is underway with the Tender being awarded. Site
establishment complete and earthworks have commenced.

Cootha Sewer Pump Station

The new Pump Station is up and running, final commissioning and tuning completed early
August 2019. Demolition of old pump station complete. Access road works completed and
sealed in August 2019. Final commissioning and handover scheduled in August 2019.
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Dubbo Regional Botanic Garden Adventure Playground
This new playground was formally opened by the Mayor in April 2019.

Minokamo Way

Mayoral Minute requesting that the granite pedestrian pathway at Dubbo Regional Botanic
Garden be formally named Minokamo Way. Design is well advanced and signage will be
installed prior to the Minokamo delegate visiting in November 2019 to mark the 30t
anniversary of the Sister City relationship.

Victoria Park 1 Park Clubhouse
Commenced with estimated completion December 2019.

Cycle Club
Works have commenced with estimated completion September 2019.

Wiradjuri Tourism Experience at the Dubbo Regional Botanic Gardens
Designs have been finalised.

Pioneer Park training lights
Completed.

New amenities blocks for Lady Cutler East, Lady Cutler Ovals (Disabled and refurbishment
of existing)
Lady Cutler South amenities completed.

Refurbished amenity block at Riverbank Ovals (Netball)
Completed.

BBQ, shelters and lighting at Delroy Oval
Completed.

Playground renewal at Wongarbon Centenary Park
Completed.

Splash pad at Dubbo Aquatic Leisure Centre
Completed and opened in October 2018.

Ballimore - Thelma Pelosi Park irrigation installation
Completed.

Wahroonga Park renewal
Completed.

Regand Park picnic area
Completed.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Page 176



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, BUSINESS AND CORPORATE
COMMITTEE EDBC19/39

9 SEPTEMBER 2019

Stage 2 River Corridor lighting projects (Lions Park West to Serisier Bridge)
Completed.

Stage 3 River Corridor light project (Tamworth Street to Sir Rosen Cutler)
Completed.

Battistalls/Pavan Land redevelopment into playing fields
Currently under construction.

Cameron Park upgrades
Playground, amenity block and pathways. Pathway 90% completed. Playground and amenity
block commencing soon (estimated completion December 2019).

Rygate Park - amenity block
Completed and opened in July 2019.

Rygate Park Multi-purpose courts
Completed and opened in July 2019.

Bicentennial Park playground
Being opened 4 September 2019.

Geurie (Tom Culkin Oval Skate Park, irrigation installation, fitness centre and amenities
refurbishment)
Completed.

Walker Crescent Park Playground
Completed.

Lions Park renewal
Commenced.

Road Network Projects
Highlights of the civil construction projects in the 2018/2019 Infrastructure Delivery
Programmes are as follows:

Boundary Road Extension

Stage 1, from Wheelers Lane to Alexandrina Avenue, opened to traffic December 2019.
Council crews completed to project with minimal delay following the contractor going into
administration. Detailed design for Stage 2, from Alexandrina Avenue to Sheraton Road, is
ongoing with construction to commence second half of 2019.
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Purvis Lane Reconstruction

Project being delivered in four stages to reconstruct and upgrade Purvis Lane from the rail
line to Yarrandale Road. Stage 1 commenced onsite on 29 April 2019 with a full road closure
of Purvis Lane between Tannery Road and the rail line and was completed in June 2019. Stage
2 between Tannery Road and Mallee Road commenced. Project due for completion early
2020.

Muronbung Road Stage 2 Reconstruction

Project to reconstruct a two kilometre section of Muronbung Road including vertical
realignment in pavement width increases to improve road safety and heavy vehicle access
commenced March 2019. New culverts installed and earthworks completed, project to be
completed August 2019.

Village Sealing

Emu Street and Balladoran Street Eumungerie completed end of May 2019, Balladoran Street
sealing extended 200 m beyond Emu Street intersection to Coolbaggie Street following cost
savings on the project. Bundemar Street Wongarbon commenced, project to be completed
August 2019.

Ponto Falls Road Seal Extension

Final stage of seal extension completed in December 2018. Inspection by the Federal Member
for Calare, Andrew Gee, along with the Mayor and Chief Executive Officer. Positive feedback
received.

Old Mendooran Road Seal Extension
Two kilometre seal extension including horizontal realignment and widening to improve road
safety completed March 2019.

Church Street Toilet
Civil works to prepare for the toilet installation commenced onsite with. Delivery of toilet
delayed by supplier until September 2019.

An assessment of Council’s financial statements as an overview of project works and
completion shows the amount of actual cash and investments held as at 30 June 2019, these
have been broken up into the below categories:

) External Restrictions
° Internal Restrictions
. Unrestricted cash
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Balances on completion of the draft Note 6 (subject to audit) are as follows:

2019

$'000
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 234,511
External restrictions
Developer contributions — general 14,237
Unexpended grants 41,162
Water supplies 50,958
Sewerage services 51,849
Domestic waste management 1,347
Stormwater management 2,997
Total external restrictions 162,55
Total internal restrictions as below 66,960
Unrestricted cash as at 30th June 3,000

Externally restricted funds are governed by legislation or are restricted specific purpose grant
funds. Council can only make adjustments to its own internally restricted assets and these
adjustments depend on the amount of cash held. The purpose of these Internal Restricted

Assets are as follows:

Purpose of the Reserve :'(()):)% Purpose
Internal restrictions
This amount supports Councils leave liability
and is sufficient to meet unbudgeted and
Employees leave entitlement 2,397 | unanticipated terminations.
Dubbo City Holiday Park 748 | To be used to fund future projects at the site.
To be wused to fund future Iland
Property development 6,600 | developments.
Dubbo City Regional Airport 410 | To be used to fund future projects at the site.
Livestock markets 4,210 | To be used to fund future projects at the site.
Other waste management services | 8,696 | To be used to fund future waste projects.
To fund emergency repairs or renewals to
Road network — state roads 2,145 | state roads for works undertaken by Council.
To fund future fleet purchases and renewals
Fleet management services 7,519 | on existing Fleet.
To fund various asset renewal works across
Future Asset Renewal 34,235 | council $2.4B asset portfolio.
Total internal restrictions 66,960
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